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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEREURBEB MR AN

On behalf of the board (the
(the”Directors”) of Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding

“Board"”) of directors

Limited (the”Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2021, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,416,409,000
(2020: HK$1,246,809,000) and gross profit of HK$348,409,000
(2020: HK$182,199,000). The Group recorded loss for the year
of HK$55,972,000 (2020: HK$756,738,000), which was mainly
because of that the global general aviation piston aircraft
market has recovered to grow from the Covid-19 pandemic,
resulting in an improvement in the performance of the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business, as well as the decrease
in impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets, which
recorded a loss of HK$48,108,000 (2020: HK$749,196,000) for
the year.

Basic loss per share amounted to HK¢0.60 (2020: HK¢8.13).
The return on equity, calculated on the basis of loss attributable
to owners of the parent as a percentage of equity attributable
to owners of the parent, was -2% (2020: -27%).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment— the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which is involved in design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

A ANERKContinental Aerospace
Technologies Holding Limited & FEfn 22 R
ERAERRE (xRl 2EE ((EF) §
(TEEg)) MARELARARENRBAE
(FEFE)BE_T-_—F+HA=+—H
IEFEZ2FEE

ERS[olRE
KRB > 2 BHBRKE

1,416,409, 0008 c (ZE & &F
1,246,809,0007% 75) &2 FE 348,409,000/ 7T
(ZZ-Z4 : 182,199,000 7T) o ANEH
718 A FEE53855,972,00058 5 (CE T F .
756,738,000 7T) » TERNEHKEMEE
RiEMSRHMTEBIREERELERE B
ERAMERBIESHWEREELS U
FEEREMERLEEZRERL  RER
1518 548,108,000 T (ZCE -84 .
749,196,0007% 7¢) ©

EREREIEA060BW (CE 54 :8.13
BAL) o BRARLIFHEILF NGB A EEGEIE
SR ABMEEERLERE BN Lt ESE2%

TETEE 27%)

ES )

FROFEBRE—ERERZEED BB
BMERKIZEIHRES REEANE
R EELIEREEORT REREE
UREHEEERNERTERT KX



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

AEMZERRZERAERAF
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2021, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recognized revenue of HK$1,416,409,000 (2020:
HK$1,246,809,000) and gross profit of HK$348,409,000
(2020: HK$182,199,000), and recorded loss for the year of
HK$48,108,000 (2020: HK$749,196,000). The decrease in
loss was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in impairment
of goodwill and other intangible assets by HK$464,616,000
during the year; (ii) decrease in selling and distribution expenses
by HK$69,736,000 during the year; other income from bank
borrowings forgiveness and fair value gain on other financial
liabilities of HK$57,559,000 and HK$12,525,000, respectively.
Had the effect of the fair value adjustments on the identifiable
assets acquired from the acquisition of the business in 2018
charged to current year's profit or loss of HK$75,804,000
(2020: HK$44,773,000) been excluded, the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business would have recorded a profit of
HK$27,696,000 (2020: loss of HK$704,423,000).

In 2021, the Covid-19 pandemic was still raging, global spread
of Covid-19 coronavirus variants has deeply affected consumer
and business behavior. U.S. economic recovery led the way
among major developed economies. U.S. economic output
has likely surpassed its pre-pandemic peak, jobs lost in 2020
have been recovered and even many of the hardest hit sectors
of the economy are seeing recovery, while a labor shortage
of 4 million plus is impacting all industries. The number of
passengers transported by air continues to climb higher.
However, the demand-side of the economy is experiencing
robust recovery while the supply-side struggles to catch up
from which many problems may arise. Supplier deliveries are
historically slow, inventories are unusually low and job openings
are at record levels.
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CHAIRMAN'’'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREREUAREEE T mR D

According to the General Aviation Manufacturers Association
(GAMA) 2021 report, the market for new aircraft with general
aviation piston engine increased 5.5% year-on-year compared
with the same period in 2020. The first half year showed
strong demand across all aircraft types. It is encouraging to
see that the industry began to bounce back from the impacts
of the global pandemic, although the industry continued to
face challenges in the second half year, especially with ongoing
supply chain issues and pandemic related restrictions and
constraints to global travel. The market for new aircraft with
general aviation piston is expected to grow in 2022.

Despite the challenges of cost pressure and supply chain
challenges arising from inflation, the Company successfully
navigated a turbulent 2020 and rode on the recovery of 2021.
The number of orders for the general aviation aircraft piston
engine business in 2021 exceeded the same period of last year
and the sales revenue for the whole year increased by 13.6%
year-on-year. Due to intensifying inflationary cost pressures, the
Company executed several pricing increases in 2021 to protect
our profitability. We are closely observing the market trend, as
well as cost increases, and proactively adjusting our operating
strategy accordingly. Like many other companies, the Company
still faces fragile supply chains and elevated absenteeism levels.
Under the new leadership of the Company, we are determined
to be the first choice in general aviation power industry by
continuously innovating and returning value to customer and
shareholders.
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Our modernisation program for the Blue Marlin factory
located in Mobile, Alabama USA has successfully completed
the production preparation and put-into-operation of the
crankshaft production equipment, and has completed the
transfer of cylinder barrel machining, fuel/ignition systems,
camshaft milling, and cylinder assembly machining. The test
bench and thermal surface treatment were also delivered
and tested. To continually improve manufacturing efficiency,
the Company is also accelerating delivery and production
preparation of the crankcase, cylinder, and camshaft by an
average of 6 months. Primary product processes will be fully
transferred and put into production in early 2023. This brand-
new factory is anticipated to significantly increase capacity in
the future while ensuring a competitive cost base, therefore
improving profit margins.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business combination
has been allocated to a cash-generating unit in USA (“USA
CGU") and a cash-generating unit in Germany (”“Germany
CGU"). As at 31 December 2021, the entire amount of
goodwill related to the Germany CGU was HK$14,163,000
(2020: HK$14,927,000). The impairment assessment of USA
CGU and Germany CGU was performed with the support of
Duff & Phelps, LLC., an independent professionally qualified
valuer.

No impairment loss has been recognised on goodwill of
Germany CGU for the year 31 December 2021. For the last
year, the goodwill of HK$385,770,000 directly related to USA
CGU was impaired which was mainly due to the Covid-19
pandemic and the deteriorated economic environment.
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Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of development programs

in progress, trademarks, product technology, licence and
completed programs, customer relationships and others. As at
31 December 2021, the Group’s other intangible assets were

HK$1,564,078,000 (2020: HK$1,657,066,000).

Impairment of other intangible assets of HK$6,428,000 (2020:
HK$85,274,000) was recognized for the year 31 December
2021.

A joint venture and an associate

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of a joint venture as the share of losses of the joint
venture exceeded the Group's interest in it and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. During the year, the
Group recorded share of losses of an associate in an aggregate
of HK$4,130,000(2020: HK$1,191,000).

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with an independent third party, pursuant
to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the Group's equity
interest held in the joint venture with a consideration of
RMB11,500,000. The disposal was not completed as at 31
December 2021.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages,
product liability expenses, legal and professional expenses
and other general expenses. During the year, the Group
recorded administrative expenses of HK$338,303,000 (2020:

HK$316,682,000).
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,290,759,000 (2020: HK$1,553,030,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$623,119,000 (2020: HK$914,072,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2021 were
HK$390,863,000 (2020: HK$612,235,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$2,784,461,000 (2020: HK$2,846,140,000), comprising
issued capital of HK$930,337,000 (2020: HK$930,337,000)
and reserves of HK$1,854,124,000 (2020: HK$1,915,803,000).
The Group's interest-bearing debts included bank borrowings
of HK$Nil (2020: HK$252,902,000) and lease liabilities of
HK$311,018,000 (2020: HK$314,897,000).
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing

The Group's

debts as a percentage of total equity plus the interest-bearing
debts, was 10% (2020: 17%).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021,
pledged. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has granted a

none of the Group’s assets was

continuing security interests in all assets of a subsidiary as the
collaterals of certain bank loans.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure to

foreign currency risk is minimal.
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IEBREUAREERB RN
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this
announcement, the Group had no material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
of the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and
regulations released by the relevant authorities which are
material to us. Throughout the year 2021, there was no non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, there were 510 (2020: 560)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries
amounted to HK$208,768,000 (2020: HK$233,668,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
the importance of good relationship with employees. The

The Group recognises

Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.

OUTLOOK

Entering 2022,
reclassifying Covid-19 as an epidemic instead of pandemic.

some countries and areas already started

The impact of the pandemic on the economy is expected to be
reduced. At the same time, there were signs that global supply
chain and logistics bottlenecks were beginning to ease in 2022,
and we expect further improvement as we move through the
end of this year. But there is still a long way to go before supply
chains are functioning normally. With production having been
curtailed in 2021,
year of 2021 with sizable backlogs of unfilled orders. Backfilling

manufacturers and developers ended the

these orders will also be a tailwind for sales improvement in
2022.
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The Company strives to be the innovative leader in general
aviation power system. The Company continually launched
a new OEM application platform and won interest and
commitment from new and existing OEM clients. We have
streamlined the Jet-A product portfolio; focused on adding
value to newer products and technologies and developed
strategic initiatives in line with feedback of the market and
our customers. Currently, the global research and development
(R&D) team continues to work on the development of multiple
projects for both the Avgas and Jet-A product lines.

In summary, the Company delivered a very strong 2021 result.
2022 presents many growth opportunities with headwinds.
The Company looks forward to produce reliable products and
serve customer worldwide by building world class facilities
that sets the new standard in the GA industry. Along with the
recent leadership changes and the new-built facility in Mobile,
the Company continues to create a safe, innovative workplace
by streamlining products and lean processes, and to increase
market share, enhance product support and improve customer
satisfaction, ultimately achieving stable and profitable growth
for the Company.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 57, has been an executive Director
since June 2015 and the chairman of the Company and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) since August 2019. He has
resigned as an executive Director, chairman of the Company
and a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 April
2022. He is a senior accountant, holding doctorate degree in
Management of Tongji University and an EMBA of Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University. Mr. Lai is now the
chairman of AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC
International”) and AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”). Mr. Lai joined AVIC
International Shenzhen Company Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”),
in 1983.
He previously served as the deputy general manager of AVIC

a wholly owned subsidiary of AVIC International,

Shenzhen, the chairman of Fiyta Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”),
the deputy chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
("Tianma") and the chairman of Rainbow Department Store
Co., Ltd.
Rainbow Department Store are companies listed on Shenzhen

("Rainbow Department Store”). Fiyta, Tianma and
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai has rich experience in finance and
operation management, and once acted as an executive
director of AVIC International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL")
from 2004 to 2012 and 2014 to 2020.

EEREEREZREE

BITES
BMEERE 57& B-®-AEAAHE
AGES 1 BTN NS ERR

ZK’\TIV&iﬁﬁH;zE 2 (T#FMZEE8]1) i
E-BAEXER-_TI_FHA—HHIR
TEE - ARBEEERFNEEETRE B
ARG AEAZSEEEE T KIL
RABNEEEEREMBA - BEERATH
MERMERERERASE (THMER)) &
FRER (EE SEERAR (HHERE (F
BEBNDESTR - BEER—ANZEMA
B PR 2 2 B M B A B) FP R A 2 R AT R
BRAB (TRHURYIL) c BAE S EPHUF
JIR4ERIB R E (EE) ROHBRLAE (TR
DENEER - XEMBTFRMERLQE (MX
ENRESERRIBERMEBERAR (X
EiG) BEER-REE - XERXIEFIS
2ROV FINBERZFA LT - BAERE
EEUBERREEELE BN _ﬁgﬂ
FET_HERIZ—NEERE —EF
RAMERZERRNBERAE (“Pﬁmlﬁﬂaﬁ“
f%)) EERITES -

11



12

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 —2& — —F 3R

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEREZREE

Mr. Huang Yongfeng, aged 47, has been an executive Director
and a member of nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) since January 2021 and the
chairman of the Company from 1 April 2022. He obtained
a Master degree in management engineering from Beihang
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Huang is currently the deputy general manager of AVIC
International. He previously served as the chairman and general
manager of AVIC International Holding (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd., the
general manager assistant of AVIC International, the deputy
general manager, the general manager assistant and the
manager of corporate strategy and management department of
AVIC Shenzhen, the chairman of Castic-SMP Machinery Corp
Ltd and the board secretary of AVIC IHL. Further, he was also
previously a chairman of FIYTA Precision Technology Co., Ltd
and a director of each of AVIC Sunda Holding Company Limited
(FREERNBRAE),

Tianma, which shares are listed and traded on the Shenzhen

Rainbow Department Store and
Stock Exchange. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and financing management,
mergers and acquisitions, as well as aviation manufacturing
and aviation operation areas. He is also a chairman of three
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Jiao Yan, aged 55, has been an executive Director since
August 2021.
Peking University. She is currently the board secretary and

She obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Law from

the general counsel of AVIC International. Ms. Jiao previously
served as a director of regulations, the deputy general counsel
and the minister of audit and legal department of AVIC
International. She is also a director of a subsidiary of the

Group.
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Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 49, has been an executive Director
since August 2018 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April 2022.
He obtained a Master's Degree in International Trade from
University of International Business and Economics in 1997. He
previously served as the project manager of AVIC International,
the assistant general manager of AVIC International Harbin
Company (FHEIRIEFE A E)), the operations management
vice director of the international cooperation department of
AVIC International, the organisational performance director of
the human resources department of AVIC International, the
vice general manager of the human resources department of
AVIC International and the general manager of the auditing
department of AVIC International. He is also the director of six
subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 51, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August
2019. He has resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 1
April 2022 but will continue to serve the Company as an
executive Director. Mr. Zhao previously served as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company starting from January 2017.
Mr. Zhao is also a director of Tacko and certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance
from Nankai University and EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Zhao is a senior economist.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management
positions in different companies, of which two are Shenzhen
listed companies. Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance.
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EEREEREZREE

Mr. Li Peiyin, aged 35, has been appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2022. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree
in July 2007, a
Master’s Degree in Accounting from Xiamen University, China,

in Accounting from Yantai University, China,

in June 2010 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Missouri State University, the United States of America, in
July 2015. He has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2014. Mr. Li has more
than 11 years of experience in corporate financial management.
Mr. Li has been working at the finance department of AVIC
International since August 2010 and he is currently the head
of the finance department there. Mr. Li is also a director of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Moreover, Mr. Li has been acting as
the director of Rainbow Digital Commercial Company Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002419.5Z), since February 2021, FIYTA Precision
Technology Company Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000026.52),
since February 2021 and Shennan Circuit Company Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002916.5Z), since April 2021.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, /p, aged 74, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited ("CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /2 s8S, aged 78, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, and was an independent non-executive
director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited until
June 2021, all being listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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EEREEREZREE

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 67, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. He is the senior advisor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings
Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of CR
Construction Group Holdings Limited until June 2021, all being
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 57, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee and the member of
Audit Committee. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate School (-
Bt g R EZRMIEER) . Mr. Zhang started working at the
Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy of Social Science
(Fh B & R 2B &8 BT 35 FR) since July 1988. He once led
and organized key national research project on economics. He
published several essays based on theory research and surveys.
His major research fields are the growth of China economy and
macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang was an independent non-
executive director of AVIC IHL until December 2014 and an
independent director of Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management
Co., Ltd (REBEEEEIEABRAE) until December 2021,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 51, joined the Group in June 2018 as
deputy chief financial officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted
hereunder:

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms (code provision
A.4.1 before it was repealed on 1 January 2022), details
of which are mentioned under the section headed “NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS" in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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The Directors are required to notify the chief executive
officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chief
executive officer himself, he must notify the chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five executive Directors, and
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. An independent non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 7 out of 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The composition of the Board and
the biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
11 to 16 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) between Board
members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Nomination Committee will carefully consider the
qualifications and experience of each candidate, before making
evaluation and submitting its recommendations to the Board
on the candidates for the appointment of new Directors, re-
election of Directors and filling any vacancy in the Board. After
the Board approves the proposal in relation to the nomination
of candidates for Directors, the proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and
approval.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2021:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies

and practices;

3. reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group;

4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.
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The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for

Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances through the chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company
secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended
31 December 2021, ten Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and other
Committee meetings as well as general meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the table below:

Number of meetings or
meetings attended/held

Number of general
meetings attended/held

HE BTEELEERY HE/ BIREAERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director B% EX5g HMNEEE RBREZET BRKZEZEE BE Al
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan (Chairman)  BREE () 10/10 3/3 - - 0/1 0/1
Fu Fangxing* EyaE 171 - 1/1 = = =
Huang Yongfeng? =E g 9/9 - 2/2 - 01 01
Zhang Zhibiao* REIE 7/7 = = = 0/1 =
Jiao Yan* R 3/3 - - - - 0/1
Yu Xiaodong FEER 10/10 - - - 0/1 0/1
Zhao Yang fizk2 10/10 - - - 171 171
Non-executive Director ~ FHTEE
Chow Wai Kam BEE 10/10 - = = 11 11
Independent BUFHTEE
Non-executive Directors

Chu Yu Lin, David KAk 10/10 33 3/3 4/4 11 il
Li Ka Fai, David P 10/10 33 - 4/4 11 il
Zhang Ping & 10/10 - 3/3 4/4 0/1 on
* Mr. Fu Fangxing and Mr. Zhang Zhibiao have resigned on 25 January  * BHEEERREREEDAINR S —F

2021 and 30 August 2021 respectively. —B_+RAKR_E_—FE/\B=1tHEE-
# Mr. Huang Yongfeng and Ms. Jiao Yan have been appointed as  * EERAEERERLIDRIN S —F—

BZ+AHERZEZ—FNB=1+HEZMTE
BHITEER

executive Directors on 25 January 2021 and 30 August 2021
respectively.

BRRERBFRAGIN RZIBZ—FRETT
—RREFHAREG -

Save for the annual general meeting, one special general
meeting was held during the year 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he/she
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the
Directors, the Directors received the following training during
the year 2021:

EFEIIREXEE

BRNEENEFELTEE - EXARER
Hm=RRMAERR > URFRM,tHhfI5E2H
BASEERREEE EHRAEZRBRHA
thEERE THBE-

ARBRBEREFSRAFREXLR X
Fe 3t 5B R HOAN 6B R i B o IRIB B R IR HAYRC
BOBEERN T —FREBEZUTEI:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

FTEE XL REER

Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars
Director S REMR R ERER HESNE Y
Executive Directors HITEE
Lai Weixuan BEE v v
Fu Fangxing* (Yl v v
Huang Yongfeng* =Bl v v
Zhang Zhibiao* REAE v v
Jiao Yan* R v v
Yu Xiaodong TR v v
Zhao Yang i v v
Non-executive Director FERITEE
Chow Wai Kam BE% v v
Independent Non-executive Directors B IF#HiTEFH
Chu Yu Lin, David E)is v v
Li Ka Fai, David B v v
Zhang Ping iR v v
* Mr. Fu Fangxing and Mr. Zhang Zhibiao have resigned on 25 January — * BAEEEERREREEDINR S —F

2021 and 30 August 2021 respectively.

L Mr. Huang Yongfeng and Ms. Jiao Yan have been appointed as
executive Directors on 25 January 2021 and 30 August 2021
respectively.

— B +RBRZEBE_—F N \B=+HETE-

E EEREERERLIDOINR _T_—F—
B_+aRBER_BE_—E/\BR=1+HEZF
BPITESR-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separated from that of the chief executive officer.
Starting from 1 April 2022,
executive officer of the Company are Mr. Huang Yongfeng and

the chairman and the chief

Mr. Yu Xiaodong respectively.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chief executive officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function of
providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole. The
Company had received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his Independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered
that the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgment and fulfill the independence

guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms, but are
subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under

section headed "CORPORATE GOVERNANCE".

TEELRRS

FRERATH AR
AHEREDMERES MBS TFERITEHAE
HNBeEBIEn B _E - _FUB—

HE xRABZERRITEHBEDIAES
15t R FBRER L -

FTREEREESY HRESEXAEEA
MBI ERETESEG&amiz LEEF
HHEEREINBENMAZE -TEZRER
BEMMEBEE S XM (EAREBRT) ER1TE
EgenEHR)V-HAEGBREA -EETAE
BMRMAESHEENTEEZEETTER LR
HHNER - TEHAHAEREGIMEER
SRS FE2ER

ERERITEEENHEERD B R EIL L
EEFIBR-
FRTES

FRTEEREAERTREZRERKESR-
BREMFRERRREAD 2ERHNm £ 3E

EREINE - ARBEWEI B IIIFAITE
EMZERELHRAFEIIBGRNFEEBRIL
MEIE - EFERXR-BBIUFRTES
EEMERAE EEDEI AFFE EHRA
B3 IBMRPT BB ILIEEER]

BRZE—RAFERAEZ+T=ZBZEENERT
EERNR_ZE—tFRRZ+RBZENSE
YIERITESIN BIMEBUIFANTES
WHEEEE EARBU LIEXEBRIET
Pt m & 2R A
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
Mr. Yu Xiaodong (with effect from 1 April 2022), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

Three meetings were held during the year 2021 to review and
recommend the remuneration package of all Directors to Board.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2021,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior

management”.

HMESS

HNEEEH—RATEFTERRLE (B
T__FWUB—HBEXN kMBBILIFAT
EF RYBTEREEERERFTRESLSE) E
et EZEENRECRNESZENER
ARBESFREESEZHWNBRKRRE
URmHIBAHNEEMELZERER
FRENEFRERZ -FNZETNAE
PR i B B BB st B i B A S B 9 o

RIE-_—FR HNEEERTT=RE
FORERODESTERMAEESZHMNE
BoRMBZHECHHN LAEETE BT
BIHERA -

THAEHFMBRZEIEZENEEBIEBRT
EENTRAERGCFEREENKREHN
HBILBRE BB AT AITESE o R H
R ERNEFHHETHBATIT2AEE
THEBNFM NS —FR FMEE
CERMT(EEFEBREM EEEHR
TEERSREEAESNFHINFGE)ER-
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of HE_Z - —F+_HA=+—HIEEE &
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 AEEESEZMESEHHFLIIOT
are set out below:
Number of
individuals
Remuneration B <& A
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00078 752 1,500,000 75 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the

financial statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2021 to
assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor's engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group’'s internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.

R EHRMEREFAZHEER EEM
EhELBEHEE ZHBDREHN T FHER
REFEE10RK11

BIZEEY
ARABERBELETRAUEI2IFRERLE
ZEEE RS REEAEBZMHERR
B RBREERASEZERZRKARATNA
BESBENERM - BEREZEGRA=%
BIUFPITEE CROBREEETERE TR
B ERRTLAE) AR -BRZEEENR_-F

TFRBRTERGH ) UFEINBZH
MMZREN R ERAEBYTAEERRE
PR ERER INBREMZEZRER R
ER - EAREERABEZRG ZIS%IE’\]W
BEZNENBE R EURFERER S &
REBZHFERHEEN LR IEEE H IR
FEA - BRLZEGNRSC B MENE
BELER -
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Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
and code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 of the CG Code for the
purposes of reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying candidates with suitable qualifications
as directors, selecting and making recommendations to the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. It currently
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Huang Yongfeng, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The duties of
the Nomination Committee are clearly set out in its terms of

reference.

Three meetings were held during the year 2021 to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board regarding appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The attendance of each member is set out
in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”.

HHEEZNENCRERE LHEXTES
CRAEMEBE -EEZ LRHNEEIEER
EFg DEKFEEMBITEH-

RLEEY

RABBEIRE EHHRAEI27AKRERBE
ERTHSFRME X EB.3 1 BB 3 AMEIRERL
RELZEEE UBEEENERE - ABKA
A (BIEH S A R &5 A m) > WREME
REHNEEFRIEZR - WEABAEE
BETEENWAL UREEBALTHIE
FEUMEmEEGIREES T EBIIIFH
TEENBIERRESZERAENZEU
REFZETHEERNEENESTSRHEE
EORLTEGHRA—LBITES EBEL
) RMEBIIFNTES CRFRAEETE
ERANBIE) AR - REEZEFTNRHERS
7 A 0 B 5 EL B R Y o

REZEENR T —FREBEHET=RE
BB ESERE Y ABKRARN 5T
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MEEUARESEIFSAANEERDES
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;
o broad experience in business;
o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on

their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.

TEELRRS
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are the auditors of the Group. The
services provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing and non-auditing (including interim review and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2021 amount to HK$3,745,000 and HK$1,192,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
had also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach, and the
review report was presented to the Audit Committee and
the Board for review in March 2022. No material deficiency
was identified. Improvements in internal control and risk
management measures to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of
the Group will be adopted by The Board. The Board considered
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were adequate and effective and the Company had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control of
the CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,

which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the company secretary of the Company, is
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. He has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website
at www.cath.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated
website at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2021, there was
no change in the memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.cath.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

(with effect from 11 April 2022)
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company'’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2021 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 21 May 2021. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
All Directors except for four executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Nomination Committee, attended the 2021 annual general
meeting and had effective communications with shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") report, which describes our EGS
development and performance in 2021, to respond to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about the Group’s
sustainable development.

The Board of Directors assumes the responsibility for the
sustainable development of the Group, and leads the Group
to undertake social responsibility. The Board believes measures
such as emission reduction, prudent use of resources,
improvement of occupational safety and health, and focus
on quality will help the Group achieve its missions and goals.
The Board is of the opinion that laying emphasis on ESG
management can reduce related risks, enhance the Group's
capability to comply with relevant laws and regulations,
improve corporate brand image, and promote community
development to contribute to society.

The Board will actively participate in relevant training to
understand the latest developments in ESG issues, and consider
inviting relevant experts to participate in board meetings, if
applicable, to help the Board gain relevant experience. We have
established working groups within our primary operating units
to set ESG goals and regularly review the effectiveness of the
plans. By formulating strategies, the Board gives clear guidance
to the operating units on plans and goals, and regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the plans. The working groups collect
ESG information and report to the Board annually. The Board
regularly examines strategies and plans, and reviews the ESG
report to ensure that the Group’s development and disclosure
standards meet the expectations of stakeholders.
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ESG-related risk management is critical to the Board. Through
communication with different stakeholders and comprehensive
understanding of our business, the Board has made a basic
assessment of all relevant risks and incorporated relevant
risks into its risk management and internal control systems to
promote comprehensive risk management within the Group.
The Group pays particular attention on products that safeguard
customers’ health and safety, quality control of production
materials, environmental and social risks in the supply chain,
and product recycling systems.

The Board believes that our focus on product quality, proper
management of relevant supply chain risks and assurance of
occupational health and safety are particularly beneficial for the
Group to achieve its goal of establishing an excellent corporate
image. Therefore, the Group regularly assesses our product
quality and occupational safety statistics against predetermined
goals, as these goals and assessments are effective indicators of
production capacity and operational control.

As society is building a consensus on sustainable development,
the Group will respond more quickly to address market
changes and demands. Looking ahead, the Group will strive to
contribute to an environment-friendly economy.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance report (the "ESG Report”), which details the
Group’s policies, measures, and performance on environmental,
social and governance issues. By reporting to stakeholders,
the Group has disclosed its measures and performance on
sustainable development issues in a transparent manner
and increased public confidence; helping stakeholders
better understand the Group's sustainability progress and

development direction at the same time.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG report specifies the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance for the fiscal year 2021 (1 January
to 31 December 2021), which is consistent with that of the
annual report of the Group. The Group planned and prepared
this report based on the materiality principle. Unless otherwise
stated, this report covers the general aviation piston engine
business in the United States which represents the majority of
the Group’s environmental and social impact.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the ESG
Report is released annually by the Group for public review. In
addition, the Group is committed to creating long-term value
for stakeholders in line with the interest of the environment
in which it operates, while driving the business growth and
sustainable development of the Group. As such, the Group
has formulated its sustainable development policies which
cover the Group’s activities in the environmental, employment,
business integrity, and social aspects. The Group will strive to
incorporate such principles into its practice and governance,
and is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of society and the environment.
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The Board is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Group's environmental, social and governance risks. The Board
strives to contribute to sustainability. By formulating well-
defined environmental, social and governance policies, the
Board can identify and mitigate relevant risks, and ensure the
solid implementation of relevant policies and guidelines.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. Accordingly, this report
covers the principal business of the Group.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impact, and giving comparative data where
appropriate. Accordingly, KPIs are presented in this
report pursuant to the reporting guide.

3. Balance: this report should provide an unbiased picture
of the issuer's performance. The report should avoid
selection, omission, or presentation format that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

4. Consistency: this report uses consistent methodologies
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over
time. Any changes to the statistical methods used should
also be stated in the report.
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STAKEHOLDERS PARTICIPATION AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Feedback from stakeholders not only helps the Group
comprehensively and impartially evaluate its ESG performance,
but also enables the Group to continuously improve its
performance based on the feedback. As such, the Group
regularly communicates with stakeholders in an open, honest
and proactive manner through a variety of channels, including
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
During the reporting period, the Group continued to maintain
an open dialogue with stakeholders to review and update
the areas identified as important to the Group’s business
operations. This can help the Group develop sustainability plans
in line with its business strategy.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment are
among the key reporting principles for preparing a quality ESG
report. Therefore, the Group determines the topics of business
importance through stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment, and accordingly gives them priority in the relevant
section of the report.

The Group conducted an online stakeholder survey in October
2021 and invited external stakeholders such as customers
and suppliers as well as internal stakeholders including
the Group’s directors and employees spanning from senior
management, management personnel and general employees
to participate in the survey to rate the reporting issues set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
according to their perceived materiality to the Group or the
stakeholder groups they represent.

The materiality of each reporting issue was then determined by
consolidating the materiality levels rated by all the participants.
The materiality rating for each stakeholder category is the
average of all respondents within that stakeholder category.
The overall materiality rating across multiple stakeholder
categories is the average of the materiality ratings for each
category.

FRESRAREEEE

FOENREBENMEADAEERZEN R 5t
B EMESGRIE AR TEAERMLS
R FEAERR -AEERAILBBRTRR
BIEUAR BERBREHEELFTNHEE
THRERARERNBERE ETEETHRARER
FHR - AEURBRE -REHAN > AEEME
BEFMNERFEABNEE  UBRREREN
EHAHAEREBEMEBEEZNEE
ERBIENEEFTRBENARFAEERT
fEo

RNE2AKREENTHEREFESEER
BN gHREESGO)RENERHRERAZ
— Rt EERBFNHESENBEZMETE
EEMLEEZENEEBAAEREZR 1A
B EREPNHBANTETERER

EER-_FT_—FtARBTRNESRRE
BT BREIEFP HEBFIHFNE
UREBESF ETERESREEAE -BE
ABNEBETEIRAHFKNELRBE R
BT A EERENEBFMMAARN
ROEFRBNEEN HIRBE - HERERLE
SIFRENREREETIR

NERBERMAEZAERENEZEREE
REESERSZENEZR -SEAKMNE
BHNEBREEREXRFNERIANMAER
FENTHE - BREZEFOHEENNERE
EZUSRAIEESEBNEEZLESTIRITH
B



#
-

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

AEMZERRZERAERAF
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

To clearly illustrate the results, a materiality matrix containing
the materiality ratings on each issue as rated by the Group's
directors and other stakeholders, including employees and
external stakeholders, is shown below. The materiality matrix
clearly illustrates the results by classifying the materiality ratings
(from 1 to 5) of the Group’s directors and other stakeholders
on each issue. The issues at the top right of the materiality
matrix are considered as important by the Group's directors and
other stakeholders.
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Materiality to the Group
HATINEEN
Indicator: Em
A1 Emissions B3 Development and Training Al BEIRH B3 #EREEFI
A2 Use of Resources B4 Labour Standards A2 BIRfEA B4 T A8
A3 The Environment and B5 Supply Chain A3 IRIEMBNREIR BS HEESE
Natural Resources Management

A4 Climate Change B6 Product Responsibility A4 miEE1E B6 EmEE
B1 Employment B7 Anti-corruption B1 1Ef& B7 R&ES
B2 Health and Safety B8 Community Investment B2 BEMZZE B8 HEKE
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We received feedback from all stakeholder categories
participating in our survey. B5 supply chain management was
determined as the most important issue in both stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment, and 11 out of 12 ESG
issues were rated as important, while B8 community investment
was rated as slightly important and A4 climate changes as not
important at all.

The table below outlines the most important ESG issues
identified by different stakeholders.

Stakeholder group
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Most important issues

FHrEER REERE

Employees B2 health and safety

BT B2 Z 2

Customers B2 health and safety

ZR B2REM %22

Suppliers B5 supply chain management
e BotfE#E B 1R

To address the concerns of relevant stakeholders, the Group has
disclosed the policies and measures implemented for relevant
stakeholders in the corresponding sections of the report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to aligning its business model
with the future economic development trend of low-
carbon economy. It has adopted management measures
on air and greenhouse gas emissions, water and land
discharges, as well as the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, and implemented a
series of environmental management regulations
on daily business activities to reduce the impact on
the environment, in an attempt to achieve a green
production mode with low pollution and low emissions,
which leads the Group towards a low-carbon economy.

1. GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR EMISSIONS

Based on its established environmental protection
policies, the Group has formulated internal
environmental guidelines to systematically
integrate emission management into daily
operations. Also, the Group has established the
environmental management committee, and the
human resources director, plant facility manager,
environment and occupational safety and health
manager, and environmental engineer maintain
close communication with various stakeholders
to balance different opinions and facilitate the
implementation of environmental protection
guidelines.
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The Group obtains emission permits from the
relevant authorities, takes proactive and effective
actions to comply with the requirements of laws
and regulations of the government and reduce
greenhouse gas and air emissions, integrating the
management of greenhouse gas and air emissions
into the Group’s operational decisions. The Group
also keeps abreast of relevant environmental
developments around the world, strives to update
internal policies and practices, and put into
practice environmental protection measures in a
timely manner. The Group’s air emissions mainly
come from its general aviation piston engine
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business, which involves air pollutants from 1E¥(SOX) K2 Fa ki 4] o
transportation and testing of engines. The air
emissions include nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur
oxides (SOx) and particulate matters.
Emission Unit (kg)
B B E (F)
2021 2020

—T-—& —ETF
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) AEIEMI(NOx) 1,905.09 3,084.43
Sulphur oxides (SOx) R 1E¥(S0x) 45.36 72.57
Particulate matters EEYNY) 1,632.98 1,995.81

Table 1 — Total Emissions during the Reporting Period
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The Group's greenhouse gas emissions come from
the operations of the aircraft factory, including

FEBENBERBHHRER
HIKEE ETEEAEME

fuel consumption for testing aircraft engines. EENME 2 JHFEN o

Scope of Emissions

greenhouse (Tonnes of carbon Intensity

gas emission dioxide equivalent) (Emissions per employee)

HE BE
mERBHHEER UG (tREE:t) (Hg, 8I1)
2021 2020 2021 2020

R TEZITE ZBZ-F TEZIITHE

Scope 1 & [E1

Direct emissions BEiEH® 2,837.14  3,670.11 7.45 10.37

Scope 2 #E2

Energy indirect emissions AER B HE 5.59 5.83 0.01 0.02

Scope 3 #E3

Other indirect emissions HEBEFHEmR 102.07 60.04 0.27 0.17

Total st 2,944.80  3,735.98 7.73 10.56

Note: the calculations were based on the Reporting Mek: SHETLERB M EMN

Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, IPCC Fifth

Assessment Report, and latest grid emission

factors. Scope 1 includes consumption of aviation

fuel, unleaded petrol, liquefied petroleum gas,

kerosene, diesel, natural gas, acetylene, and carbon

dioxide extinguisher, and fugitive emission of R22

refrigerants. Scope 2 includes electricity power

purchased from power companies. Scope 3 includes

disposed paper and air mileage of employees.

Table 2 — Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions during the

Reporting Period
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The Group sets carbon emission goals for
its core production processes in accordance
with the terms set out in the emission permit
issued by the relevant authorities. The Group's
environmental management system provides
guidance for reviewing any new equipment or
equipment changes that may become sources of
carbon emissions to ensure that potential carbon
emissions do not exceed predetermined goals.
The business units have taken multiple measures
to reduce air pollutants and greenhouse gas
emissions, one of which is to cut greenhouse gas
emissions by reducing electricity consumption.
To reduce power consumption in the office,
the Group prefers using low-power electrical
appliances or products, and avoids using
unnecessary high-power equipment. For example,
the Group preferably chooses LED or low-
wattage, high-luminance lighting systems.

In addition, the Group sets carbon emission goals
for its core production processes in accordance
with the terms set out in the emission permit
issued by the relevant authorities, and strives to
introduce appropriate post-treatment equipment
to all machinery and devices. Pollution control
devices have been installed in paint shops,
sandblasting machines and treatment tanks in
the factory to effectively control and reduce
the emission of harmful air pollutants such as
carbon monoxide, volatile organic compounds,
and particulate matters, and monitors air quality
regularly.
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Waste Management

The Group measure waste data on a
quarterly basis and sets a waste reduction
goal to decrease waste by 1% based on
the waste data over the last two years.
The Group adheres to the 4R principles of
waste management and strives to properly
handle and dispose of all wastes generated
from business activities through reduction,
reuse, recycling, and replacement. The
Group classifies and recycles waste
where feasible to increase the potential
of downstream recycling, and dispose of
non-recyclable waste in accordance with
laws and regulations, so as to reduce
environmental impact.

By implementing waste assessment
procedures, the Group assesses the
emission of air, water and solid waste,
special waste, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for newly added
machines and processes. The Group
classifies hazardous and non-hazardous
waste for disposal in the factory, and
the hazardous waste is handed over to
qualified hazardous waste collectors for
disposal so as to meet the requirements of
local laws and regulations. The hazardous
waste collectors commissioned by the
Group have all obtained hazardous waste
transportation permit from the U.S.
Department of Transportation.
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Waste
BEEY

Intensity
(Emissions per
employee)
Volume (Tonnes) BE
HIEE () (Hg 8T1)
2021 2020 2021 2020

- "FT°TFE BT “T°ZH

Total hazardous waste B
Total non-hazardous &
waste

21.20 12.35 0.06 0.03

135.61 251.28 0.36 0.71

Table 3 — Waste Generated during the Reporting
Period

During the reporting period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant
environmental laws such as Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act and there
was no case of prosecution against the
Group for violation of environmental laws.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group upholds the concept of energy
conservation and green production. It has
formulated internal environmental protection
guidelines to systematically incorporate the
management of resources into daily operations.
The Group has implemented a series of measures
to undertake its environmental commitments so
as to improve energy efficiency and reduce paper
and water consumption. By active monitoring
and managing the use of resources, the Group
aims to reduce the use of resources, improve
efficiency on use of resources, and achieve low-
carbon practices, emission reduction and energy
conservation in operation. Details of energy and
water consumption are discussed in the sections
below.
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Resources

During the reporting period, the resources
directly consumed by the Group for

@

RE|BEHRA > ZEBAR
EENERZRHEEERN

operations are as follows: T
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption BE

Resources Unit HEE (H#E/BI)
Bl Efi 2021 2020 2021 2020

- IIZIZ2F ZEI-H IIZIZTH
Energy
fER
Electricity '000 kWh 13.97 14.57 0.04 0.04
g1 TETERRE
Fuel oil '000 kWh 1,329.66 2,426.84 3.49 6.86
] TETERRE
Fuel gas '000 kWh 10,650.01 14,984.09 27.95 42 .33
k=) TETRE
Total energy kWh 11,993.64 17,425.50 31.48 49.23
AciR4E 5t ThE
Other resources
Hit&ER
Water cubic metre 20,822.00  33,627.00 54.65 94.99
K LA

Note: the unit of energy figures is translated
into kWh based on the lower heat value.
Fuel oil includes aviation fuel, unleaded
gasoline, kerosene, and diesel. Fuel gas
includes liquefied petroleum gas and
natural gas.

Table 4 — Total Consumption of Resources during
the Reporting Period
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Consumption

Packaging material FERAZE
used for finished products  Unit 2021 2020
B R B Bl —g-—& —z-=f
Packaging material tonne

used for finished products 170.11 301.76

HplmEEME L7

Table 5 — Total Consumption of Packaging Material
Used for Finished Products during the
Reporting Period

The Group manages the workspace using
the “5S” management scheme, which
focuses on five areas: sort, set, shine,
standardise, and sustain, as the core
model. Furthermore, the Group conducts
lean management and waste reduction
management to encourage employees
to redesign the use of resources from
many aspects, effectively reuse products
or materials, prolong the life cycle of
resources, and reduce the use of resources
and generate less waste, thereby achieving
the long-term vision of zero emission.

The Group also attaches great importance
to energy management and focuses on
reducing total electricity consumption in
kWh by 1% per year to make effective use
of power resources. The Group will reduce
electricity consumption by integrating old
facilities buildings into new buildings, and
gives preference to the use of energy-
efficient equipment, including energy-
saving lighting fixtures, with a view to
reducing energy consumption in the long
run.
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(b)  Water Consumption

The Group is aware that sustainable and
responsible use of water resources is a
major global issue, and that excessive
demand and overuse of water can cause
serious regional water shortage. In view
of this, the Group has in place wastewater
treatment equipment, and aims to reduce
the amount of treatable wastewater by 1%
per year. Through wastewater minimization
plans and neutralization, chromate
reduction, and alkaline chlorination of
cyanide, the Group ensures that the
emissions meet relevant standards and
water is reused. The Group has no problem
in obtaining water sources fit for use.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to taking a series of
effective measures to avoid and mitigating the
impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects regularly. For example, the
Group ensures that the factory is in compliance
with the Resource Conservation and Recycling
Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit, and the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.
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4.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group’s business scope includes the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business in the
United States. The Group has identified and
assessed the physics risks of climate change, and
has developed measures to mitigate their impact
on the operations of the Group and protect the
safety of employees, including ensuring that the
infrastructure of the Group is sufficient to cope
with extreme weather conditions and strictly
following relevant extreme weather guidelines
issued by the government. The Group regularly
reviews policies on coping with climate change to
ensure their effectiveness.

During the reporting period, Hurricane Ida
brought heavy rain and tornadoes to Alabama,
the United States where the factory is located,
and slightly affected the operations of relevant
facilities. The Group is looking into a new
business disruption event tracking system to
strengthen follow-up and review of downtime
and monetary losses caused by business
disruption events.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group firmly believes that employees have
a critical impact on the quality of the Group’s
products and services and employees are the
foundation of the success of the Group. They are
also the engine that drives sustainable corporate
development. The Group strives to establish
harmonious relations with employees to bring
together all employees and proactively maintain
a diversified, inclusive, fair, just, healthy and
safe workplace to jointly promote the long-term
sustainable development of the Group.
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Equal Opportunities Policy

The Group is convinced that providing
employees with equal opportunities can
improve employee satisfaction, which in
turn helps attract outstanding talents and
motivate employees, thus promoting the
Group’s business development. To ensure
that no discrimination whatsoever exists
in the hiring and promotion process, the
Group has formulated relevant recruitment
and promotion procedures to ensure that
human resources decisions are made
based on the capabilities, knowledge
and experience of job applicants and
employees related to the open positions
irrespective of factors such as gender, age,
race, family status, religious belief and
disability.

Compensation System

The Group also regularly reviews its
compensation policies to maintain its
attractiveness in the labour market.
Furthermore, the Group fully considers
sharing with employees the value they
have created in tandem with the Group's
performance growth. The Group also
has a set of comprehensive human
resources management policies to
serve as the basis of human resources
management. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development, and other related areas.
The Group provides a fair and competitive
compensation package, including basic
salary, social security insurance and other
fringe benefits to attract and retain
quality talents, and considers a variety of
factors to assess and determine pay levels,
including employees’ work ability, the
Group's performance, and compensation
levels in the market.
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During the reporting period, the Group MRS AEE T &
did not have any cases of violation of ERBOESHEIETAN
relevant employment laws and regulations, 18R R R B ROE R Y
including labour laws, nor did it receive BZ > 75 B IR BE AR R /Y
any complaints related to recruitment. e EfF{E 22

Number of employees
BT A#
2021 2020
—ECZ—5F —ETITTE

—_—=— A

By gender 4 51
Male B4 299 290
Female 7% 82 64
Total 485t 381 354
By employee category EELEE
Full-time 25 367 345
Part-time E i 14 9
Total 4B 5t 381 354
By age group FHMER
18-30 18-305% 67 51
31-45 31-45%% 113 108
46-60 46-607% 139 148
Over 61 615t E 62 47
Total 4mst 381 354
By region (&
United States E[= 381 354
Total wast 381 354
Table 6 — Breakdown of Total Employees by x6 —WEHAZRMR . EEE
Gender, Employee Category, Age Group, U FERAE R R it [E Bl

and Region e B4R SR 1
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Turnover rate

TKEEE
2021 2020
e
By gender L 3:]]
Male B 18% 39%
Female 7% 26% 34%
By age group FHMER)
18-30 18-305% 37% 43%
31-45 31-455% 20% 45%
46-60 46-607% 16% 30%
over 61 61m L 8% 40%
By region h &
United States EE 20% 38%

Table 7 — Breakdown of Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender, Age Group, and Region

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group value the occupational health and
safety of every employee, and has set up a
safety committee to take charge of occupational
health and safety matters. The committee, which
consists of the human resources manager, safety
manager, fire officer, and workshop staff, is
responsible for the Group’s occupational health
and safety matters. The committee is tasked
with formulating safety management measures
in line with compliance requirements, advising
internal departments on government standards
and regulations, and meeting regularly to review
occupational health and safety issues brought up
by team members.
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The Group has established a risk assessment
mechanism that consists of a series of measures
including risk identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, monitoring and reviewing to reduce
risks which are not deemed to be under
acceptable limits. The Group has identified high-
risk positions and implemented occupational
health and safety measures accordingly to protect
the safety of employees. The Group requires
employees to strictly comply with the safety
policy and guidelines which specify workflows,
various safety measures and guidance as well as
employees’ responsibilities for their health and
safety in the workplace.

The Group requires all employees to attend
monthly safety meetings, which covers the latest
information on occupational health and safety,
internal safety policies and safety accident
review. To effectively promote occupational
health and safety, the Group also incorporates
safety performance into its annual performance
evaluation. The Group has also developed
measures for drug abuse prevention. Through
the Employee Assistance Plan, professionals are
engaged to provide local employees with training,
diagnosis, and consultation on drug and alcohol
abuse problems, and to provide professional
advice and guidance for employees.

No work related fatalities occurred in the past
three years including the reporting period, and
the total number of lost days due to work injury
during the reporting period is 180 days. During
the reporting period, the Group has no cases
of violation of laws and regulations related to
occupational safety and health, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group firmly believes that professional and
efficient employees can lay a foundation for the
Group's success in the future. Through employee
development and training, the Group helps
employees to unleash their potential and align
with the Group’s objectives leading to further
business growth. On this ground, the Group
encourages employees to participate in training
courses related to personal development and
work. Through the formulation of employee
training policies, the Group has developed a
comprehensive training system, which specifies
the management responsibilities of training
leaders in various departments, and provides
employees with corresponding learning and
training courses to continuously enhance their
work knowledge and skills. The Group has also
established the Educational Assistance Plan which
provides eligible employees with subsidies for
internal and external training related to their
work. The Group believes such arrangement can
effectively facilitate communication and team
spirit, improve technical skills and managerial
capability, as well as encouraging employees for
further development.

The Group provides induction training for new
employees in daily operations, and assigns
experienced employees as mentors to newcomers
to provide guidance on their work. The Group
follows up policy training progress of new
employees through the UltiPro human resources
system to ensure that they have a thorough
understanding of the Group's policies.
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Training rate and average training hours of

employees during the reporting period by gender

and employee category are as follows:

RSN RIER R E TR
B OMWE THEINRKRZINF
BRI

Training rate

Bl
2021 2020
b Juby S IS
Gender ratio among 2mMBNNaTEHF
employees trained BB E T A
Male B 78% 82%
Female egis 22% 18%
Employee category ratio SN E TR g
among employees trained BT HRE 28 EF
Senior management EREERE 6% 3%
Middle management RAREIEREE 12% 12%
General employee —mRET 82% 85%
Percentage of employees S2mBNNETEH
trained to all employees BALE 100% 100%

Note: according to the Stock Exchange’s latest proposal,

the percentage of employees trained is calculated

by using the total number of employees trained

as the denominator instead of the total number

of employees in that category as the denominator.

Data for the previous year are restated herein.

Table 8 — Training Rate of Employees by Gender and

Employee Category during the Reporting Period

o

RBM &M ER ZlE
BB EN2MEI
NETRHEERDFHE
MABEAZENNE TR
HERDE -EEUEETHE
e

®8 —MEHARRMRRE T ERE

DB TR



\\ /;z/‘
e \'J.

i

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAR
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERERRS

Average training hours
completed per employee

BSRESTHZIN TR

2021 2020
T —F —TTEF
Gender 45
Male S 4.6 1.1
Female it 4.0 1.2
Employee category BTHER
Senior management EREERE 4.2 1.0
Middle management RIREEE 5.0 1.0
General employee —fET 4.4 1.0
All employees FrEEE 4.5 1.1
Table 9 — Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender RO -HMEAANRENRETERE
and Employee Category during the Reporting DB THEIEFIRFE
Period
LABOUR STANDARDS 4. YT AR
(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (a BIUEFAETHNZESZFT
Labour
The Group is firmly against child labour AEBREBRTRHEETIR
and forced labour, and prohibits the BT TIRMEA] 2k
employment of any child labour and forced AR EE &R RIS

labour in any operations and services. FAETHaEIE T

59



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIF g RERHRS

Before hiring any candidates, the Group
will check the age-related documents
to verify their age. All employees of
the Group must reach the statutory
minimum working age. The Group
adheres to the principle of fair and
voluntary recruitment, strictly forbids
forced or fraudulent recruitment, ensures
that all employees work on a voluntary
basis, and prohibits coercive means
including withholding of documents
and other undesirable methods. Where
employees are required to work overtime
in the production process, the Group
will formulate overtime arrangements
with the employee representatives and
employees, and the working hours will
not exceed the maximum legal limits.
Moreover, management personnel will not
force employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found neither cases of incompliance
with relevant laws and regulations on
employment, including labour laws, nor
incidents in violation of the laws and
regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group places emphasis on the promotion of
communication and partnership with business
partners on a continuous basis, so as to maintain
the quality and safety of products and services
through cooperation with business partners.
During the reporting period, the Group had a
total of 219 active suppliers, all located in the
United States. The Group carries out supplier
selection and evaluation process based on quality
and price with reference to internal guidance
and comprehensive supplier management on all
the active suppliers to regulate the engagement
of suppliers. The Group also uses the Solumina
Supplier Rating System Software to manage
and certify suppliers to achieve the best product
quality and management.

In order to ensure suppliers’ capability in
quality assurance, safety and environmental
responsibility, the Group will arrange field
visits conducted by inspection personnel to
suppliers’ productions sites to evaluate their
production capacity and quality, so as to assess
their environmental and process certifications.
The evaluation reviews the production capacity,
technology standards, quality assurance
capabilities, supply capacity, safety and
environment management qualifications if
needed. The Group also carries out regular
assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
assets position, nature of the business, reputation
in the industry, quality of products, goods delivery
and compliance with law and regulations. The
Group selects quality suppliers in compliance with
regulatory requirements and requires suppliers
to obtain third-party certification to facilitate the
improvement and enhancement of suppliers.
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Meanwhile, in order to promote the procurement

of more eco-friendly products, the Group

regularly reviews the solid and hazardous waste

performance indicators of suppliers to understand

the
and

environmental impact of their products,
develops more environmental indicators

to identify more eco-friendly products in the

procurement process.

6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

(a)

Quality Assurance, Advertising and Label

The Group carries out stringent quality
management, covering every aspect
between product production and delivery
process. The Group has formulated
different policies and guidelines in the
design, planning and production stages to
ensure that products meet relevant quality
and safety requirements. Before delivering
products to customers, the products must
go through internal quality procedures
stipulated by the Group to ensure that
their quality standards not only comply
with laws and regulations of the Federal
Aviation Administration but also meet the
quality requirements of the Group.
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The Group will continuously strive to
ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations
and its advertising and labels are accurate.
The Group will regularly assesses its
internal production processes to ensure
customer satisfaction and compliance with
the requirements of the Federal Aviation
Administration. If a product is found to
have any quality problems or other safety
hazards, the Group will immediately stop
selling it, promptly announce product
recall in line with the relevant mechanism,
notify relevant companies and institutions
to stop selling and using it, recall sold
items, and if necessary, immediately stop
production, and report the product recall
and its management to the local regulatory
authority.

During the reporting period, products
recalled by the Group for safety and health
concerns accounted for 11% of the total
products sold, all of which have been
followed up and handled.
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(b)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
and Customer Information

In terms of safeguarding and protecting
intellectual property rights, the Group will
only select products provided by legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers to prevent
pirated goods from using its sales channels
to enter the market. Furthermore, the
Information Management Department of
the Group monitors the use of software to
ensure all software used is licensed, and
conducts regular inspections to ensure that
no unlicensed software is being used in
the computers of the Group. In terms of
customer data protection, all orders and
data of the Group's customers are handled
and saved by dedicated personnel, and
no other employees are allowed to access
them, thus ensuring the protection of
customer data.

The Group abided by relevant product
liability and privacy laws, such as the
Consumer Data Privacy and Security Act,
and there was no case of prosecution
against the Group for violation of laws
related to product responsibility and
privacy protection.

(b)
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INTEGRITY

The Group advocates honest operation and fair
competition. The Group has developed a sound
risk management code and internal control code,
including setting out relevant policies in the
employee handbook and guiding employees to
abide by the code of conduct, in a bid to require
all employees to observe the highest ethical,
personal and professional standards. The code
of conduct provides a clear definition of how to
deal with conflicts of interest, gifts, and other
interests. All new employees are required to
complete ethics training, while directors have to
regularly attend corruption prevention training to
refresh their knowledge. The training materials
includes the latest anti-fraud information and
summaries of major fraud cases and responses in
various industries, and are compiled in view of the
Group's characteristics.

The Group has established and implemented
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices,
and engaged a third-party agency to audit its
financial statements each year. The Group has
clearly defined misconduct such as bribery,
corruption, embezzlement, insider trading
and theft of Group assets in the employee
handbook. The Group is entitled to terminate
the employment contract with any employee
who is bribed with money, gifts or commission,
and reserves the right to take further actions
against such person, in order to avoid bribery,
fraud and other criminal offences. The Group
has formulated an effective whistle-blowing
procedure for employees, management personnel
and directors to report any misconduct and
dishonest conduct, and ensured that employees
can report matters of concern through various
channels in an absolutely confidential manner.
Where a case is substantiated after investigation,
the Group will take appropriate corrective
measures and disciplinary actions against any
persons involved. If it involves any criminal
offence, the Group will hand over the case to the
competent authority.
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During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations, including the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

8. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group considers that an enterprise and
the community are inseparable as a whole and
enterprise development is also inseparable from
the support and recognition of the community.
The Group considers community benefits as one
of its social responsibility and understands the
importance of making positive contributions to
the community where it operates. The Group
encourages its employees to participate in charity
and social services, aiming to become a good
corporate citizen, better undertake its social
responsibilities and contribute to the community.

The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives and orientation for community
investment, and supervise community investment,
sponsorship and donation activities and the
relevant approval policies.

During the reporting period, the Group
engaged in 46 hours of volunteer work and
over US$12,000 in various community volunteer
activities, including supporting food banks to help
the disadvantaged and donating toys to inspire
children in the district.

OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group will, where appropriate, conduct
reviews on and make amendments to its disclosure aspects
in response to the needs of various laws, Listing Rules and
internal management. The Group will also continue to carry
out more measures beneficial to the environment, society
and governance in its business operations to live up to its
commitment to the environment and society.
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GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE e
STOCK EXCHANGE

A Environmental Chapter
14 L

ASPECT A.1 Emissions A1

FEA.1 e

KPI' A.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data A1

FEIRAA PE ) 18 48 K 4B RA BE I BUR

KPI A.1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity A1

1E1EAN 2 BERBRIENERTE

KPI A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity A1l

1512A1.3 FFEEEEREYRERTE

KPI A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

1E1RA4 FMELBRZEREVEERTE

KPI' A.1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to A1

achieve them.
FE1RA15 HAMPRET MBI E B R R A EDE L B RFT RIS B
KPI A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Al

handled, and a description of waste reduction target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

1512A.1.6 HWARERERBEEEREYN S L RIEILFTE] LAY EE B R K
FIED)E L BIRPTERERA & 5
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =1: 1]

ASPECT A.2 Use of Resources A2

75 EA.2 BRER

KPI A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A2
intensity

A2 REMESNEER REEEREEEREE

KPI' A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A2

151RA2.2 BFEKERTE

KPI' A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2
to achieve them.

1E1EA.2.3 HAPRET LM AERE AN m B R R A E R B L B R EREAY

KPI A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

E1EA.2.4 MR EUGE A ACR LRI AR R URPRETIL A AN & B iR
R 7S ERE L B R EREAY D 5

KPI' A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, with A2
reference to per unit produced

1E1BA2.5 Ny mPTRAEEMENEEREFESMGLE

ASPECT A.3 Environment and Natural Resources A3

FHEA.3 RIERRXAER

KPI'A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There was no accident

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

that had significant
impacts on the
environment and
natural resources during

manage them

the period
1E1BA3.1 HAEBEHHIRIERRABERNEARXERERNEESH HRRAEHIRERRA
T ENITH BERNEATENEHR
ASPECT A.4 Climate Change A4
FHA.4 RIZEE
KPI A.4.1 Description of significant climate-related issues that have Ad
affected and may affect the issuer, and the corresponding
actions
1E1RA40 BB RAEEHBETAEESENEAREEBEEE  RE
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B Social Chapter
e =3:1]

ASPECT B.1 Employment B1

75 EB.1 & 1%

KPI'B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and B1
geographical region

#51EB.1.1 R BEEL FRAFNRMEE DHNEESAEH

KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical B1
region

$518B.1.2 R ER AR &R B DRV EE ML R

ASPECT B.2 Health and Safety B2

5 EB.2 fRREAZZ

KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2
the past three years (including the reporting year).

$51%B.2.1 BE=ZF (BREERFE) SFRITHAMABKLIE

KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work-related injury B2

151%8B.2.2 HIERAIFERH

KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2
how they are implemented and monitored

151%B.2.3 HMPT RN E R EE T 2 U RERRAITRERFE

ASPECT B.3 Development and Training B3

7 EB.3 BRREN

KPI' B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee B3
category

151%B.3.1 BRI REESEFEDNZINEEB DL

KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender B3

}51ZB.3.2

and employee category
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B Social Chapter

g =6
ASPECT B.4 Labour Standards B4
75 EB.4 TR
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4

child and forced labour

15128B.4.1 Ho i g 5T R B 1B A B0 HE T AR S B T Ko sl 55 T
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate violation practices when There was no violation

151%8.4.2

ASPECT B.5

J5HEB.5

KPI'B.5.1

$51%B.5.1

KPI'B.5.2

$51ZB.5.2

KPI'B.5.3

$51ZB.5.3

KPI B.5.4

}51ZB.5.4

discovered

e S IRE R B R B HIRA B IS LT REX B 2 B

Supply Chain Management
HEEEIE
Number of suppliers by geographical region

@B o R HERHE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers on which the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored

HAERMERHREENEN mERNTERAEANHERHE -
URBRIEFNRITRER G A

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

EARAARHIERSERINRERTERARIEG  UkHE
BBITRERFE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

M EREMREERECESARRERRIRFBIIES > UKRIERE
WITRERRE

during the period
HRRBEERBER
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B5

B5

B5

B5
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B Social Chapter

g =1: 1]
ASPECT B.6 Product Responsibility B6
75 EB.6 EmEE
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for B6

safety and health reasons

$51%B.6.1 BEFREEREMRBETRAZ2EEREHMEBELNKNE DL
KPI B.6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and There were 1,671

151%B.6.2

KPI B.6.3

}51ZB.6.3

KPI B.6.4

}51ZB.6.4

KPI B.6.5

$51%B.6.5

how they are dealt with

BRERRERRRBORFBEUREBH G A

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights
0 B e 5 R AR PR RN o8 EE HE R RA R 1B )

Description of quality assurance process and product recall
procedures
HhEESRTBREKRERBKRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored

BHUHEEERRERMBER  URERATRERT A

feedback items in total
and all of them were
followed up by special
personnel in accordance
with established
complaint procedures
during the period
HREF1671EERR
RELBEFHEZHEA
KRB E &2 7 IR
BRI

B6

B6

B6
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B Social Chapter
g =6
ASPECT B.7 Anti-corruption B7
J EB.7 R&5
KPI' B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices There was no legal

$51ZB.7.1

KPI B.7.2
$51ZB.7.2
KPI B.7.3
$51ZB.7.3
ASPECT B.8
75 HEB.8

KPI B.8.1

$51%B.8.1

KPI B.8.2
151%B.8.2

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

RERPAAHETANEEERH L EEEESHAEMF
=SSN

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

BB R B RED  URBERRITRER T

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HARNEERETRENRESEI

Community Investment
HERSE
Focus areas of contribution

HEEREE

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIRNEMBHBER

case regarding corrupt
practices during the
period
HRRBEESHREYS
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 10 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 92 to 260 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial results;
(2) the Group's working capital requirements,

capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group’s liquidity position; and
(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company'’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 261 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31
any distributable reserves calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,857,729,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

December 2021, the Company does not have

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:
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2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
% %
Percentage of purchases: EEREREE DL
From the largest supplier RKERAHEER 8 2

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AERFERFAMEAERZHER DN
T

2021 2020
—EZ—F TEIEF
% %

Percentage of sales: LIEE T DL !
To the largest customer REZRAEF 32 26
To the five largest customers KERAARE 71 66

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to 1 April 2022 comprises:

Executive Directors:

Lai Weixuan
Huang Yongfeng
Zhang Zhibiao

(resigned on 1 April 2022)

(resigned on 30 August 2021)

Jiao Yan (appointed on 30 August 2021)
Yu Xiaodong

Zhao Yang

Li Peiyin (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Non-executive Director:
Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Chow Wai Kam,
Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David and Mr. Zhao Yang will retire by rotation.
Mr. Li Peiyin, the executive Director who was appointed by
the Board on 1 April 2022, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company. All of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 16 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholders

R E

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko")

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

FRHERR (B8 £EBERAR
(TR (B8 £8))

AVIC International (HK) Group

RRERR (58 £ 8

AVIC International

o A BRI PR

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd

("AVIC")

PEMETEERARAS (MPHMITE))
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B
wE
Capacity and
nature of
interest
B kEDEE

Beneficial owner

BE@mEAA

Beneficial owner

EmEBA

Through a controlled
corporation
WA

Through a controlled
corporation
BB —EREE

Through a controlled
corporation
BB —BEREAE

A — 5 —

R — = —

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
FrfsEEiR & B

1,895,559,000

2,421,341,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

EFTHS

FERRRHEMA LIRS RAER R
Rzt

—F+ZB=+—H ' EARIRE
BERPAERPEIBHRFEZEmE LM
FTEc iR AR A TS %I EE BT A I

Percentage of
the Company'’s
issued share
capital as at

31 December
2021
R_E_—%
+ZB=+—H
HERTBEET
BAZBEZLE

20.37

26.03

46.40

46.40

46.40
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According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with
the Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International (HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International. AVIC International is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC (91.14% interest controlled
by AVIC as at 31 December 2021). Accordingly, each of AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Tacko.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sale services of engines and engines parts

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into a second sale
framework agreement with AVIC, pursuant to which the Group
will sell engines, engine parts and related services to AVIC and/
or its associates (excluding the Group) for use in new aircraft
manufacture and for the sale of parts into the aftermarket for
maintenance, repair and overhaul for a term from 1 April 2020
to 31 December 2021.
announcement of the Company dated 22 January 2020 and the

Further details were disclosed in the

circular of the Company dated 19 February 2020.

On 25 October 2021,
supplemental sale framework agreement with AVIC to revise

the Company entered into the

the original annual cap for the year ending 31 December
2021 from US$29 million to US$31 million. Further details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 October 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 18
November 2021.
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The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$31 million (equivalent to approximately HK$240
million).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s external auditors,
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
have issued their unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction set out in note 45
to the financial statements that falls into the category of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that
needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

EEHS

Name of company

YNCIEZY EmtE

Nature of interest

PR DR SN  BIEA MBI N RS M B R
7= MY 5245891 R BE Bk 75 32 57 3 5 AR R gt 75 52
SEBRLETRABEBTNAETFRENBERZ N
FERERZ EFMIEATNBETLD
MRABIAAZ ZFRE T LUBEE -

/|

EENHREMES L2ED

FR THEREBTHARRARFE TINES
MED MZFEFRBLDRAUTERER
PHEAAEENEBARFANEAERENMH

BH#E

Nature of competing business

MEEBMHE

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited

RIBXEEARLF RITES

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2021.

Executive director -

Property development and
investment (“Excluded
Businesses”)
MEZRRIRE
(TEAPRZET51)

EXFERRTERAENBIUIMKEREH
MR ERRET T EEMEIRRE
BEITRRE BREERITHESRFE
BETREEHBEUSERZREN@ITS-

REIR
AARESHRNETMILNBEREX (8
(EBATRA) REER R _B-—
FREEN-
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

On 9 April 2020, Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditors
of the Company. Following the resignation of Ernst & Young as
auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company on 9 April 2020 to
fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, there were no other
changes in auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Lai Weixuan
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CONTINENTAL AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 260, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

RBEtEE (@)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEEHFEE

BANSEA N AERARERETRE

Impairment assessment on other intangible assets

Bt ER EERETE

We identified the impairment assessment on other
intangible assets as a key audit matter due to the
subjective valuation parameters used and significant
estimations exercised by the management of the
Group for the impairment assessment, as disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

M SEEEEEMMENEFTERANIHTLS
HRPTEHB B RG5> AR EMETL S ERRE
Eﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%%%%lﬁ’Eﬁiﬁﬂﬁé,ﬁﬂ%ﬁ?&[ﬂﬁﬂ

To

The carrying amount of other intangible assets was
HK$1,564,078,000 as at 31 December 2021. At
the end of each reporting period, the management
reviews the carrying amounts of its other intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of other intangible assets
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of respective cash-generating unit (“"CGU")
to which the other intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation,
details of which including key assumptions underlying
the value-in-use calculation are set out in note 16.
The value-in-use calculation requires the management
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from each CGU and discount rate to determine the
present value.

RIBE_—F+"RB=+—H HtELEENKA
E731,564,078,000 Bt - M EHREMK > EEBER
HAEREAFROAMETLEENKREE URBER
AN RETXEEECHTERERBE -NRA
ERABEMEP R RGSHEREEN DU E S 28 LR E
BMEBENEE EEZEBLHHEMELEENA
WoEEE > BSEEMGHEMETLEEFMBRIERE
REELXE T ((REEEET) NI ROEEE-E
RERBEERERESELE TN I WEEEE H
HEEEEREEFEMKENRRRR SN
16-EREBEEEREERBMLREESEREESL
BrfEENARREERENEETRESENFTER

o

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on other intangible assets included:
EMEMEMEREEENBRETENEFEE .

o Understanding and evaluating the Group's
impairment assessment process, including
identification of impairment indicators, the
value-in-use model adopted, identification of
CGUs, assumptions used, the involvement of
the independent qualified valuer (“Valuer”);

. THRETE SEENERETERER BEH
ABENR PMTERANEREBERE - REE
FETAHEA P ARS B e BERMGER
(MEHERD) N2 EBER ;

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer; N
. S EERMA A RE E N R EFEM ;
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RBEtEE (&

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEEHFEE

BANSEANAHRARERETRE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised impairment loss of HK$6,428,000
on other intangible assets. Details of the above
impairment assessment are disclosed in notes 16 and
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BE_TZ_—F+_B=+—RHLEFE> E£EHHE
SRHthE & E R ER5186,428,0008 75 o LR &
S BRBEN G BIRRMNEE16/K17-

o Assessing the reasonableness of the budgeted
cash flows prepared by the management
of the Group, including evaluating key
assumptions applied in value-in-use
calculations, such as estimated annual revenue
growth rates, long-term growth rate, gross
margins and discount rate used in the cash
flow forecast of each CGU and conducting
retrospective review on historical accuracy of
the budgeted cash flows;

. i EEEEEEMGNETREAAN
B aE ML EREES BEMANRERER
=B RIFETELB IR RERAFR
BOMstFERRERR - RIAIERE EF)
KRR TR RERANBEERM
EITEIRER ;

o Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations; and

. WAERBESENEMERE &

o Reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed
by management.

. BEREEBETHNSRE DN
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B ZHETR S
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 4R &8 %
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE
2021 2020
“E-—-F ZEITF
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
Vit:3 FET FET
Revenue W= 5 1,416,409 1,246,809
Cost of sales and services 35 E M ARTE LA (1,068,000) (1,064,610)
Gross profit EF 348,409 182,199
Other income HiA 5 63,350 22,644
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ TERAE EEEHEE T2
model, net of reversal BEBRREE 35 5 4,337 10,556
Other gains and losses HthA B8 5 1,966 (51,263)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ~ #7% B = & &5 U &
and other intangible assets HthEBEFEERE 13/17 (11,956) (85,274)
Impairment of goodwill BERE 6 - (385,770)
Selling and distribution expenses HERESHER (57,341) (127,077)
Administrative expenses THEEBER (338,303) (316,682)
Research and development costs i 3N (16,562) (37,921)
Share of results of an associate DMEBENTEE (4,130) (1,191)
Finance costs MY 7 (14,560) (18,751)
Loss before tax MRS (24,790) (808,530)
Income tax (expense) credit PR () K% 8 (31,182) 51,792
Loss for the year TERHIE 9 (55,972) (756,738)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary BARLEREEREA
equity holders of the parent FEfE SR AS 1R
Basic A 12 (HK0.60 cents) (HK8.13 cents)

(0.603#41l)

(8.13711)




\ ///‘
; ¢
1 e \'J.

.'f

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAR
Annual Report 2021 —2 — —F 7R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 42 &

T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E_—& S35
NOTE HKS'000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Loss for the year KEEE (55,972) (756,738)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hitv 2@ (i) Wi
ltems that may be reclassified to REBHRETEENDE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: EBmIER .
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEL Y
foreign operations ERER (12,542) 33,123
ltems that will not be reclassified to REZBHETEENDE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: EE@m2ER
Actuarial gains (losses) on defined TERREFEEEERN R
benefit plans (E518) 37 7,014 (702)
Income tax effect R 2 (179) 95
6,835 (607)
Changes in fair value of equity investments BATESAHMZE
designated at fair value through other WEzBEREZ
comprehensive income REEEE = (3,332)
6,835 (3,939)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMZ2E (X)) ki
for the year, net of tax (NrMIEE) (5,707) 29,184
Total comprehensive expense for the year KEREY HELE (61,679) (727,554)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42 & B #5 Ak 2=

At 31 December 2021 R -_E-_—F+_-_F=+—H

2021 2020
—BZ-f 2R
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRERHZE 13 458,727 481,329
Right-of-use assets ERREE 14 289,033 301,528
Investment property REME 15 123,800 128,200
Goodwill HE 16 14,163 14,927
Other intangible assets Htnmp & E 17 1,564,078 1,657,066
Interest in an associate REERRZER 18 20,371 12,029
Interest in a joint venture REERBIZER 19 - =
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRZ
profit or loss HBEE 20 1,938 1,938
Equity investments designated at fair value BATESt AR MZA
through other comprehensive income Wmz BEEE 21 389 389
Deferred tax assets RILMBEE 36 - 28,120
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 2,472,499 2,625,526
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 22 492,972 442,878
Loans to an associate M A BIRMNER 18 7,121 11,135
Loans to a joint venture AR ENBRENER 19 7 1,046
Trade receivables e & 5 RN 23 117,435 122,955
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfTFIE #& K
Hh FE AR R 24 24,282 45,156
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR R 2 [T |8 A B =8 25 25,823 15,788
Cash and cash equivalents BeEkBEEEE 26 623,119 914,072
Total current assets RBBERE 1,290,759 1,553,030
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42 & B #5 Ak 2R

At 31 December 2021 R-_BE_-_—F+_-_F=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F —E2CEE
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 FAET FAET
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade payables Pt 8 R 8RN 27 133,422 107,783
Other payables and accruals HiENRRRESER 28 99,980 116,493
Amounts due to intermediate holding companies f& {3 th R 1E A% A B Z 8 29 27,495 26,456
Tax payable FERHRIE 40,003 38,283
Contract liabilities GHBERE 30 8,139 17,948
Bank borrowings RITEE 31 - 195,343
Provisions B 32 75,291 104,618
Lease liabilities HEESR 33 6,533 5,311
Total current liabilities mEaEAE 390,863 612,235
Net current assets REEEERE 899,896 940,795
3,372,395 3,566,321
EQUITY Hx
Share capital (TN 34 930,337 930,337
Reserves it 1,854,124 1,915,803
Total equity RRAE 2,784,461 2,846,140
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERBEEE 36 211,518 226,902
Contract liabilities BHB8E 30 29,253 28,935
Provisions BE 32 32,394 32,529
Lease liabilities HEaR 33 304,485 309,586
Defined benefit plan obligations TEREEMNFEET 37 10,284 16,773
Bank borrowings RITEE 31 - 57,559
Other financial liabilities Hi % as 38 - 47,897
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEEEE 587,934 720,181
3,372,395 3,566,321

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 260 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lai Weixuan
RS
DIRECTOR
EFE

BN ENBEEFE 0B 2B REE A
EEgR _E__F=A=+—HitERE
BET MAHUATAIRAEE

Zhao Yang
i
DIRECTOR
EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &2 & mE B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE - —F+"H=+—HILFE

Share
Share premium
capital account
B 2% Bin R B
HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZEHF—F—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEEE S S
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year: AFEHMEE S H) #& !
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEBIEBEE L ERESR
operations = =
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of TREEMNEBEESRE
tax (NkiRER) - =
Changes in fair value of equity investments BATEFAEMEENGE Y
designated at fair value through other BERE 2 AT EEE
comprehensive income S =
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AFEZE (X 1) NH B - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary KB AT = =
Disposal of equity investments designated at fair ~ HEZRAFESAEMEZANEZ
value through other comprehensive income e =
- listed —tW = S
— unlisted —3FEm = -
Transfer from retained profits BB aA s = S
At 31 December 2020 R_E_FE+"A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &2 & EmE B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

Fair value
reserve of
equity
investments
designated
at fair value
Asset through other Exchange
revaluation comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity
BATEFA
Hi2ERTZ
BELEEZ
BEEMRHAE NRTEHE HES E R R B Baf e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET FET
(note 35)
(Hf3235)
130,615 (785,235) 5,310 (36,499) 1,471,437 3,573,694
- - - - (756,738) (756,738)
- - - 33,123 - 33,123
_ _ - - (607) (607)
- (3,332) - - - (3,332)
- (3,332) - 33,123 (757,345) (727,554)
- - (5.186) = 5,186 =
- 568,004 - - (568,004) -
- (3,889) = - 3,889 -
- - 59 - (59) -

130,615 (224,452) 183 (3,376) 155,104 2,846,140
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 &S SR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE - —F+"H=+—HILFE

Share
Share premium
capital account

R R i B AR

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—-F—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Loss for the year KEFHE = -
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMZE EH) W
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of BhEBIEREE L BERESR
foreign operations - -
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, RGN EEEAE
net of tax (N IER) = -
Total comprehensive expense for the year rEZEX HAEEE = =

At 31 December 2021 RZE_—#+-A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729




9

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAR
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &2 & EmE B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

Fair value
reserve of
equity
investments
designated
at fair value
Asset through other Exchange
revaluation comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity
BATEFA
Hth2EKEZ
REREZ
BEEMMHE ATERE HEE ER KRB HE BEEd EReE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TFEz TET
(note 35)
(Hf3235)
130,615 (224,452) 183 (3,376) 155,104 2,846,140
= = = = (55,972) (55,972)
= = = (12,542) = (12,542)
= = = = 6,835 6,835
= = = (12,542) (49,137) (61,679)

130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
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MER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS /4 &5IR&S

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—BZ-f —EBCZH
HKS'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&EEHZRENE
Loss before tax FRIRAI RS IR (24,790) (808,530)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs MHRHZ 14,560 18,751
Share of results of an associate DMEBMERB 2 EE 4,130 1,191
Bank interest income RITFEWA (3,586) (8,394)
Bank borrowings forgiven under Paycheck R ERE 2
Protection Program ("PPP") (TFHEREEE)
M2 RTEE (57,559) =
Interest income on loans to an associate mEEARRMENERZ
IFSYON (448) (550)
Interest income on loans to a joint venture AaE AR RENERZ
IISYON (285) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE -BENREZ
equipment B8 7,866 58
Write-down of inventories EERE 8,197 38,278
Impairment of goodwill BHERE - 385,770
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 4%« i E 1R & UK
and other intangible assets HitEFEERE 11,956 85,274
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% R R HE 2T E 46,015 60,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBEZINE 15,834 16,380
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hthimfp B E 2 #iH 87,094 88,009
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ FEWE ZERFNTELEE
model on trade receivables, net of reversal BERET ZRES
18 kR EE 426 5,510
Reversal of impairment losses under expected — ELf1FE U &R 205 TE 1A
credit loss model on other receivables FEBEBRERETZ
REBEZ B (2,931) (16,066)
Reversal of impairment losses under AEEARRENERRL
expected credit loss model on loans to BHEERBREETZ
a joint venture AERE &R (1,832) -
Fair value loss on an investment property BREMEZ A TERE 4,400 23,300
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate RAHEBHERT Z2FH (11,790) (767)
Fair value (gain) loss on other financial Htp etz AT E
liabilities 8 B8 (12,525) 47,897
Operating cash flows before movements in NEEEESEHFN
working capital RERER2 84,732 (63,758)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

2021 2020
—BZ-f —22%F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Increase) decrease in inventories =75 (Em R/ (59,905) 6,998
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables FEU B 5 BR TR /D (180) 4,826 (25,234)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from EWREAKBATRIA
fellow subsidiaries (1) wb (10,035) 4,223
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, BANRE -BEk
deposits and other receivables Hh U BR Zom /L (32 m) 23,769 (556)
Increase in trade payables FET B 5 ERFRIE M 25,284 22,171
(Decrease) increase in other payables and HMECIRA R E &R
accruals (D) 180 (16,839) 15,604
(Decrease) increase in provisions B CRb) B0 (30,251) 58,791
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities aH8E (RD) 12m (9,491) 7,658
Increase in defined benefit plan obligations TR B EEEmM 346 315
Cash generated from operations SEEY VRS 12,436 26,212
Interest paid BHFE (14,268) (14,500)
Tax paid BHMRE (11,924) (11,901)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES REETHEHZRE 3 (13,756) (189)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZEBZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME -BENREEER
plant and equipment (43,375) (126,469)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, — HE#E -BEMNZEER
plant and equipment FrigsIE 2,827 1,879
Additions of other intangible assets ANEMEREE (25,245) (35,625)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment  HEZAFESAEMEZE
designated at fair value through other WamzRAREZ
comprehensive income FTiSFE - 30,710
Deposit received for disposal of a WEHEGERBIZES
joint venture = 13,529
Bank interest received BUWIRTTH B 3,586 8,394
Interest received on loans to an associate B E R B R
BRzAE 1,908 -
Receipt of repayment of a loan from a third partyli 2155 = HEREBEE - 11,429
Receipt of repayment of a loan to an associate U 2 [A B & /A Bl R Y
BRZER 2,935 =
Receipt of repayment of a loan to a joint venturelt 2[A & & /A IR HHY
EMZEM 3,176 -
Advance of a loan to a joint venture JRERBRIER = (1,046)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEHERZHEFE (54,188) (97,199)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS %&“éﬁﬁ%i TR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 E_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
% 2R
NOTES HKS'000 HK$'000
24 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEZBZzHEHE 43
New bank loans MIBITER = 231,115
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIETEM (195,343) (203,374)
Repayment of other financial liabilities BREMHEEEE (35,372) =
Advance from an intermediate holding company & # R A B B3 1,039 -
Principal portion of lease payments REMRz RE MR (7,217) (5,934)
Interest paid BAFE (159) (4,251)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REEE (FH) EX 2
ACTIVITIES RE& 3 (237,052) 17,556
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREZEALVFE
EQUIVALENTS (304,996) (79,832)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHZRE&RREEE 914,072 990,386
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ BEXEH 234 14,043 3,518
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBERAEEE
AT END OF YEAR 623,119 914,072
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREZELRZDN
CASH EQUIVALENTS 26
Cash and bank balances RERRTEE 429,369 596,322
Non-pledged time deposits with original BEERIABFE=EAZ
maturity of less than three months EIERTEHED
when acquired 193,750 317,750
623,119 914,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
(the “Company”) is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors of the
Company regard Aviation Industry Corporation of China,
Ltd. (incorporated in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC")) as its ultimate parent. The registered office of
the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda. The head
office and principal place of business is located at Unit
A, 20/F, Tower 2, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) were mainly involved in the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.
The Group's existing policy is consistent with the agenda
decision of the Committee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and
the agenda decision of the Committee in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
the related Amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 20217

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)°

2.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERAEEMBERESELN ((EE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BIREER)) 28T (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not EBEMERERZ T RRIETE
yet effective (continued) BIBHREERN @)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting HHEGTEL R TR
and HKFRS Practice Policies? BRI K
Statement 2 ERMBRE

ZRBHAEER2

i

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting HEGTEL BEMESCER’
Estimates’ F{ 2 1EE]

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to SR gstEER HNE—XRZE
Assets and Liabilities B2 2 185T C2EERE
arising from a Single BEMEZIEL
Transaction? I

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and HEGTEL EN =R
Equipment — Proceeds B16SR BT H-RTERRA
before Intended Use? Z PR FRIE?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost HEGTEL BIEEEN BT
of Fulfilling a Contract? FI7RZAEET B8 7 kA2

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BEVBREELN SBEUBREE
HKFRSs 2018 — 20207 Z1E5] B ZZ2—N\&F

Epat St Y2
2 FE O
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 1 RIE_—FNBE—H 2 %BBKBZ
2021. FEABEN-
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 AT TEFE—A—HARZERBZ
2022. FEABEN-
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RIEZ=FE—B—HRAZEBBEHEZ
2023. FEABEN-
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 4 NEETHHS BB 2 EERBEE

be determined. 3 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant assets
and liabilities are not recognised due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

2.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-
of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to HK$281,113,000 and HK$311,018,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing
the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KREMBHRRZIGREEREKX

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BETECR

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 FEUBHRRZIGNEE
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been REMBRERDIRBESESE
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by MAGERZEEMBREE
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of B ARG S IFRERM
the consolidated financial statements, information S HAFEEAENEREL
is considered material if such information is EFEAEFELIAR IBRE
reasonably expected to influence decisions made BB R EE K LI SRS R
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated B RO IEH AR S MR
financial statements include applicable disclosures (TEMmHRA) REBREEG
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of PR ERI B A1 25 o

Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of PHUEG S BRRE > XA T
approving the consolidated financial statements, EECEBRALERERENE
a reasonable expectation that the Group has BEROUBERAREEZSE - H
adequate resources to continue in operational It HERREE S ERRET
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they RAFESESsER-

continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been RERSHFR GEVHERRE
prepared on the historical cost basis except for REEEHAEERR EET
certain properties and financial instruments that MEKREMRTIERAFTEFE
are measured at fair values at the end of each BRSO (R T XX &S 2 Gt B
reporting period, as explained in the accounting BA) ©

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value FEelA—RERTHRE R
of the consideration given in exchange for goods REFET2REZAFE-
and services.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ”—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs are
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the

valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than

quoted prices included within Level 1, that

are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

Significant accounting policies

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ”—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).
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3.

—T—FFR

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

o lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Goodwill (continued) BE B

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating RHEHRBRESEEBETHIR
unit or any of the cash-generating unit within TELBTANANZEMIRS
the group of cash-generating units, the EEBETR gRETHE R
attributable amount of goodwill is included in REECBERIRBEZEL
the determination of the amount of profit or SH-BEXAEBHERSELS
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of T (NREEEE AN —
an operation within the cash-generating unit BIRSEL BT ANEKR
(or a cash-generating unit within a group of FFEEmEcHEERMEEER
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill (KIREEEET) HAFRBIA
disposed of is measured on the basis of the TELBT (FREELEMH
relative values of the operation (or the cash- A)) oz BEHEE=E

generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the AEEBRAWREBRS ARG
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is ERNBIFMELEZHEZBER

described below. TRt o
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

3.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

3.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFSHZ W (&)
(continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is MR Ea U TER—IER%E Q)
recognised over time by reference to the progress BIREPER R > MUWARI2 R
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant TERETHBEEANEANER
performance obligation if one of the following 15 750 T BE B eI e 52

criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives . EERAEERBEARKRE
and consumes the benefits provided by NS ITERAAEEE
the Group's performance as the Group MR 2 A ;
performs;

. the Group's performance creates or . KEBZENE R MIE
enhances an asset that the customer MELRRAERENR
controls as the Group performs; or ERIZEE ; K

. the Group's performance does not create . KEBZBAOWRESE
an asset with an alternative use to the HEAEEBEERARZ
Group and the Group has an enforceable BE BAEBRARTH
right to payment for performance TRUKEREZSEREY
completed to date. By 2 FRIB ©

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in B WERNE R ESHER S

time when the customer obtains control of the AR 75 BV I RE B BT ©

distinct good or service.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a) Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines
and spare parts is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the aircraft engines and spare
parts.

(b) Provision of repair and maintenance
services for aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the period in which
the services are rendered.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Contract assets

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Definition of a lease (continued)

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of motor
vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Leases (continued) HE &)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEAEBA B
Lease liabilities HEEE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group RIERGBHE  ~AEBIRER
recognises and measures the lease liability at the BARZAHNHEENRERENIR
present value of lease payments that are unpaid BERDIAEHEAEB -NEE
at that date. In calculating the present value of HMEMNRNWRER  HHEERE
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental T EHMET AREER
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date HER®B B HFERIEEERF
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not o

readily determinable.

The lease payments include: MEMREE !

. fixed payments (including in-substance . BEMR (BEEE LR
fixed payments) less any lease incentives Bl % {7 7R) i 1E 1ol FE W AR
receivable; EEE;

. variable lease payments that depend on . BUAR —IBE 8 b X
an index or a rate, initially measured using ZA S ENT Tt
the index or rate as at the commencement EREHAMRKBB RN
date; B A E

. amounts expected to be payable by the . AEBBEHRESZ ST
Group under residual value guarantees; EREEEREE;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if . XEFETSERER T
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise THENBEEEE 21T
the option; and FE; &

. payments of penalties for terminating a . MHEARMRAEREIT
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group FIEERIEEERE B A

exercising an option to terminate the lease. IEHEMX M Z &R
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KROUBRRZIGREEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AR &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Leases (continued) HE )
The Group as a lessee (continued) NEBEREBA (@)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-
of-use assets) when the lease term has changed
or there is a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

HESE #@)

RABARR HEAEHMHE
RERBEMRTLURE-

EHREEECAHNITEEBE
EEENTGLELEEEREAE
EHBAEARETEMNE (I
HWAERMEAREEETHERESE
) EZBERT EAREMN
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SIMEENREBEETHERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Leases (continued) HE &)

The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEAEBA B

Lease modifications HEEN

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a WZEE TSR BlAREREEHE

separate lease if: ENBHRIEFA—BEENEE

EITAK:

. the modification increases the scope of . ZIRE @B MR
the lease by adding the right to use one or — IR ZIHAERE E R
more underlying assets; and BAHBBATHEHE; &

. the consideration for the leases increases . FIEEEE ENRY
by an amount commensurate with the SHEENSHERERKRY
stand-alone price for the increase in FERVEBJEEMS > 1 L% R
scope and any appropriate adjustments REGHNNEREBELY
to that stand-alone price to reflect the ERERETHNEME
circumstances of the particular contract. EiREo

For a lease modification that is not accounted for HRAARABERHEENEE

as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the B REBREMAE EME

lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable, KBTI IRIEKEBTHE
based on the lease term of the modified lease by BN FETRIR  LUBRREEET
discounting the revised lease payments using a HENHBPEMT=HEEE8E
revised discount rate at the effective date of the BEREWHEEES-
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement AEBBBEERERAEEE

of lease liabilities by making corresponding EITHEERE LHHEafEE

adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. TEMETE-
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollars. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and income and expenses items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Foreign currencies (continued) SME ()

The resulting exchange differences are recognised FMEEZEREBEREME
in other comprehensive income and accumulated U5 s P R 0 7S BE R B
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal ERREB-REEBNER (A
of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the HEXAEBRRZBHNEEN 2
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a i WA RKREBIEBINE
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary BB ASINZERI#EE
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial HBOHEERBEEINEENS
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or ST BE AN ER (HR
an associate that includes a foreign operation BRERAMBERE)) B ik
of which the retained interest becomes a REEAABGNEBRER
financial asset), all of the exchange differences ENFTEERERBIDEND
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation fHEiBmo

attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a H U B INER M E LN EM
foreign operation and any fair value adjustments BHERHAZWEELENEE
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities REBRREENERAFEER
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and B AAZEINEBNEE
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated kaff tUWmEXHRE E
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising CHWEREENREMZ2ERG
are recognised in other comprehensive income. 5o

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of MireHERERMS » BING
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries BRrElzREREREMRZIR
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the EREELBHZEXHRES
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash BT BINNB AT N ERNKESR
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the HRZBAERBANRZEEZ
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the FHEXRMEABIT

year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs not eligible for capitalisation
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
These government grants are presented under
“other income”.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others who provide similar services are
measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E
Share-based payments (continued) BRRENT (E)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions RAEERN MRS (&)
(continued)
The fair value of services received determined 2EERLEREFZBERR
by reference to the fair value of share options HEBHNRATFEMEENAR
or ordinary shares granted at the grant date EREBRBNATE ES K
without taking into consideration all non-market FREIEMmZHBIRG) IR
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight- EHAB U E R E 2 P E
line basis over the vesting period or recognised EHNERENSERSES
as an expense in full at the grant date when the AN EEHHAEE RN A
share options or ordinary shares granted vest Wk tEm (REREEE REY
immediately, with a corresponding increase in EEEm EEEEBERNATF
equity (share option reserve). The fair value of the BEREMTESE MERLE
ordinary shares granted shall be measured at the RENAFERXEBREEE
market price of the shares, and the fair value of B k5t o

the share options granted shall be estimated by
applying an option pricing model.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIEMFR > AEBEETEMRB
revises its estimates of the number of options or BHMERRBEENIZEB KRG
ordinary shares that are expected to vest based Nt HERSRENEREDN
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting TERHEENGE -NEEERE
conditions. The impact of the revision of the B RVMGENEE (WA) T
original estimates during the vesting period, if REDEIUNFERERSZ KM
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the BT et WH B EEBIE
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimates, HAEEAEE o

with a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or cancelled
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

When new ordinary shares are issued pursuant to
the award scheme, the fair value of the ordinary
shares granted that vest immediately or without
lock-up period is recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date with corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve). When the ordinary
share awards are granted with lock-up period,
which has same meaning as vesting period, the
fair value of such amounts granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
lock-up period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E
Employee benefits 1ES#EF
Pension schemes BRIAREETE
Payments to defined contribution retirement BERETEARERI 8 XZ
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when NzHBELREECSRERY
employees have rendered service entitling them to m<RE=ZA MHRE R R
the contributions. Fo
For defined benefit pension plans, the cost MEERIBARESAEIME > 12
of providing benefits is determined using the HERNL AT IZBIAST B
projected unit credit method, with actuarial B iEE MRS FERPARE
valuations being carried out at the end of TEEGEE -BEWFESE (B
each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, EREEED BE LREHNE
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect 2 WMER) RFTEEENER
of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) (F) 2 BRI BB AR & B 75
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), R ERA R E MINRIIE R
is reflected immediately in the consolidated EEHAEREMEE R ES -
statement of financial position with a charge or REMEZERGZAAEENEN
credit recognised in other comprehensive income STESREAMNEREBERMNA
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement kB BREEHDEERD-

recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained profits and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment or curtailment
and a gain or loss on settlement is recognised
when settlement occurs. When determining past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit
liability or asset using the current fair value of
plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without
considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the
present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability or asset before plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure such
net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

° net interest expense or income; and
° remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group's defined benefit pension plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of
these contributions to the plan.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

When the formal terms of the plans specify that
there will be contributions from employees or
third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the contributions are linked to service, as follows:

If the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit arising
from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

If contributions are linked to services,
they reduce service costs. For the amount
of contribution that is dependent on the
number of years of service, the entity
reduces service cost by attributing the
contributions to periods of service using
the attribution method required by HKAS
19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits.
For the amount of contribution that is
independent of the number of years of
service, the entity reduces service cost in
the period in which the related service is
rendered.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

3. &5

FE+ZA=t—HLEE

BMBRRZGREBLEREKX

BEHEER (&)

3.2

EXREHEBER (&
1ES#EF (#)

RS RN
MHEE RN EENNERR
HARB PSRRI BIARITIR
TEARESY PR B R R BB
s S —IREBHMBHR
SEAFREXAAFRESAE
ERABIBRAIBRIN

HBREREXIHNEEE  fE
BRESHEN WIER#HE UK

FR) BIEE-

RE
Fﬁ’%ﬁ@%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁkkﬁlﬁ o Bp
AR RIEMR BN B m D HTE
HERHME2E WD E}ZEEE\
HEANESENEEBRNIE

T B R RERRIBTR & 9 5 J
HitheEW@mNEEN SN
EEE:&\

B BEERER  HIRER
BREMARERMIEEBMH
MK (ki) » et R AEBL
ERTERRNRITERERER
REAERBHAKE A HE
BN ESEAE-

141



142

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

AEMERKIZERARAT

Annual Report 2021

—T—FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

3. &5
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for
freehold land, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Taxation (continued) RIE (#B)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax MtEAEBRIETHAREE
for leasing transactions in which the Group RiEAEEEBECHERZN
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related RIEIRIAM S  AEEBLETE
lease liabilities, the Group first determines MEREEEEBERNEREE
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the EXRHEEEE.

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax MRBEBNREERNEEESEN
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, HEXRZME  AEEHEAE
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to BEERMESBEDNERS A
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. G EAEI125RE - HNER
Temporary differences on initial recognition IATESS B 2 > R SR TEH)
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease R ERATEEEEREE
liabilities are not recognised due to application BENGBRERE REHTERE
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary EEaBREEEBITERNEFER
differences arising from subsequent revision to BEEREEAENEREEE
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and TREEIIMEENTZIE
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement RN RNEREERE REME
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that BT HHEARESS

are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or

modification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are BEEHEEHEAELIETHEEATR
offset if and only if there is a legally enforceable B MIEE EHNARIEESE
right to set off current tax assets and current HEREH ABIRLERIBEEENR
tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets IEETR I8 & 1R B [F] — 10 75 1 A
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes BE—ERRERMMBUR R
levied to the same taxable entity by the same BMAER MRERIEE EHIRE

taxation authority. IEIRIEE AR T EARHMKEH
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold lands and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Freehold lands are
not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Y- -BENRERITE (&)
(continued)
Construction in progress represents a building FRIRBEETENEFT EMA
under construction, which is stated at cost less BAERIRE R B Y8R B SR
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. E - ABEGEEETENR
Costs include any costs directly attributable to REEBEREN S ABABLE
bringing the asset to the location and condition P EBENUE RIFHEMEREE
necessary for it to be capable of operating in ENEMRE REBEREE
the manner intended by management and, for ME ABEXEZEBERAEK T
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised. BEIRN TR RERERREE
Construction in progress is reclassified to the MoBEEEBEENYE  BREM
appropriate category of property, plant and RE-ZEEEREEMYESR
equipment when completed and ready for use. EMEENEE T BIEEERTE
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis FREHRTEINE -

as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership EXAEENOERE L KRIE
interests of properties which includes both FRANMEEBEER(EL N
leasehold land and building elements, the entire FoREREERENEREFZ
consideration is allocated between the leasehold HERFELA REAE LA
land and the building elements in proportion to BF 0 2 BET 2D E o 548 R
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To NMoEENTRFER > HE
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments THIRE RN GRS MR LER U
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land fERAREE 2V - ERER
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the AEHEBEE I HIERE R
consolidated statement of financial position. FRARFADEERZEIRE
When the consideration cannot be allocated DEE BIEVMESEEYE
reliably between non-lease building element and i 5= F 5% 4 ©

undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in asset revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant asset revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Investment property REWE
Investment property is property held to earn CEMELHTBRNAS R
rental and/or for capital appreciation, rather than EARIREMTEE 2 MIEA
for use in the production or supply of goods or EXEENHEEEY RN A
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale ETEHAR IR BB ER
in the ordinary course of business. Such property ETHEMBFEZ I HERETF
is measured initially at cost, including transaction o BRAMENBRERE (8
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, BEREBA) st RGBSR
investment property is stated at fair value, which BOREMERRRESHER KM
reflects market conditions at the end of the MRZAFETER

reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair REMELAFEEITMEEZ
value of investment properties are included in the MEREE REEEFEESTA
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the REBmKRA

year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal ERARHEREMEZEM[A
of an investment property are recognised in the HREE RNEANEEFER
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the REEmRE

year of the retirement or disposal.

149



150

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) BEEE (HEFI) (&)

(continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets (continued) NBEEBRTEE (@)

. the ability to use or sell the intangible . FRAINLERLEEN
asset; A7

. how the intangible asset will generate . BEEERRELETRE
probable future economic benefits; KENDNF

. the availability of adequate technical, . AERABEERM  BH Kk
financial and other resources to complete HtERTHK R ERE
the development and to use or sell the ARHEZETLEE &

intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the . RHEEBEREEATFENGE
expenditure attributable to the intangible BT EERGRZNAE
asset during its development. He

The amount initially recognised for internally- MABEENEFEEEMA L

generated intangible asset is the sum of the MRz cEENRBEEEEERX

expenditure incurred from the date when the & LSz 224 HE

intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria EEFfEE 2 AT 5 o M i

listed above. Where no internally-generated NHEERAEED] TR

intangible asset can be recognised, development BLTHRBRPREELRETER
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the R T RB 2B NEE

period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to CNEFEETE R AR R

initial recognition, internally-generated intangible IR ReHRERE W0A) 1

assets are reported at cost less accumulated HREBEHEKE 2 BEEERRB

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses ZEERE

(if any), on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, Y% -BEHNRE EFAEESER
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other BEEE (FHERS) HE
than goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RHRERAR AEB BT
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant FRERBRZYE -BEM
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible RE-CTRAEEEMETEEER
assets with finite useful lives to determine HE UEETZEEERTHR
whether there is any indication that these AR ERIBER o W Z EE M
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any ZENR W EEEEN
such indication exists, the recoverable amount AU ElEZE LU E R E R (1
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to B) =i oBAHEERNER
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if EESBFAREHRAUEREN
any). Intangible assets not yet available for use PR ERETTRE R -

are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be

impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and ME-BENXRE FRAEESE
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible REREE WG S @@
assets are estimated individually. When it is not EHEE EREER G UK
possible to estimate the recoverable amount El&E AAERRGHTZEE
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable FFEBREEE Bt I lE®
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the Ko

asset belongs.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, Y% -BEHNRE EFAEESER
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other BEEE (FERS) HE (&)
than goodwill (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash- WLt EE (AREELETT)
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its ZAWEEERNEKREE
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the WEE (HREELEET) 2K
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to HERREEWEEEE 7k
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets ERGER—BNEESEE
or portion of corporate assets which cannot REELXBETZABBEER
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent DATEEMS  AEB LR
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group —HRTELEZREA (B
compares the carrying amount of a group of FENEEZAREELES T
cash-generating units, including the carrying HNARBENT D AEEE) H
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of ZHREEELEBE T2 KEE
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash- Bo-RNOEEBRESERN BES
generating units, with the recoverable amount of BELESEZHREMNESZ (0
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating BH) WEREE RERESE
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is ERBEx—HREELET
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount HNEEEEZLEAPEEZEEME
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the E-BEZREAEBFAEHHEMR
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the RERFER S ERA QA5
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the 2 HEREEBE WAER &
group of cash-generating units. The carrying T_EENRSE -IESTH
amount of an asset is not reduced below the EEEEENREBESRIZL
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if BIoBEEEE e —HIRSES
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) BINEMEE - BERIERE
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss RIBm FEEd o

that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and to make the sale. Costs necessary
to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Provisions 7BE
A provision is recognised when a present ERBEFEHMELEBNAERS
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as CEESIETE) LA BN BE
a result of a past event and it is probable that BHBERUEBEZERTR M
a future outflow of resources will be required ARG EHEEHE SR QAR
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable IEFERB B o
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
When the effect of discounting is material, the WITIRE BE A BIZTEIRAR
amount recognised for a provision is the present KRMZEBMIEZRAZNR
value at the end of the reporting period of the SR IRERETREBE - BE
future expenditures expected to be required FFfEEEmMEMmATRREER
to settle the obligation. The increase in the REBmRANIAMBASZ

discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to MHEETER REEHARE
the sale of certain products for general repairs IR FE IR — R EE > REE
of defects occurring during the warranty period. SHERERE AERETNZ
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties ERB[UEGREEE THREHE
granted by the Group are recognised based on EURBFEBREREKEZ
sales volume and past experience of the level of KERESR THEENREHIR
repairs and returns, discounted to their present Bo

values as appropriate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the
safety of the products. The Group has general
liability and other insurance policies to cover
product claims. Initial recognition is based on
historical experience. The initial estimate of
product claim costs is revised annually based on
current year’s development of present expected
claims.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

MEMBHRRZBREEREX

BEHER (3
32 BXEGHER @
72 (2

HEMFEANERZLEMRYE
BRNBERRE SRERERR
BEFE - TEECUZFERR
BRBROBEERKREMMRE-
VBB ENBEER - EmM
REH AN RESRIBERE
EEMRARENERERLE
FEITES

EMTR

EEEERASTEGHOMKEN
N—7k SEEBMBEERMY
BRE-FIANEREENLE
MBEEDRISHEERS
REIEREB - EREBENLELS
P& 15 45 Bl 2 18 B P 5% E BY B
BERNETEERNTZHME
EEBEyHE-



-

\ // i

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAR
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Financial instruments (continued) THTE G
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially MEEEARVBEEERER
measured at fair value except for trade receivables FEFE ERESEBEYBERS
arising from contracts with customers which are HAEISKRULTHENER R
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. BHEENEWE SRR o
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to WERETHHREERTFER
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and (BrTEFTABER (MEAF
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or Bt ABml) N BEERE
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or HaaERIN) BEREHZRZ K
loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from KRS HEDEMA T E E
the fair value of the financial assets or financial KA BEBEZ A FERLEFIOEF
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. (MMER) BEHEBREAYF
Transaction costs directly attributable to the Bt ABRNMBEENME
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities SER U 2 32 5 A A BB 5t
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or Ao
loss.
The effective interest method is a method of ERANXEDFAEMHBEEN
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset VHEaBEzZEEAA RS ECE
or financial liability and of allocating interest RAEAE A B WA 2 7575 - BREF
income and interest expense over the relevant XL BEERMBEETE
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that STEHASE B A R R
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts FaREBRRRTR (BEER
and payments (including all fees and points paid MEBEHART D Z2ENHE
or received that form an integral part of the WEHERREBE - RZMER
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other Ha R B3R SRMEEY
premiums or discounts) through the expected TR ZREFEZIFIZE.

life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Financial instruments (continued) TR (#E)
Financial assets MHEE
Classification and subsequent measurement of MBEENDEREBENSE
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following HETWNBRGENTBEEERR
conditions are subsequently measured at REHEN A E

amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business . MBEBREHNRERER
model whose objective is to collect ENZEBEEATHEER
contractual cash flows; and ZHBEE &

. the contractual terms give rise on specified . BRERNIETHBRE
dates to cash flows that are solely Y2REREEAIN
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") rERKRKEEZATH
on the principal amount outstanding. B (MM2ALEHERE R

Bl) e

All other financial assets of the Group are AEBEPMEEMUBEERER

subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at BATESTAEBRTE EARE

initial recognition of a financial asset the Group EoRmERMSEEH

may irrevocably elect to present subsequent Aol et EENEMEE K

changes in fair value of an equity investment mEIMIEFEEENRAE

in other comprehensive income if that equity ENQATEEEES-

investment is not held for trading.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZOMBHRRZEREBEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA #)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@)

Classification and subsequent measurement of VHEENDEREBESE @)

financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held-for-trading if: WREUTERSE BBEEERD

BAREEE !

. it has been acquired principally for the . WEZMBEENETE
purpose of selling in the near term; or BERNRRERARNEE ; %

. on initial recognition it is a part of a . RN L HDE ZHHFE
portfolio of identified financial instruments ERAERHFEIERN
that the Group manages together and EHEEMIEEEGHN
has a recent actual pattern of short-term — &> MEEEB R
profit-taking; or EFWNERER ; &K

. it is a derivative that is not designated and . ZHMBEEWIEIEES
effective as a hedging instrument. HA TR KRB MIEH T

THMTEIR
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HFAMBRRZGHNEEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AR &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA E)
Financial assets (continued) MHEE &

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EKXEIHHE #E

Financial instruments (continued) THTE G

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (B

Classification and subsequent measurement of VHEENDEREBESE @)

financial assets (continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at fair iy HEEARAFESFAHR
value through other comprehensive income temEa (MHeaFE
("FVTOCI") SPAHMEPEWE) B

RATH

Investments in equity instruments at BEAFESAHMEE
FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value WEREATEREY
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they B R FEMNR SR A
are measured at fair value with gains and sFE HER R FEst
losses arising from changes in fair value 2R EMEEIRERE
recognised in OCI and accumulated in the RAERNEBRBERSR
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to TEEBMELERE K
impairment assessment. The cumulative 18 ; BERETREST
gain or loss will not be reclassified to o HERAEENRS
profit or loss on disposal of the equity WamHEEFTEERN
investments, and will be transferred to DEEED MEEHEE
retained profits. BiFmAo

Dividends on these investments in equity EXRAEBRRESBNE
instruments are recognised in profit or R 5 2R 5595k R 1L UER
loss when the Group's right to receive RENRERR  ZERA
the dividends is established in accordance TEARENKRENRER
with HKFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly FRESD ) BRIERR EBEREC
represent a recovery of part of the cost of R U] & 9 1& B Al A Y
the investment. Dividends are included in ERlm - IREStABEA
the “other income” line item in profit or FTEMUEAJITIER ©

loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Financial instruments (continued) THTE G
Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&
Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE
The Group performs impairment assessment FEBEMBREBEEBUBRSEE
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on A9k BT A T BY 1 75
financial assets (including loans to an associate, BEE (BEDBEQAFRENE
loans to a joint venture, trade receivables, other M PEERFRENER B
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, B ZERF s Mt EURBR RN~ FE
bank deposits and bank balances) which are WEIR M E A B RIE RITHEM
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. KiR1T4 7 RIFTRRAEEEE
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting (TTEfREERIE)) BEAETH
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial B G -FEHREESBREENRE
recognition. REHHAEH > AR BIERE

LR B AR E o

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result THEREERBEERNER
from all possible default events over the expected TENTEBaFERAFERARFRR
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, BEREENEHMELENTERS
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the EEEBEEBE -MHEKk12ME5 B
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result EEBEE (T12EBEEHREES
from default events that are possible within 12 181) 5T R E H AR 12ME
months after the reporting date. BRARESEENEBOSHME
TN EHRBEREEEEBNAEAR
B o
Assessments are done based on the Group's FEBREBEAEERBEEES
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for BEREL URBEEHEARE
factors that are specific to the debtors, general AR -ERKERIAERENERE
economic conditions and an assessment of both H BB 89 & Al AR 5 S oK SRR 5 T8
the current conditions at the reporting date as BB ERE L EH A% o

well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for NEB—BEREWE ZIRREE
trade receivables. ReHEREERE-
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the

loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when

there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, the Group recognises

lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime

ECL should be recognised is based on significant

increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Financial instruments (continued) THTE G

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (B

Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE

(continued) 6=}

D) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i) EER AL #)
In particular, the following information BERms TEEaAR
is taken into account when assessing BEABEMNMREEET
whether credit risk has increased FIER
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant . Eirl = O
deterioration in the financial (snEA) KA EB
instrument’s external (if available) or EETRERER
internal credit rating; TRHIBREEE ;

. significant deterioration in external . (RN RO
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. mGEREERER
a significant increase in the credit = flun E U ER TR
spread, the credit default swap NEEEE -8
prices for the debtor; ENEHBHEK

tRIE A0 ;

. existing or forecast adverse changes . ET MBI
in business, financial or economic RABIREXE
conditions that are expected to 5T # & B 78 AR
cause a significant decrease in the BREHBAEBIT
debtor's ability to meet its debt HEBEETHE
obligations; HIRIETEE ;

. an actual or expected significant . BEBEANKE £
deterioration in the operating BERAEHR

results of the debtor; BEE
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTA #E)
Financial assets (continued) WMHEEE &

EIREE B HRE £ FR
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITRETEZMBEEERE
(continued) (#&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

EERBRAIRIEN (&)

BHEANEE K
B KMIRIEE
RAXAHLRE

(i Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i)

o an actual or expected significant o
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological

environment of the debtor that AAMEEFME
results in a significant decrease in REBABITH
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt BEHBEENEED
obligations. KB TP o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

wmm LT ENE RS
il B &K A B A
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &

Financial instruments (continued) THTE G

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&

Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE

(continued) 6=}

(i) Definition of default (i) BOTER
For internal credit risk management, the A EE R EEM
Group considers an event of default occurs = BAEBHIE A IS
when information developed internally or RRER/SNERBETRE
obtained from external sources indicates BATRKAIgEmEHEREA
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its (BEREE) 2EEX
creditors, including the Group, in full. B AEERZ/HELE

HEHo

Irrespective of the above, the Group Nom LB AEER
considers that default has occurred when REUHEEDRHRBB
a financial asset is more than 90 days past 90KKF BB EIEN
due unless the Group has reasonable and RIEREEEGE KA
supportable information to demonstrate THRHNENZBHRER
that a more lagging default criterion is NENZEEEAERL

more appropriate. S E s o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

MEMBHRRZBREEREX

=R

SR (@)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) BEREHBER @)
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTA #E)
Financial assets (continued) MHEEE #E)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when

BAIRBEEAM RS ZERFEI

ETRESHEZ M BEERE

#)

(i) EEREMBEE
MHEEEEEE AN

one or more events that have a detrimental MEHZMBEENG
impact on the estimated future cash flows TR RIRE R E KA
of that financial asset have occurred. MEENEHFHIRE
Evidence that a financial asset is credit- BRE-MBEELIRE

impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the

ERENZEECRERMH
THEHRAIBRRAE

(@ BEITAZMERA
EBERNYHBE
B

by EBREH WMED
HBHIEM) ;

(0 BRABERA
E % K g m A/
B R B B9 4SO X
aMERMmPE

borrower a concession(s) that the FTAMEERA
lender(s) would not otherwise KAgEREWE
consider; or 1

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

(d) fE™ AR A BERE
A E 5 H fth B
BEME-
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @

Financial instruments (continued) THTE #)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@)

Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE

(continued) (#&)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv)  HMEHEER
The Group writes off a financial asset ERERNETRRZHA
when there is information indicating that B 1Y B B8 B B R B e
the counterparty is in severe financial EERUEFR (FE032
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect SHAFEEFRAEMR
of recovery, for example, when the ARERR) B A&H
counterparty has been placed under BB BEE KEE
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy FEEREZ WaH) B
proceedings. Financial assets written 1 55 B9 BF 75 & & BT BE 1
off may still be subject to enforcement BiRAEBRWEREF R
activities under the Group's recovery 5 BE I o M35 8 L BUHE T
procedures, taking into account legal REIE-ERERBUBIE
advice where appropriate. A write-off B P REST

constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZENEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS K &

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EKXEHE @)
Financial instruments (continued) ZHTE #)
Financial assets (continued) VHEEE &

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
Trade receivables with significant balances/
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. For other trade receivables,
the Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, and forward looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

ARBEEBM RS ERHE
ETREMEZMBEERE
#)

(v) FEREIRBHEES
B
SARETEREERIERAE
HWEEER BABKLE (A
HEEBONBREE)
REXEGBRE - EL
BRREHNBRENFT
iy 1R 3% FE 2 88U Ko Al R
MERFL - RHREEES
1B B9 (& 5t & R L 3% A A
FEANRRNEERFER
MEBEMEEN QD
BERMESR - FEEK
e/ EERENER
8 7 iRk B 8 B 5T {4 78
HEE/mE - ENHEHME
WE SRR AEBRA
AITRREZE M RAESE
L ETEEERRE
ERsthBEEEEE
KBENBANHICE
PLA S E BBl S
AIBEMEE R -

— RS > B E A
BRBANERNEER
MFA SNBSS RER
FEEBHRRNES
B MR 1A
Y 5 £ B 1 T B0 B D R
ZIFH o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Financial instruments (continued) THTE G
Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&
Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B R SR FTE
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 EITREEZ M EEERE
(continued) (#&)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) ATERERTEREES
(continued) 1B (&
Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are FENE ZERARNEZETE
considered on a collective basis taking into HEEBEZEENEH
consideration past due information and B KEREEERD
relevant credit information such as forward REEREREEZRE FIWAE
looking macroeconomic information. For BHEREREER BT
collective assessment, the Group takes into ETERN AERE
consideration the following characteristics HMEDAREETUT
when formulating the grouping: B
. an actual or expected significant . Erc: =R
deterioration in the financial (A FARIE
instrument'’s external (if available) or AR meE R
internal credit rating; FEHRREEEL;
. Past-due status; . AR AR AE
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; . BEHEAWEE R
and BRITE &
. External credit ratings where . A A SNERE A
available. STaR ©
The grouping is regularly reviewed by DHIKEEETEH
management to ensure the constituents of 5T AR R & A R AR 17
each group continue to share similar credit EEAEBUEERR

risk characteristics. B o
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KREMBHRRZGREEREKX

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEER (&)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EXEIHHE @
Financial instruments (continued) 2HTA #)
Financial assets (continued) MBEE (@)
Impairment of financial assets subject to BRI E B IR & 2R $B99E
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 ETRENM S MBEEERE
(continued) (#&)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross MEWMARMBEEENERERT
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the BB EMHBFEEEER
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case & BZIER T HE WA IR
interest income is calculated based on amortised BENEHEMAH
cost of the financial asset.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or KEBRRBETREDIFAAEETH
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments TENRBEWRGDHEE 55
by adjusting their carrying amount, with FAEARFKEE HEERKREZR
the exception of trade receivables and other R ELAth IS AR TR BR SN - EABFE
receivables where the corresponding adjustment BEE B SRR ERER

is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEEUBHRRIZEHEEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g5HHE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 32 EAEHEK &
Financial instruments (continued) THTE G
Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&
Derecognition of financial assets BRIFFESR B EE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only ZERBEENNRERENSE
when the contractual rights to the cash flows HRER R ER > AR EEGS
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the BEURKRENREEMBRENE
financial asset and substantially all the risks and Ao EARREREBERES —
rewards of ownership of the asset to another B FRIEERYEEE-
entity.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at P& DR EHEMATEN
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s MHREER - BEEREEHEBENR
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration RENEBERBREPER

received is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity REIEEIANEEBEREEY
instrument which the Group has elected on B EEFIOREIEER YL
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon BRAREAFTESAHEMEE
application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or WRstENRATERER &L
loss previously accumulated in the revaluation ARBEGEHETRTHNERIK
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is mREBETEEMNEERT

transferred to retained profits. EEEBEERE RN
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade
and other payables, amounts due to intermediate
holding companies and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

4= AH

MEUBRRZBREEREKX
Bt (@)

EREHER (@)
EHMTA #)
MHaERED
DDA NS

BHEAREIERGNLZHE
B URMBERERRETARN
EEMOBAMBRENED -

BATH

RAEATAREHRFEREER
piEm (EHBREMRMBER B
FAEH - BEATETHRE
TERBBBFAEMENRE
BETREAR.

AREEREARATRAERE
REDEBROK xR E
MBE -HE -BTHAEHEE
AT ARBmESERRES-

BREHA A RNV B AR

FEBENVMHEREREES R
HMEERR - BN EERA
BMERIRITEE  HEXAE
BRR R LGB A E -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
at the date a derivative contract are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Derivative liabilities are included in the line item
“other financial liabilities”. The resulting gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

3. &5

BMBRRZGREBLEREKX

BEHEER (&)

3.2

BEAGEE &

THTH (&)

PMHEaErER &)
RIFHESRMEas
EREEAERNSTEMRRG
BCHS R EAR ) REE H R IERE
D FEB - RIEBINTHE
EREEEAENHECSREN
EZRT R B E PR

TEEMTA

MEITBRVIERITLTES
NEHNATERS  HBREM
MUERBEERRN L TEFE-
TEaBstATHMP BE R
ﬁIEE FEESEE’JLI& NSNS

Ba
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

4.

RS A RSt A EERER
ZEERE

EUAEENGAHEREN B2
BAREMFATHRNEERS A
B R (B L JU B~ 531 R B8R o £ 3t
R AR B 1R 30 1R 408 1 AT BR e 8 38 25 18
B2 LA R 1 1 o B IR AE R R B
R o

BRIt RBEARKRANEIE &
BEIRFEZETHNE > §5tEEH
BTN ZET B RS ; U ZE
SR BRI KRR B EETH
Ko R SR HA R RE 50 o

P& FA & 51 ECSR By Y R 6 1 i

B0 R fdst (RTX) I LT BEAT
EFEERAER S HRRNBESD
EHRREMBREAEINESEER
EARTENRRAE-
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment property that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the investment property and concluded that
the Group’s investment property is not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time. Therefore, in
determining the deferred taxation on investment
property, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment property measured using the fair value model
is recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes
in fair value of investment property as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes of
the investment property on disposal.

Estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

4.

RS A RSt A EERER
ZEERR (B

FEFR & 5t BRI BV RR R F i (42

R EYE BB E

M EERATERAFENREY
FFFEENELEREMS  *AFE
FERNKREVETHEAEERARE
YA IELL S T BE & B R ATE FE
EREVEQSZEBARABO KB o
2BERAFE AL EEEREY
ERIELERIAR  ARBEFRR U
ATERAFENREDEZREE
PR HE MUK E R RRALIL - NEE
WARRRENDEN R FEESHESDE
PHEERE  RARAEEBAM D
EREMENRTFEESBMEIMAPR
"o

hEt A EEREER

UTHREBESHRERARKNEIZRR
REFAEERNZNEMEZRR
ZEBRRRFTEERARAEREER
THMRFEEEREGEREELRIR
ERABNERRR -
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment loss under ECL on trade receivables

The Group uses both provision matrix and individual
assessment to determine ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. Trade receivables with significant balances are
assessed for ECL individually.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group'’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

4.

RS A RSt A EERER
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment loss of other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated amortisation, accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the management has to exercise judgement
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs,
including allocation of corporate assets (if any) when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash-generating units, for
which the relevant corporate assets (if any) have been
allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the future cash flows or discount rates, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
an impairment loss of HK$6,428,000 (2020:
HK$85,274,000) was recognised on other intangible
assets which are impaired individually. Details are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

4.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment loss of other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets subject to impairment assessment
were HK$1,564,078,000 (2020: HK$1,657,066,000),
HK$458,727,000 (2020: HK$481,329,000) and
HK$289,033,000 (2020: HK$301,528,000), respectively.
Details of the impairment assessment of the relevant
cash-generating units are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions, including the potential risk of any market
violation, policy, geopolitical and social changes or
other unexpected incidents as a result of change in
macroeconomic environment, or other unexpected
incidents would result in changes in the fair values of
the Group’s investment property and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BAREGFHIERGFTAEERER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERE #E)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) T RERER (&

Fair value of investment property (continued) REYELFE (B

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the NI —F+"A=+—H &x&
Group's investment property is HK$123,800,000 (2020: EiEY %= 2 IREE45123,800,000%
HK$128,200,000). 7T (ZEZF 4 1 128,200,000 7T) ©

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Uxz~Hithig A ~ EthFH R A8
AND LOSSES

An analysis of revenue, other income, other gains and W~ Et A~ EAE R EE D
losses is as follows: W
2021 2020
—EZ—F “ETEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts REEFEHNZWE

with customers
Sale of aircraft engines transferred at N EREBZLERE >

a point in time IR 2 HE 707,931 701,154
Sale of spare parts transferred at REREREB 2 EHHZ

a point in time HE 580,191 451,753
Rendering of services transferred PERF B8R 2 RS 2 IR

over time 128,287 93,902

1,416,409 1,246,809




184

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

APEEMZERR R AR AR
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (continued)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30
days from delivery.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for
aircraft engines

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from completion of the services and
customer acceptance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) for provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines as at 31
December are as follows:

5.

W ~ ELAthUL A ~ B fthF) R 548
(#)

BHEE
FEBBNEEERBFRNOT -

HEREZEER T

BHEERRYER®BTH > BUMX
BERNRZEIORAEH -

TEHRE BB IE (R EIRTS

BHNEEMEHRGEEEZENL BN
MEERETHRRSERER BEWE30
RAEIH -

R+ZA=+—HniR Rz
HERERBOIKEFHTERNEME R
ZER BN REMN) IR ZER TR
T

2021 2020
—E-—fF  C—BC-F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amounts expected to be recognised FEHB G FERE BY
as revenue; W EEE .
Within one year —F R 8,139 8,192
After one year — &% 29,253 28,935
37,392 37,127
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AND LOSSES (continued)

Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of repair and maintenance services for

aircraft engines (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the

remaining performance obligations disclosed above

relate to repair and maintenance services for aircraft

engines, of which the performance obligations are to

be satisfied within five years. The amounts disclosed

above do not include variable consideration which

is constrained. All the amounts of transaction prices

allocated to the remaining performance obligations for

sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

are expected to

be recognised as revenue within one year.

W ~ ELfthU A ~ EfthF) R g548
(#)

BHEE &)
TR BB IEIRBIRES (B

EXFRBENRZERT Y REN
AEREMPREESRECRER
BB TENET LS EIERE
RRFIAENB-FrB L E MK
BB DEER TEOEENR
DERTHEBARARN -—SRAEIRK

2%,
iy

2021 2020
T —F T F
HKS'000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Other income Hik A

Bank borrowings forgiven (note) RTEERE KaL) 57,559 =
Bank interest income RITH B UA 3,586 8,394
Distributorship fee income DB A 775 775

Interest income on loans to an associate M= ATIRENERZ
B WA 448 550

Interest income on loans to a aaE A BRENERZ
joint venture M EUA 285 -
Service fee income RFBEUA - 8,525
Others HAth 697 4,400
63,350 22,644
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, as part of the Kzt BE_S-_—®+_-_A=+—8I=E

US federal government’s PPP to support

entities to continue

paying salary to their workers, the Group’s bank borrowings

with a carrying amount of HK$57,559,000 were forgiven as

the Group had fulfilled the conditions as required by the US

federal government which includes, amongst other things,

maintaining employees and compensation at required

levels.

o F 7 & B B = B R U 23R
Bt (EH T BEERPIRE KT
B R B R Bl) » d 1F 7 5= B Bk FR I
AN EEREBEXNE T TIEN
HERESIN -8 FEBERE
857,559,000 8 cHRITHE R T
%o
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5.

AR e MR R MY EE

W ~ ELAthUL A ~ B fthF) R 548

AND LOSSES (continued) #)
2021 2020
—E-—fF TEIERF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other gains and losses H #5148
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 18 {F & & B & A 5 2 F) 38 11,790 767
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment B518 (7,866) (58)
Fair value gain (loss) on other financial Ef#FHE&aE 2 AFEFNE
liabilities (note 38) (B518) (B75238) 12,525 (47,897)
Fair value loss on an investment KREMEZ N TFEER
property (note 15) (1z%15) (4,400) (23,300)
Foreign exchange differences, net ShEE R EREIRER (10,083) 19,225
1,966 (51,263)
2021 2020
—E”—F —E2TEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Impairment losses under expected TAHREEBEERETZ
credit loss model, net of reversal: REREREE 2 FEE .
— trade receivables —EWE ZERR (426) (5,510)
— other receivables —HMEWARRR 2,931 16,066
— aloan to a joint venture —HEEREIRENER 1,832 =
4,337 10,556
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OPERATING SEGMENT

Information reported to the chief executive officer of the
Group, the chief operating decision makers (“CODM")
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on type of goods or
services. The Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business, which is engaged in the design, development
and production of general aviation aircraft piston
engines and spare parts as well as the provision of
aftermarket services and support for piston engines.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss before
tax, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax.
The adjusted loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's loss before tax except that certain
income, gains and losses, administrative expenses and
share of results of an associate are excluded from such
measurement.

The CODM make decisions according to operating
results of the segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM do
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.

6.

REE

mOEBERRFEDBREMALE
EITHEHMNETBEERRE (T2
MERRE) BENERAIEREm
WARFBEOERE - AEEEE —EF K
EHNEESH MBAMERKEE
LHRET O USEAMERESE
BIRRBEFIRT RAEREE X
R E RSBV ERRT RS

EEEEORERTERXFT NI
EFR URENADEERKFEER
RN BRBDRBEHERRAEG
BMtBZ AR MWHRIWATBER
EHET - B ERRABIRZE
HERAAEBRRRAGE —B ES
FRAMERBE-THREEER
Rt ERT ZEZERANEER
ZEtEHe

TERERRERBEDBKEXE
EHARR -HRETELERREBILIF
EHERDBEERDBEBRRE
MEDERERRTERER B ES
HmEFER Z oo AL E25] 058
Wz e 73 BB SR AR o
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable operating segment for the year

ended 31 December.

REDE (&

UTABE+T_A=+—HLEFER
ERRGERFEERAZRZIKEEDR

EHZ 4o

General aviation
aircraft piston

engine business Total
BRAMEREEREDNER EL
2021 2020 2021 2020
- TITHE EZ-F ZIZF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FE7T FET FET FET
Segment revenue: SERE
Sales to external customers WIMNIRPIHE 1,416,409 1,246,809 1,416,409 1,246,809
Segment results R (23,403) (801,551) (23,403) (801,551)
Unallocated other income RABEEAMEA 4,260 9,294
Unallocated other gains and RAEEMA B REE
losses 14,080 563
Unallocated administrative ANETHEEER
expenses (15,597) (15,645)
Share of results of an associate ~ MAHE AT XE (4,130) (1,191)
Loss before tax FiAiEE (24,790) (808,530)
Other segment information: HittrHEM .
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ ¥ -BEMNREZINE
and equipment 45,985 60,106 45,985 60,106
Unallocated depreciation XOECIE 30 25
46,015 60,131
Depreciation of FREEEZINE
right-of-use assets 15,834 16,380 15,834 16,380
Amortisation of other Htmp EE 2 #H
intangible assets 87,094 88,009 87,094 88,009
Capital expenditure* NG 68,587 162,081 68,587 162,081
Unallocated capital expenditure ~ R EEARREE 33 13
68,620 162,094
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * EAESTOEREYE -HEMDE

and equipment and other intangible assets.

REMBTLEE -
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

6.

IS8R (4
HERH

(@) FKESEHEF K

2021 2020

—E-—fF _E_EFE

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

USA E=H 1,111,230 948,125
Europe B 188,490 191,076
Others Hih 116,689 107,608
1,416,409 1,246,809

The revenue information above is based on the

location of the customers.

Non-current assets

FHERmERRERERZ

PRIEME 7 o

b) FRBEE

2021 2020

—E-—fF TETEE

HKS’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

USA ESE 1,785,853 1,865,104
Europe B 540,024 589,598
Hong Kong 5% 123,849 128,246
Mainland China oY el 20,446 12,131
2,470,172 2,595,079

The non-current asset information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes

financial assets and deferred tax assets.

LHIFRBEEENREE
ZPREMEI D TABEMBE
EREERESE-
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E et

—=

—F+ZA=+—AILEE

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which

individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue, is set out below:

REDE (&

FERXRZEH

KESFEERZWEZET W T #
FRLEREBRRT Z10%I U E

2021 2020

—E-—4F TETEE

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A ZEA 454,569 320,549

Customer B EEB 230,114 165,965

Customer C BRC 210,587 242,137

FINANCE COSTS BRI

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBRAZSMWT

2021 2020

—E—% “ETFF

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Interest on bank borrowings RTEEZFE 159 4,216

Interest on lease liabilities HEsBZHFE 14,268 14,500

Other interest expenses HMEZH 133 35

14,560 18,751




W

%

i

///\
N

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

AEMZERRZERAERAF
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 8.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong during both years. Taxes on profits

assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which

the Group operates.

FRISIREZ (%)

P E 0 BN A & E I E AR
BRREBEBZERRad B #EFY
EBANCEGNEF HMMERRR G
MZREAXEAERCEMERAR
S ERRNERZIREGTHE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Current — Hong Kong: BhER—&F % ¢
Underprovision in prior years BEEEZEERE = 99
Current — Elsewhere: BPER—Hthh (& -
Charge for the year KEMAE 10,386 4,493
Under(over) provision in prior years BEFEZBEIR
CBZBH) 3,258 (968)
Deferred tax (note 36) EIEIRTA (M1 5E36) 17,538 (55,416)
31,182 (51,792)
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 8.

(continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense (credit) applicable to
loss before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense (credit)

FRISINE (E%) (@)

BAERRARETEMBELABMERR
SEBRHZEERE
MATEGENIRERX (ER) BAFIZ
BRMEXZNERS (%) 2 HRN

ST EBEAR R

at the effective rate for the year is as follows: S ¢
2021 2020
—EB_—F “ECE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Loss before tax FRIR AT B8 (24,790) (808,530)
Tax at the statutory tax rates of BREEREEMREAEL
respective entities MI1E (3,930) (215,925)
Tax effect of share of results of DEBEREESE Y
an associate Mg 1,032 106
Effect of withholding tax on BINRME K E iﬂﬂ’]
interest income from the USA FEWANEE 7,040 4,371
Under(over) provision in respect of BEFEZEBEIE
prior years CEEZT)) 3,258 (869)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAFHRMAZRBEEZE
tax purpose (22,571) (3,744)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ AR MBI HRFFE
for tax purpose 7,851 3,935
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER TN R R ERE T
differences not recognised or reversal  #[E 4 BTSRRI BRI NN ER
of deductible temporary differences RHEEZMBEEE
previously recognised 16,032 106,348
Tax effect on tax losses not recognised  RFERIN TS E5 1B, B 0]
or reversal of tax losses previously STHIFEER E’ﬁﬁ?%!&ﬁ?ﬁ
recognised 2B E 22,470 53,986
Income tax expense (credit) for the year ZEFFEMREAx (E&%) 31,182 (51,792)
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9. ZEFEE
The Group's loss for the year has been arrived at after REEAFHEENE
charging:
2021 2020
—T-—F —EBEF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold* HEFEE Z A 984,370 942,894
Cost of services provided* RHARFE =2 B4 * 75,433 83,438
Write-down of inventories* FaRE* 8,197 38,278
Provisions: B
Additional provision (note 32)** KBONEE M (7aE32) > 76,906 94,445
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BEREZEZINE
equipment (note 13) (H1z%13) 46,015 60,131
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE (Wit14)
(note 14) 15,834 16,380
Amortisation of other intangible assets EthE & & > #84
(note 17) (H1z£17) 87,094 88,009
Employee benefit expense EERMER
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIZEFH =)
Wages and salaries ITEM#HE 208,768 233,668
Retirement benefits and BRIRIEF] B R **
contributions*** 16,177 14,303
Defined benefit schemes (note 37) TE2ERA T8 (HaE37) 3,369 3,201
228,314 251,172
Auditor’s remuneration Z NN = 3,745 3,295
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9.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (continued)

*

* %

*kKk

Included in “cost of sales and services” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

On 18 December 2020, the Group’s subsidiary, Continental
Aerospace Technologies GmbH (“CG") released a Service
Bulletin to replace certain of its products due to safety
concerns. The total estimated cost of HK$51,003,000,
which was for the disassembly of the engines,
transportation to CG, replacement of affected parts at CG,
and reassembly of the engines and testing, was charged
to the profit and loss in the prior year and included in
provisions. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
total estimated cost of HK$40,539,000 was for a legal case
which relates to product liabilities and included in product
claim provision. The legal case has been finalised and
settled during the year.

Retirement benefits and contributions of the Group include
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme in the PRC, and
the social security expenditure in Germany.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension scheme in future years (2020: Nil).

9.

gt

MENTS 45 & BA 73R R MI5E

TFEEHER (&

*

* %

** Kk

BEFFEEEZRT MIEE RRE K
IR ©

R ZEBEZZEHE+ A+ NH K&
& 2~ Bff B A B]Continental Aerospace
Technologies GmbH (ICGJ) HN L2
ERBHRBRAS UEBRETER
st & A% 451,003,000 b
ABIFHSIE - BHECG NCCERT
FETUH -BENARSIERAFE NE
FRBZIRLAABEB RBEEZ
T F+ZHA=+—HLEFE &
5H48 AL 24540,539,00078 7T 4 B B A &
EERNERRESG U AERRE
BE - ZLERGERENBTERE
Ro

FEBEZEBRREBHNRERBEEEZ
AR E S8 PEZ B ZOR KB EH
BB HERES Y -

R ZE_—F+ZR=+—H &%
B 3 R AT e B 0% Wi R B) A 1R OB A R
REEZERREFHEIER (CTEZE

&
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EFRITHERZME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BIE L HRAUREBEABEN AT
to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the Hong BEZFNESHEWT !
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—% —ETFF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fees W 1,300 1,300
Other emoluments: HME -
Salaries, allowances and HE N EBREYA G
benefits in kind 3,547 3,356
Retirement benefits scheme BRREFE B R R
and contributions 174 101
3,721 3,457
5,021 4,757

(a) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

(@ FWIFRITEE
REAZNTFEBILFERNTES

directors during the year were as follows: ZHREBWT !
2021 2020
—E”_—F —BCEF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Chu Yu Lin, David 2l 360 360
Li Ka Fai, David FRHE 360 360
Zhang Ping R 280 280

1,000 1,000

195



196

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

(a)

(b)

4 A,
g =

P TS ER R MY 5L

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EBERITHERZME &
REMUNERATION (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (@) FWILIEMITEE &
(continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the 7R P9 I de A FE (T 08 L 3F
independent non-executive directors during the HITESENNE CEEE .
year (2020: Nil). ®) o
The emoluments disclosed were for their services FriRENMEAREIEAER
as directors of the Company. BlEETIRMHRVARTS o
Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) MITEBRIIFNITES
Director
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e Bk BRESER
ik BYNE HEfETR i & 42 %8
2021 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
—E_-fF FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: g%
Lai Weixuan BEE 36 - - 36
Huang Yongfeng BBl (W_2Z—-F
(appointed on 25 —B-_+hBEEZM)
January 2021) 33 - - 33
Fu Fangxing (resigned ~ BAHE (RZEZ—£F
on 25 January 2021) —BZ+HB#HD) 3 - - 3
Jiao Yan (appointed on  E& (RZZ-—F
30 August 2021) NE=+HEZ®) 12 - - 12
Yu Xiaodong FHEH 36 2,037 156 2,229
Zhang Zhibiao RERMIBZ—F
(resigned on 30 NBZ+HET)
August 2021) 24 = = 24
Zhao Yang #Hi% 36 1,510 18 1,564
180 3,547 174 3,901
Non-executive Director:  JEfTESE !
Chow Wai Kam Bz 120 - - 120
300 3,547 174 4,021
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive Directors and Non-executive

Director (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

10. EFRITHERZME (&

(b) BITEZFRIFRTESE @

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
FEEME BARREF
wE BYA & BE i
2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
_ECEF FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Lai Weixuan BEE 36 = = 36
Fu Fangxing BhE 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong TR 36 1,847 83 1,966
Zhang Zhibiao REE 36 - - 36
Zhao Yang ke 36 1,509 18 1,563
180 3,356 101 3,637
Non-executive Director:  JFHfTES !
Chow Wai Kam B&% 120 - - 120
300 3,356 101 3,757

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The non-executive director’'s emolument shown
above was for his services as director of the
Company and the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2020: Nil).

EXRFAITHATEENE AR
ENEBXARAREEREH
PR BV AR5

ERATHIERATESETHES
BRER/AERBDRAEBESFR
RHAIIRTE

FARMERMNESFHREARE
BEEUNEzZH CEZZ
FiE) -
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11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the

year included one (2020: Nil) director, details of whose

remuneration is set out in note 10 above. Details of

the remuneration for the year of the four (2020: five)

highest paid employees who are not a director of the

Company are as follows:

11.

hamEHES

FRAEAEELAREHEERE—%
(Z2ZZTF B ESF HME=HE
R EXHFI0-AFETNE (TEZF
F:o%) ReFES ULFEERTE
F)ZMEFBEAOT

2021 2020
—E-—%F —ETEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Basic salaries, allowances and HAFHE - ZMEREYH G
benefits in kind 8,133 13,749
Performance related bonuses T EERIFMERITEAL 2,900 950
11,033 14,699

The number of non-director highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

MEE T HEEZESHIEEEES
AL

Number of employees

EBEA#

2021 2020
—E-—F TETERE

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BT E
2,000,000 75 1 S

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TE
2,500,0007 7 1 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE
3,000,0007 75 1 2

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 B7TE
4,500,000 ¢ 1 1
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LOSS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

=1 i
SREFFASENRKSATEE
BEFEAREAEEERENDS
78 B2 TR E -

BREXEENFAELRE

2021 2020
—EB_—F “ECEF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity BREEBEERFTEA
holders of the parent FE{L 518 (55,972) (756,738)

Number of shares

EdnES¢=]
2021 and 2020

—E—FRIZEZEH

Weighted average number of ordinary /2317 E @R 2 NAE

shares in issue during the year EHE

9,303,374,783

No diluted loss per share for both 2021 and 2020 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in
issue for both 2021 and 2020.

AR E_—FR_ZEEFHRE
TEBREET AT —FK
“ETFHEIIREREBEERIE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZE - —F+"H=+—HILFE

4 A
g =

P TS ER R MY 5L

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -BEMRE
Furniture Machinery
Freehold Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
Lands Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
KAR#LY #F HE%E GIREE BENRE HE TRIR Eh
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
AT FEr TET FEr FEr FEr Fér FEr
osT e
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ%5-F-H 10,337 28,119 62,821 3,204 239,336 1,618 179,606 525,041
Additions RE S o S 13 1,675 S 124,781 126,469
Transfers i = = 3,158 = 59,390 = (62,548) =
Disposals HE (1,599) = - (548) (2,445) - - (4,592)
Exchange realignment ERBE 1,125 2,449 - - 10,734 - 95 14,403
At 31 December 2020 and RI3ZFE+2A=1+-Bk
1 January 2021 “5--£-5-A 9,863 30,568 65,979 2,669 308,690 1,618 241934 661,321
Additions RE = = o 33 3,140 o 40,202 43375
Transfers & = = 2,400 = 86,225 = (88,887) (262)
Disposals tE = = (27) = (28,034) = (489) (28,550)
Exchange realignment EREE (505) (1,805) - - (7,649) - (66) (10,025)
At 31 December 2021 W_E_-£+ZA=t+-A 9,358 28,763 68,352 2,702 362,372 1,618 192,694 665,859
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ~ EBHTERHME
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 R-E-2E-B-7 = 857 8,494 3,147 100,045 1618 = 114,161
Charge for the year (note 9) RERS (Hz9) - 2,061 7,148 25 50,897 S S 60,131
Disposals HE - = = (548) (2,105) = = (2,653)
Exchange realignment ERBE - 430 - - 7,923 - - 8,353
At 31 December 2020 and RZBEZEE+ZA=1+-Ak
1 January 2021 “5--£-F-A - 3,348 15,642 2,624 156,760 1,618 - 179,992
Charge for the year (note 9) KERF (9 - 1,198 7213 30 37,574 - - 46,015
Disposals tE = = (27) = (17,830) = - (17,857)
Impairment loss recognised in RERREDAESE
profit or loss - - - - 5,528 - - 5,528
Exchange realignment EREE - (466) - - (6,080) - - (6,546)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--£+ZA=+-A - 4,080 2,828 2,654 175,952 1,618 - 207,132
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 December 2021 B-E--#+-A=t+-A 9,358 24,683 45,524 8 186,420 - 192,694 458,727
At 31 December 2020 RIBZFE+ZA=1+-H 9,863 21,200 50337 45 151,930 - 241934 481,329
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-BEMZE &
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, PR AER I RERITRESN Lt
except for freehold lands and construction in progress, ME-BENREBEEEEZS ERGE
after taking into account the residual values, are BE U TFERUEFEFIRITE ©
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:
Buildings 3% - 31/3% BF 3%-31/3%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms HEHEE THHR
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33% BILREE 20%-33%
Machinery and equipment 4% — 50% e E 4%-50%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25% AE 20%-25%
During the year, impairment loss was recognised to FRoRAERETEESFEIRILE &
certain property plant and equipment with carrying TYE -BERZEEDBRERE H
value of HK$5,528,000 (2020: Nil) due to termination of AREIfE 735,528,000 (ZE 2 .
certain production plans of the Group. ") o
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. ERAEEE
Leasehold Motor
Land Buildings vehicles Total
HELH 1BF RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 A ZETFE—F—H 8,174 308,995 519 317,688
New leases WEE - - 202 202
Depreciation charge (note 9) WERS (17329) (127) (15,745) (508) (16,380)
Exchange realignment [ERAE - - 18 18
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 RIEZEHF
January 2021 +ZA=+-8%
“E--&—-HF—H 8,047 293,250 231 301,528
New leases wHEE - 2,256 1,131 3,387
Depreciation charge (note 9) &R (Wat9) (127) (15,353) (354) (15,834)
Exchange realignment EREE - - (48) (48)
As at 31 December 2021 R_E_—F
+-R=+—H 7,920 280,153 960 289,033
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14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases leasehold land,
buildings, motor vehicles for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to
75 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
motor vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
premises. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed below.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term of 50 to 75 years
Buildings 2 to 25 years

Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years

14.

ERAEEE (&

RmEFE AEERHSEEHEE LM
BF - AREFEEZA -HEGUNE
EHRBIERTSE  BR]R T XXt
BAIEE R IEEZE - BERRR
BRI B A2ERER > A T BRI AFRE -
B b E AE B R AR L 5T 15 S B S E AR
RER AEEABRASHUNERLH
B S AP SR B BITRIHAMR

AEEBERTE WA R ALK
WMAMETUEHEE - R ZF = —
FR-IBZEF+_RA=+—H &
HEEEHARTXRNEZRBEER
ERNEREEAGES-

ERRAEN AR EENUELH
EATHENT :

EE M S50E75F R EA
BT 2FE )5
RE 2ESHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

14. EREEE &)

leases are as follows:

REmPREBHNESHERTENT

2021 2020

—T-—F —EBEF

HKS'000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Interest on lease liabilities HESGEHNE 14,268 14,500

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (E B EE EZ ITERM X 15,834 16,380

Expense relating to short-term leases HICHRTERRNER 1,244 3,956

Expense relating to leases of low-value EMEBEZEERERRAN

assets, excluding BR TEEREEEE

short-term leases of low-value assets ASHRTRE 927 1,683

Total amount recognised in profit or loss B MR Z 48558 32,273 36,519

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

SFTAGRERERBRNEERER

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: MEERIS -
2021 2020
—E-—%F —ECEF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within operating activities ETEEA (16,439) (20,139)
Within financing activities MEEHR (7,217) (5,934)
(23,656) (26,073)

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of each
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the right-of-
use assets belong, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of these assets individually. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation, details of which
including key assumptions underlying the value-in-use B MIEE16°
calculation are set out in the note 16.

EEZERN G EREEENTRME
TEF AEEGSAREEED AR
BREEEET ((REEEHET)H
Pl Ug (O] &8 - 3R & E £ BT Y A U [E]
CRRECHAEBESEET AREE
(BREEABEFEIRNEIEZRR)
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY KREYE

2021 2020
g% —EZE

HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HZKREE 128,200 151,500
Decrease in fair value NIFE R (4,400) (23,300)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKAE 123,800 128,200

The Group’s investment property consisted of a
commercial property in Hong Kong. The Group's
investment property was revalued based on valuation
performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer. Each vyear,
the Group's chief financial officer appoints an external
valuer to be responsible for the valuation of the Group's
investment property. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and qualification
of external valuer.

The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

During both years, there were no transfers into or out of
Level 3.

AEENKEVELETENBRY
X AEBENKREYERBEHFET
RAEMARAR BUEXSTERMLE
B ETHEEER -BF FEEZ
MBEREZEIBLENEEHAE
BREMEETEE -REFTEGR
WG E S BE BRI G E
BB

NTFERAFEFRE=ZMHRA-

RmEFERN BESANBEE=
AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment
property as at 31 December 2021:

Valuation
Investment property technique
REME HERM

REME (@)

UFAR _E_—F+_B=+—H
KREYEGERMANGEER EARETE
BABIEZHE

Significant
unobservable

Key input inputs

FTEBARE

ERARAIHE
WA

Commercial property Market comparison

approach

EaEkYES M IBEEBUE

Under the market comparison approach, the property
is valued on the market basis assuming sales in its
existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and
by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based
on prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices
of comparable properties. Appropriate adjustments are
then made to account for the differences between such
properties in terms of age, floor level and other relevant
factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in the adjusted unit
price would result in a significant increase (decrease) in
the fair value of the investment property.

Adjusted unit price

0

i

iz
EEE
it

HK$25,063 -
HK$35,579
(31 December
2020
HK$29,321 —
HK$38,024)
per square
foot

FFHER
25,063 7T
35,5793 T

_EBEEF
TA=+—
H 29,3218

JLE38,024%
7T

REBETSLEBE PERTHEEEE
ThEE ERFRRUFERRSHE I
2RERTEIESZAULERBEER
BLLBRDBDERERRSZHZERE
BMEAILEBEZ B2 B ZF
MEZBER - BESEREMBER
RZERFHBERE-

RABBEBEXREEM R RERR
EYENATEARBIEM GHLD)
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16.

GOODWILL

The Group's goodwill acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the following CGUs
for impairment testing:

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
USA CGU ("USA CGU"); and

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany CGU (“Germany CGU")

Management performed the impairment assessment of
USA CGU and Germany CGU with the support of an
independent professional valuer, Duff & Phelps, LLC.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to USA CGU was Nil (2020: Nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised impairment loss to fully write off the
goodwill related to the USA CGU of HK$385,770,000,
which was mainly due to the deteriorated economic
environment as a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to Germany CGU was HK$14,163,000
(2020: HK$14,927,000). During the year ended
31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
determines that there is no impairment on Germany
CGuU.

16.

]
AREEBEBLHTEZERES
BT TR A L B T M T A A
B

nig

BRAMEREIEZZIUES
REENREELEET (TEE
REEEET) ;&

. ERAMTERES T ESFEETR
RERMNREEESE T (ER
HEESXET))

R E M ERMDuff & Phelps, LLC
M T EBERNEERSELE
TREEREEE B TETRET o

A _E_—F+__A=+—H i
EEXEREELECNFIENREE
AT (CEIZF D) BEIEIE
F+-B=+—HLEEFEE  KEER
FREBEUNEZENERAERRSE
H BTN EZ385,770,0008 7T
FTEEMNCOVID-195 15T 8 B
EIRIEREL o

R _E_—F+__A=+—H"H
EFERRESELEANEERT
BE214,163,0008 T (ZE -4 .
14,927,000/ 7m) -RBE_Z-_—F
+ZR=+—HIEFER > AQBE
EECEHRREESBEILLBERE.
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BHE (&)
USA Germany
CGU CGU Total
ERERE ERERE
EEEx EEEx &5t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET FAET
COST ﬁEzIS
At 1 January 2020 A _E_EEFE—H—H 385,770 14,051 399,821
Exchange realignment e R R - 876 876
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZEHF
+-_B=+—H 385,770 14,927 400,697
Exchange realignment P& 2 A %L - (764) (764)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—%F
+-_B=+—H 385,770 14,163 399,933
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2020 RZE2ZZ2HF—A—H = = -
Impairment loss recognised in RERRERIE
the year (385,770) = (385,770)
At 31 December 2020 and A\TETEF
31 December 2021 —l— B=+—HK&
BT —F
+=ZA=+—H (385,770) - (385,770)
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—%F
+—-—H=+—H = 14,163 14,163
At 31 December 2020 N _FF
+=ZBA=+—H - 14,927 14,927

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

are as follows:

SAEEABEMEANEERRUT:

USA Germany

CGU CGU
XERE EERe
EX8x EXEx
Long-term growth rate R EX
31 December 2021 —E—HF+ZH=+—H 2.5% 2.5%
31 December 2020 —ECEF+"HA=+—H 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate ITIREK
31 December 2021 TS —HF+"HB=+—H 14.1% 14.9%
31 December 2020 TE TS+ "HA=+—H 14.6% 15.7%
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

In addition to goodwill above, other intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets
disclosed in notes 17, 13 and 14, that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

The recoverable amounts of both cash-generating
units have been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period for both CGUs. The budgeted
gross margins and annual revenue growth rates
during the forecasted period are determined based
on past performance and the expectations of market
development. The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. The
cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated
using the rates stated above. These long-term growth
rates are based on relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average growth rate after
the forecast period of the industry in which the units
operate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, based on the
above impairment assessment, a full impairment loss on
goodwill for the USA CGU had been recognised in profit
or loss and included in the impairment of goodwill line
item.

Based on the above impairment assessment, no
impairment loss has been recognised on other assets
of the USA CGU or the goodwill of the Germany CGU
during the year ended 31 December 2021 since the
estimated recoverable amount for each of USA CGU and
Germany CGU is above the respective carrying amount
of its assets. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
result in any impairment loss.

16.

HmE #E)

B EFHENME b XX
BN W17V 1B3RIVAFTBEEESRE
MENEMEEEE - WE -BREMR
EUREAEEEERMBAEEt
ABSREEE BT

WEREEEBTAATWEIEEETR
BRARERERARAEZERE
EMEE ZRESRER/AUEERE
HERNTEH iMmEREELETM
B)VMBEREAER -BANRANESR
EMERFRAERRTZBERR
kTG ERENTAREE -FRERZ
REHIRNA K 2 MR B H B B o R
ZHERB-FEEREBTER XA
HZMXEE - BRAPBERIZER
HERXDERERTEZERER
BETrBBAAMEERERMETEEMN
EITERZFHERR

BE_T_ZFE+_RB=t+—HLHF
B RiE LAURES G ERREEE
BrNmELBNEBREN B
B WEt ABBRENTTER -

BER U EN G AR EERSE
SETNEERSESETASEN
mEt Bl £EHYEREEENE
FEREEEHE BE_ T _—+_A4
=+—BLEE XEARSELET
NEMEENEBHERSELEEAND
BUrEBIBREFE-BEEERA T
AELERRNVITAESETELLEHET
FENEMIRERIE
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A5 e TR B 5E

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HthEREE
Product
technology,
Development licence and
programs completed Customer
in progress  Trademarks programs  relationships Others Total
Emikil
i HRRERH
ZRstd iR fstdl ERAR Hith CH
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FE7n FEn FEn FET FET FET
cosT KA
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ2F-F-H 270,529 262,431 829,467 546,087 12910 1,921,424
Additions HE 35,150 - 168 - 307 35,625
Transfers b (67,148) - 67,148 - - -
Disposals HE - = (377) = = (377)
Exchange realignment ERHE 2,59 2,137 21,598 7,758 - 34,089
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZFE+-E=1+—-HK
1 January 2021 “2-5-fA-H 241,127 264,568 918,004 553,845 13,217 1,990,761
Additions HE 25,051 = 49 = 145 25,245
Disposals HE - - (165) - - (165)
Transfers a5 - - 262 - - 262
Exchange realignment ERAR (3,594) (1,837) (18,722) (6,557) 6 (30,704)
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-£+ZF=+-H 262,584 262,731 899,428 547,288 13,368 1,985,399
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND R R
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 \Z2ZZE-F-H - 17,711 59,768 72,452 5,859 155,790
Charge for the year (note 9) RERS (H3#9) = 9,695 37,743 38,525 2,046 88,009
Impairment loss recognised REGEINAESR
in profit or loss 58,753 - 26,521 - - 85,274
Disposals HE = = (377) S = (377)
Exchange realignment ERHEE - 744 2,782 1,473 - 4,999
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZEE+°RA=+-AK
1 January 2021 B 58,753 28,150 126,437 112,450 7,905 333,695
Charge for the year (note 9) RES (W3#9) - 9,718 36,431 38,451 2,494 87,094
Disposals HE = = (165) - - (165)
Impairment loss recognised REGEINAESR
in profit or loss - 1,307 - 5,121 = 6,428
Exchange realignment ERHE - (798) (3,258) (1,678) 3 (5,731)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-£+ZB=+-H 58,753 38,377 159,445 154,344 10,402 421,321
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-£+ZB=+-H 203,831 224,354 739,983 392,944 2,966 1,564,078
At 31 December 2020 RZ2ZZF+°F=1+—H 182,374 236,418 791,567 441,395 5312 1,657,066

209



210

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:
Trademarks 30 years
Product technology, licence and

completed programs 10 to 30 years
Customer relationships

Others

15 years
1 to 5 years

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the impairment losses of HK$58,753,000 and
HK$26,521,000 were recognised for development
programs in progress and product technology, licence
and completed programs, respectively, as some
customers cancelled their production plans triggered by
Covid-19 impacts. The Group has therefore suspended
the related development and fully impaired these
programs which no longer had economic benefit. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the impairment loss
of HK$1,307,000 and HK$5,121,000 were recognised
for trademarks and customer relationships, respectively,
as the Group has suspended one of its production
line and the respective trademarks and customer
relationships are considered no longer had any economic
benefit.

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of
respective CGUs to which the other intangible assets
belong, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of these assets individually. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation, details of which
including key assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculation are set out in the note 16.

17.

HthBEE (&

BV EENERFERABR UL
BICEER NI RBEREG AR

(&g 304
E MM R

B st E 10E 304
ERR® 154
Hth 1ZE55

BHE_Z-_ZEF+A=+—H1L
FE>BRZBMHEEHFCovid-197 2k
ZEEBCHESESE  AEEED
AL AE 1T P 3 R AT B U B S R AT
R EETERNTEERRESIE
58,753,000 75 526,521,000 7T °
A *EECEFERMERREH
BEFATBERENmZZETE R
Bz F+"“A=+—HIL*F
E BRAEBEEEEP—KREE
moMAMAERKREFRBAGREAAF
BEXAKEN D WHAERER
RA1% D B FE SR R {EE5381,307,000/8 7T
7%5,121,0005 7g

EAEEEAENGHEMERLEE
FIBMNERESESXB TN IRE &4
B AEEgGHTZEEENTKE
T - REEEBE N TWEIEEET
REEREEFEMET  BRFE
(BIEEATEABESENEERR)
B kIEE16°
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. MEE ATz
2021 2020
—EZ—% —EZE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January nw—A—H 12,029 11,781
Gain on deemed disposal RIERE ZFE 11,790 767
Share of results DIEZELE (4,130) (1,191)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A 2 682 672
At 31 December r+ZB=+—H 20,371 12,029
Loans to an associate included in FARBEEZBBE QT

current assets RENER 7,121 11,135
The principal of the loan to an associate is AHERARENEMRZEAEAAR
RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 8,000,000t (HHE10499,412,000%
HK$9,412,000), and is interest bearing at 6% per year. o) IR EF6 % E - EFRNEEER
During the year, the principal amount of RMB2,400,000 & AR#£2,400,0007cc ZERRT R
was repaid. The loan was originally matured on 30 June TE T —FARA=+HIEHBH - FR
2021. During the year, the loan has been extended and ZEFEEH BR_ZEZ_F/XH

will mature on 30 June 2022. =+ HEIH-
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance WRZIEZ—EFRZZEZZFE+ZA

was assessed to be minimal. =+ —R FCEEEEBRERE-
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18.

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

REEAR &R (&
BEARZEEMT

Percentage of ownership

Place of incorporation/ interest attributable

Name registration and business to the Group Principal activity
et AL HMEEENY FEERGEERESZESN TBEHR
2021 2020
—E-F —_EIE
BREGHRHERMERA PRC/Mainland China 21.1 28.92 Research and development of
("IEREER") engineering technology and
electronics communication
technology
TRECRUERMAERAT  +E/FEAH IRRMREFEERMNME
(MEREER)* ik
E Not audited by Deloitte’s members firm. i TR EH B AT EZ

During the year, the Group's equity interest in JE&R
#E(FF was diluted as a result of capital injection by
new investors to JEEZE{S5Z:. Accordingly, a gain on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$11,790,000
(2020: HK$767,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year.

REAFE BHRMEEERILRER
ZFAB FXERREREEHZTZRAE
$¥*E%&T§ﬁf§olﬁt WRABHERE
ANTBZF]E11,790,0008 T (ZCE =
£ :767,0008 ) ERAFEREIE

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. REEARZETG
2021 2020
ot S —=-—=
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Share of net assets DMEFEE = -
Loans to a joint venture included in FARBEEZ
current assets Ae=ENBRENER 7 1,046
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s right
to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from a 69.4%
equity interest in CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei”)
held by third parties through trust arrangements. CATIC
Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture under
PRC law and is holding an investment in PRC which
operates in the aero-technology business and is an
investment holding company.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that
the Group has the right to enjoy certain economic
benefits from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei,
none of the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral
control over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei
pursuant to the provisions in the articles of association
of CATIC Siwei. Since the decisions about the relevant
activities of CATIC Siwei require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control, the directors consider
it is appropriate to account for the investment as an
interest in a joint venture using the equity method of
accounting.

The loans to CATIC Siwei of HK$7,000 (2020:
HK$1,046,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at
5% per year and repayable on demand. During the
year, RMB2,652,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,176,000) was repaid.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of CATIC Siwei because the share of losses
of CATIC Siwei exceeded the Group’s interest and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. CATIC
Siwei was inactive during the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

On 30 November 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with a purchaser, an independent
third-party, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to
acquire the 69.4% of the total issued capital of CATIC
Siwei at a consideration of RMB11,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$13,529,000). The disposal has not
been completed as of 31 December 2021.

CATIC Siwei was not audited by Deloitte’s members
firm.

19.

REERB 2w (&)

REERBz RGO EAEREB#
EEHRE-FBBEREHFTEZ
mEMEERARAR (THEZER)
69.4% R A w2 & TS o o T4
ERBEREEEMAEERE
TRPREFEEEMERMEB AR
EERABZRE

EERD BALEEREENEER
69.4%RAEmMAVE TEK U= B
REBNEERNABDEERTE  BE
T 4 58 RN P BN ¥ I M B RE 2 A R
VA B EEG M - B M E R
FEHNRRBERRERNES —
RAR EERXARZREFERETE
AEMRERBAEDEARBSE-

HIMMERPER7,0008 7T (ZE -
T 1,046,000 7T) JHEMKIF R E
MES%FTERBREREE FR
BEE ARYE2,652,000T (FHERH
3,176,000 7T) °

FEBER BB GHEERNES
B EADHEEERNEGIEEBRSR
FEBENED MAEELEHRHK
BE—FPBER-BE_ZT_—FK_
E_EF+__B=+—HLEEE >
MHEREGEFEEE-

RIEBE_EF+—HF=Z+H &~&EE
BB USE=ZFEAINERGS
REEZBHER BERRERREBARE
11,500,0007T (18552 4913,529,0007%8
T WENMHERETIERITRAZ
69.4% M _EBE-—F+_-_8F=+—
B> ZHEEEEERTH

AR BB AR EZ e

&
]
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20.

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BMAFESABEZUMBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
—EF—% ZEIEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted investment, at fair value ELHEE HATFE
Non-current asset: ERHEE
VerdeGo Aero, Inc.’s VerdeGo Aero, Inc.Z
convertible bonds AR ES 1,938 1,938
The above investment is classified as financial assets at HREeENRERBETIEEASZNAE
FVTPL as the contractual cash flows are not SPPI. BFAE > WAt EMiEEDEARAF
Bt ABEMNHHEE-
The maturity date of the convertible bonds issued by VerdeGo Aero, Inc. BT Z AR ES

VerdeGo Aero, Inc. is 28 February 2028.

ZEREATENE_R -+ N\R-

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 21. BATFEFAHMZEWEZR
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER TKE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—F —EoEg
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JF EHIRAIKRE 2 AFE !

Ampaire, Inc. Ampaire, Inc. 389 389
The above equity investments were irrevocably HRAEBERAZEREBHRRE M
designated at fair value through other comprehensive IR T W =1 7 B w4 N %
income as the Group considers these investments to be BREEARAFESAEMEEWRE -

strategic in nature.
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 21. BRRTESFAHMNEERZZR
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER TRE (&)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
In the prior year, the Group disposed of an investment MEFE > AEEMUE26,821,000% 7T
in AVIC Joy Holding (HK) Limited, at a consideration of HEREZ=RER (BB ARARAZE
HK$26,821,000, the fair value at the date of disposal B RNHEHBEZAFES26,821,000
was HK$26,821,000. A cumulative loss on disposal of Broe HE ZREHE1E568,004,000%8
HK$568,004,000 was transferred from fair value reserve TEBERATEFAEMEE NG 2
of equity investments designated at fair value through BRAREBEZ AT E#EERES R
other comprehensive income to retained profits. F o
INVENTORIES 22. #H
2021 2020
—EZ—F ZETERF
HKS'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Raw materials R 351,857 313,705
Work in progress ERm 123,280 108,755
Finished goods SN R 17,835 20,418
492,972 442,878
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. FEWREZIR™
2021 2020
—E-— —ECEE
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Trade receivables UL E R 123,190 131,392
Impairment losses under ECL TRHAEERBE T ZRERE (5,755) (8,437)
117,435 122,955

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$103,672,000.

R_E_EE—-—H—H ' KBTHLE
HWZEWE ZRZE103,672,0008
7T|:o

215



216

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAE
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where partial advanced payment is required
for certain customers. The credit period is generally 30
days and each customer has been assigned a specified
credit limit by the Group.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 50% (2020: 28%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from one of the Group's key customers.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

FEW B Z R (2

FAEREEFZEEGRMEIERR
ROPMETERMES ARG BMHMRIE
FEEH—RA0B  BExEBNIES
UEFPIEEEEREE-

REBBERERBFEZERKE SRR
HEBREE -EESECHGRSA
g NS _—F+B=+—
B -AEEEETEEETRAR BRR
EAEENEREZRMZ50% (ZF
TEF28%) AEBAEER—ZEE
EEZRE -AERTEGERKE
SRR ZERFEAMAEFRIEM
EERE - BWEZRFLATE

REBESHR BREZRRIZEREA
HARMREEERZREDNINT

2021 2020

—EFZ—% ZEIEF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@AR 88,666 63,372
1 to 2 months —EWEA 14,509 19,029
2 to 3 months —“E={EA 3,923 2,654
Over 3 months BB=1E2 10,337 37,900
117,435 122,955




-

\ // i

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

AEMZERRZERAERAF
Annual Report 2021 — & — —F &R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
the trade receivables are as follows:

23. FEWE SR &

BB Z RN B EZ BIREEHZH
LI

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
S HATREHA S HATREA
EEBE EEBE
(GEfE&E (B
AE) AE) &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FAET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZ2F—F—H 4,394 - 4,394
Impairment losses recognised, net  EREREEE 358 4,043 1,467 5,510
Write-off b= = (1,467) (1,467)
At 31 December 2020 R_B_BHF
+-B=+—H 8,437 — 8,437
Impairment losses recognised, net ErESBER 1
ST g (2,682) 3,108 426
Write-off 8 - (3,108) (3,108)
At 31 December 2021 R —
+ZA=+—¢H 5,755 - 5,755

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix and individually assessment
to measure expected credit losses. Except for debtors
with significant balances and credit impaired, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on trade
receivables by using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

P& RS B AR B 3 6 MR e {8 Y 5F
HETRESN U ERAEES
B-GABEREHRAEGSEREN
FEUWERRSN  REEEREFHEREE
EEZRURNRNAMEERR &
BEDEFNAAEUBEEEXNZAE
ERDEERNERBREE - &5t
ERMTBEMELER SBEEE
BEUARRRSBHAIESHNEARES
= BRI R KRR HE AR TR R
WEERIXFER -
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BB ZIRM (&
As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade N ZE_—F+“HA=+—H8 %&&
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying ERWEZEMEHFRBEN RS B
amount of HK$17,352,000 (2020: HK$41,445,000) B AR 4EEREE17,352,000% T (Z
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out BB 41,445,000 1) BIFEULER
of the past due balances, HK$8,428,000 (2020: %’KO?‘?CHH%E%DPJ&LLZS,OOO‘}%T_E(:
HK$19,020,000) has been past due 90 days or more Z =4 119,020,000 7T) B #IHI90
and is not considered as in default because the %EJZL/U: AR ZEEHANERT
debtors have good repayment record. The impairment BREF WA HREBEN - RBEZS
of HK$2,074,000 (2020: HK$5,544,000) has been ——H+ZA=+—BLEE BER
provided in relation to the past due 90 days based on BEHERER B IRI0K511E2,074,000
the provision matrix during the year ended 31 December BT (ZZT 4 © 5,544,000 7T) B9
2021. B R o
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due —ms EWE SR E B S
for more than one year. The trade receivables with gross —FRF UM  BiAHABIE —F48
amount of HK$3,108,000 (2020: HK$1,467,000), which +¥8%3,108,000B L (ZEZZF .
are past due over one year are fully impaired and written 1,467, 000%775) HNEZEBERRER
off during the year ended 31 December 2021. BE_Z_—H+°"A=+—HI#HF
Em%(/JEMEE’ZTWMﬁO
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREINEHBBEEESTNEBRER
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a EERVEZERNEERRBHNER :
provision matrix:
Past due
bkt
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
B MR—@EA —E=EA Z@AMUL EE
As at 31 December 2021 RIS-—-%
+ZA=+-H

ECL rate JEEEEEiEX 0.4% 2.2% 14.3% 24.6% 5.6%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) ERE4RE (FE7T) 26,025 8,623 301 8,428 43,377
ECL (HK$'000) BBREERE (TE71) 116 187 43 2,074 2,420

25,909 8,436 258 6,354 40,957
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. FEWE SR &
The remaining trade receivables with an aggregated HR P REREGE  BREES
gross carrying amount of HK$79,813,000 (2020: 79,813,000 0 (Z&E & F
HK$72,748,000) were assessed individually due to the 72,748,000 T) ER FEWE Z R
significant balances involved and the expected credit EEEFTE IR 2 —F+Z8
losses of HK$1,184,000 (2020: HK$1,682,000) were =+ —BmEBEREERE,184,000
recognised as at 31 December 2021. BT (CE-ZTF 11,682,000 7T) °
Past due
% HA
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
e OR—ER —E=@EB =@ALEL E
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-FHF
+ZB=+—H
ECL rate BHEEHREX 0.5% 2.9% 12.4% 29.1% 11.5%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FRE4EE (FE7) 17,199 17,393 5,032 19,020 58,644
ECL (HK$'000) RBEEER (FE7T) 85 503 623 5,544 6,755
17,114 16,890 4,409 13,476 51,889
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FANFIE RS RHEMEUWERR
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—_E-—% EE
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments SN 15,245 11,144
Deposits and other receivables & KR M EWERRR 19,591 46,301
Impairment allowance ER S (10,554) (12,289)
24,282 45,156
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24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The gross amount
of other receivables under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
is HK$10,554,000 (2020: HK$12,289,000) because
the receivables are in default or there is information
indicating that the debtors are in severe financial
difficulty.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
other receivables which are assessed under lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) are as follows:

24.

FATRRIE ~ 1 R H At FEUKER TR
(#)
RehHEMEWRRETEALBER
EREEFRS - NEREAH &
EERBAFEBEBEAIATSEERAERN
BEBEERETRHES M -AEE
B EE R L E AR K R 2k
OB TER (B A) - BN EU
RAREXTBENBERNEBATER
EMBRE FHIb 2HRBEHEERE
(BEERE) BTHEMEWRERR
48EE7310,554,0008 (T2 22 F .
12,289,000 7T) ©

2HBEMEEER CEERE BT
S {2 B9 L 0 6 U B 3R 2 R 1 A R 18
BT

2021 2020
—EZ—%F ZEZF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At 1 January w—A—H 12,289 41,774
Changes due to financial instruments ¥ —H—HBEERNE/HT

recognised as at 1 January BESNES)

— Impairment losses reversed* — BB ER IR (2,931) (16,066)

— Write-offs** — g+ * - (15,540)

Exchange realignment PE 7 5R % 1,196 2,121

At 31 December Rn+-—A=+—H 10,554 12,289

* During the year ended 31 December 2021, the reversal of e REE_Z-_—F+-"A=+—H81

impairment loss of HK$2,931,000 (2020: HK$16,066,000)
relates to a loan from a third party, which the related gross
amount was fully impaired in previous years. Reversal was
made due to settlements received in the current year.

i Due to significant financial difficulty of a third party
borrower of a loan advanced by the Group, the impairment
loss of HK$15,540,000 was written off in the prior year.

FE REEBEE2,931,0008 T (=
TZAE 116,066,000 7T) BB E
ZHENERBER EERMEERAT
FERYRE -BENTRAEAFEENK
S ERIERTE 0

e HRAEERGTERNBE=HETA
HIREAMBEE 15,540,000 7T
BB ERIEE R BEEEMNY-
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ECL of remaining deposits and other receivables
were assessed under 12-month ECL. These relate to
debtors for which there was no history of default
and the amounts have not been past due. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance on
deposits and other receivables under 12-month ECL was
assessed to be minimal.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and within the credit term. The
following is an aged analysis presented based on the
invoice date.

24.

25.

TEIRRIR ~ 2% K Lt FEUR AR TR
#)
BTRSRHEGBBRROERES
BERZ+ - ERABEEEET G
BRI EBOCHENEBABHR
ZESBLKRAP - R_B_—FK
—E_ETE+-RB=+—H ' +=M@
BEMEEGENZRS RH KR
RO BT ERIER o

FEUL R % it BB A BRI

BUERBATREDERE T
SAERREGENARN - TXRRERER
HZ2 5B ERE DA -

2021 2020

g% —EZE
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within 1 month 1MEA A 13,818 10,663
1 to 2 months 12218 8 11,719 4,738
2 to 3 months 2E3@ER 12 =
Over 3 months 3EA UL 274 387
25,823 15,788

No allowance for impairment was made since the
management consider that the probability of default
is minimal after assessing the counterparties’ financial
background and creditability.

HREEBENERZHINMBE
EMERARRERHENIEMER
o AR AFHRAERE -
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. HERIREEE
2021 2020
—E—F ZEZF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank balances RITHERE 429,369 596,322
Time deposits EHEMR 193,750 317,750
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIEEEE 623,119 914,072
Bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and RTEGFEREAEERBEZREMN
short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at RMmBFEMENFR0%E2.0115%
market interest rates ranging from 0% to 2.0115% (ZEZZEFE 0%XE2.0115%) 5t B
(2020: 0% to 2.0115%) per annum and have maturity REHEHA=ZEAXUT ZEHIET
of three months or less. The bank balances and time GERoBITHEERERERBEBERR
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no BORRMXEE BEEBEZRITC
recent history of default.
TRADE PAYABLES 27. FEHEZR™

27.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

RESHR BNEZRMZERH
HZREDAWT -

follows:
2021 2020
—FZ—% —EIEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@EA XN 99,589 52,282
1 to 2 months —EmEA 16,146 47,926
2 to 3 months —_E={EA 1,999 5,730
Over 3 months BE=1E7 15,688 1,845
133,422 107,783

The trade payables are normally settled on 45 days
terms.

ERNEZRR—RLASHHARE

o

bl
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HE(IERFKEETER
2021 2020
—E”—%F —EE

HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables* Hun (IR 48,972 28,999
Accruals fEst & A 51,008 87,494
99,980 116,493
e Other payables are non-interest-bearing, and included * HMENREBER st BERE 815
the consideration received for the disposal of CATIC MHEUEERBENNRKEARE
Siwei of RMB11,500,000 (equivalent to approximately 11,500,0007T (HHE 52 4914,025,0007%
HK$14,025,000) (2020: RMB11,500,000 (equivalent to ) (ZEZZTH AR¥11,500,0007T

approximately HK$13,529,000)). (FEEF 413,529,000 7)) ©

AMOUNTS DUE TO INTERMEDIATE 29. FEMPREERATRIE

29.

HOLDING COMPANIES

The amounts due to intermediate holding companies
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

BNTEERATDRES
stERRARBREE-

BIEH A
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. AXEafR
2021 2020
B —fF =
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Repair and maintenance service for R ZEEE 2 EEBRBERT
aircraft engines 37,392 37,127
Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts #4635 B i K 5 14 = 9,756
37,392 46,883
Current TREN 8,139 17,948
Non-current JEmED 29,253 28,935
37,392 46,883
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to R_E_EF—H—H 58648
HK$39,028,000. 39,028,000/ 73 ©
The current portion of the contract liabilities at the FHENEENREBOERERST
beginning of the year are recognised as revenue in the AU o
following year.
31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. $RITEE
The bank borrowings were fully settled during the year. RITEERFEATZHEE - RZZEZ
As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings were ZHF+"H :—f——EI VIRITIEEME
denominated in United States dollars and were interest ToEHE > TR B1%-3.48%

bearing at 1%-3.48% per annum.
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32. PROVISIONS 32. &
Warranty
and Service Product
Bulletin claim Other
provision provision provisions Total
RIE R IR Em
REER e H 1t & i a%
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
F#ET FET FET FET
31 December 2021 —E—F
+ZA=+-H
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—4%—F—H 80,676 20,104 36,367 137,147
Additional provision (note 9)  EEAMNEHE (B1529) 5,861 56,775 14,270 76,906
Utilised during the year FANEHA (28,915) (63,447) (8,862) (101,224)
Exchange realignment QR (1,693) = (1,632) (3,325)
Others Hith (2,558) - 739 (1,819)
At 31 December 2021 RWZEZT—F
+ZB=+—H 53,371 13,432 40,882 107,685
Portion classified as DEARBBENEMR
current liabilities (52,898) (6,457) (15,936) (75,291)
Non-current portion FERENEL 1 473 6,975 24,946 32,394
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PROVISIONS (continued) 32. #E®@
Warranty
and Service Product
Bulletin claim Other
provision provision provisions Total
RER
RBLE 7
Blm e Hh# s a5t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
F#1 FE FAEr T
31 December 2020 k- Jent-
+=ZB=+—H
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEF—F—H 25,924 15,105 37,130 78,159
Additional provision (note 9)  EEAMNEHE (BY:29) 61,068 20,104 13,273 94,445
Utilised during the year FREHH (8,100) (15,105) (15,598) (38,803)
Exchange realignment bE SR 1,784 - 1,527 3,311
Others Hi - - 35 35
At 31 December 2020 N _EEF
+ZA=+—H 80,676 20,104 36,367 137,147
Portion classified as PEARBEGENIHR
current liabilities (79,967) (13,129) (11,522) (104,618)
Non-current portion JEFE IR 709 6,975 24,845 32,529

The Group provides warranties mainly for one year to its
customers on certain of its engines. The amount of the
provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales
volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
released a Service Bulletin to replace certain of its
products due to safety concerns. An estimate for the
probable costs has been made for these claims and is
included in warranty and service bulletin provision. This
estimate has been developed in consultation with the
Group's insurers,

legal counsels, historical experience

and is based upon an analysis of potential results.

AEEREBDEIRQEZTRFEE

RE—FHRERH - REEBZRR
BHERBENEERBREKFTZE

RLE AERFERAZLEESR
WHEEREEEEITER -

Ra&aE"Z2-_ZF+"A=+—HIt
FEOHRZE2EE  AEBZE MR
NREUNEHEARTER BHELER
BE B9 BT BE A AN dETT A 5 M0 5F A RIE
BB ASIEMRN o ZIB M ThAE
BERAEENRE AR KEEER
HEE BEEELE WEREERE
ERNDIIEL -
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PROVISIONS (continued) 32. #E#@
The product liability provisions are made for any present EmEEEELHHEREARTHN
expected product liability claims as a result of the FRERBRERSEEREMEL-
assessment at the end of the reporting period. The FEBEFERNZHEERERE  UNE
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and EREHEETE
revised where appropriate.
LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HHE&RE
2021 2020
g% —EZE
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEESR
Within one year —FR 6,533 5,311
In the second year RE_E 6,569 5,272
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZEFHE
(BEEEWMF) 19,182 15,680
Beyond five years HBidhF 278,734 288,634
311,018 314,897
Less: Amount due for settlement B REIAaEET
within 12 months shown under FreEanmt 12188 R E
current liabilities &z E%E (6,533) (5,311)
Amount due for settlement after ERBBEET
12 months shown under non- FrEa~12@ 8 %
current liabilities B HR4E 2 = B8 304,485 309,586

The weighted average incremental

borrowing rates

applied to lease liabilities range from 4.14% to 5.25%

(2020: from 4.14% to 5.25%).

EAREEEBEZNMEEYIEEEE
FIENFRA414%FE5.25% (B ZF
T A414%FE5.25%) ©
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Number of
ordinary Nominal
shares amount
EEREE H{E
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREME0I0EBTZZER
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZ-ZE-_ZH—H—H-
and 31 December 2021 “_BEBF+_"RH
=t+—HERIZIZEZ—%
+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE
At 1 January2020, 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZTHF—F—H-
and 31 December 2021 “ETEHE+TA
=+t—HBKRZZ2Z—%
+-B=+—H 9,303,374,783 930,337
35. RESERVE FUND 35. f(#ES

The reserve fund represents the statutory reserve
of certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China. Pursuant to the articles
of association of these subsidiaries and the relevant PRC
Company Law, the subsidiaries shall make an allocation
from their profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the
statutory surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part
of the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than

the subsidiaries’ registered capital,
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

FEEEZERPERAMUSIERES N
MEZETHBRARZ ZERE R
BREMNBRARNADEREKRERASD

Bl ARE &FWEBARREHEERR
BEMZI0%BEEERGREEBES
EXFFHRBEEZSWEASZM

BAZS0% B ZEREE T
REEMBARZEMER HERE
BEXCRZBFTEBIDONZSZNE
NEFMEARZ25%  EERMBNZ
EMBRARARLERFERVB/ER
FiEF o



-

\ // i

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERKIZERERAR
Annual Report 2021 ==&~ —F %R 229

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B4 5 sR R MisE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

DEFERRED TAX 36.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and

RAEFEREFEBZ ETEREILERIEA
BENBEEREEHUNT

assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

Losses
available for
Fair value offsetting
adjustments  Accelerated against  Provisions,
arising from  depreciation future other
acquisition of and taxable liabilities
subsidiaries amortisation profits and others Total
W I AT 8
REEEM MEAE  RRERR  EHE Ht
ATERE R#HE ENZEE afEkHEfM A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHT FHT FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZE—-F—H (368,861) (94,254) 146,733 66,575 (249,807)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss ST (0B B (528)

(note 8) 148,037 (6,670) (81,411) (4,540) 55,416
Credit to other comprehensive SARMZERE

income - - - 95 95
Exchange realignment ERAE (6,078) (2,464) 3,983 73 (4,486)
At 31 December 2020 WIBZ2E+"A=+—H  (226902)  (103,388) 69,305 62,203 (198,782)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss S (0BR) B (B728)

(note 8) 19,205 (4,465) (33,524) 1,246 (17,538)
Charge other comprehensive income B E 2 E I = = - (179) (179)
Exchange realignment ERAE 4,743 2,409 (2,019) (152) 4,981
At 31 December 2021 WZZE-—F+"HA=+—H  (202954)  (105,444) 33,762 63,118 (211,518)
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36.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. IRIEMIE (@)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets BEBINT ETREREEENRE
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated BEEREERBERIERPIED - UT
statement of financial position. The following is an AREBR ZRIERMIBEAGRUNMBRE
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for FRPRIED T
financial reporting purposes:
2021 2020
—E—F ZEZF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE M B AR R R
in the consolidated statement of PR IBE EFRE
financial position - 28,120
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised REEHMBRRARERZ
in the consolidated statement of IR IBEEFRE
financial position (211,518) (226,902)
(211,518) (198,782)

At 31 December 2021,
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
arising in (i) the PRC amounted to HK$22,227,000
(2020: HK$21,443,000) that would expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits,
and (ii) the USA amounted to HK$739,251,000
(2020: HK$599,720,000) in respect of federal tax and
HK$691,556,000 (2020: HK$624,627,000) in respect
of state tax that would expire in future subject to local

the Group has not recognised

tax legislations. The above deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
tax losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

WZE2Z—%+ZHB=+—H"
AEBUTESUTHEEENR
FRIEEEEIELEREBEEE (i)
FEA22,227, 00080 (ZE 2%
8 121,443,000/87m) ' ZEEBEER
R—ZEEREEREE (HIEHEFREKE
EX gl 2 (i) B A R
MINMT739,251,0008 T (ZE_F
£ 1599,720,00087T) RBERBMNR
691,556,000 T (ZE_FF :
624,627,000/ 70) > iR IR B AR IEE
B RZEEEE - AR ABRE IR 75 B VA
ERERERTAUEEISARNIEEIE
BRKRERR G WU ERZEES
R FMRERIBEEE -

=)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range
from 5% to 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associate established in PRC. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries,
joint venture and associate will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

36.

FE+ZA=t—HLEE

EIEIRIA ()

BREFEAREMBEEMERE
EHREMRIIZIECERIELES
BIRZEREBEHWI0% BN o %R
ER_EENF—B—BEEM E
AR _EE+tE+_"_RA=+—H#%Z
Wi P EIBIRIREE 2 B E#
B AR E NI RARBEZTE
NME-HAEEMS  BAMRES

5%F10% - AEBRAMEATREMN
UZWBREMBEZEENF—A—
BEELEZWDFAD K ZKREKETE
0 -

RIBEZ—FRZZEZZEF+ZA
=t+—H o UERAEREPERIL
ZHBRAB -G ABRBMEQTAE
BMFBENRZKEHWRGFAEN 2T
IMBBELERIB-EE1RA > 2EH
BAE -EELABIRBERABDFAARE
O] R R k% W o
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37.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 37. TEEEMEFEEE
Continental Motors United Auto Workers Pension KEZEIRB S SETANRAKEEE
Plan (“UAW Pension Plan”) (TUAWER fR & 5+ 811)
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a AEEBEETERNBRARESE Z
pension plan for the United States employees which FEAHEHERESENRAESE
require contributions to be made to a separately BEBIIEERPIFEHER - ZEHN
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded. EARSHEERUES - RIEZTE
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly EEBERAWEURKRERN » 3¢ H 1K
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement LZREFEERNK BHERA WEUR
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements AN ERARGEH  EEERE THK
subject to certain conditions. o
Continental Motors Post-retirement Life & Health KEEZFERABASEREE
Plan (“Life & Health Plan") (TAE 2R
The Group provides certain additional post-employment AEEREEEESRMHES FTEEINEINK
medical and life benefits to employees in the United BEBERASEN ZEBM KR
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan, o RIFEZETE) EEE%WHY%EW@
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment BEmEr o
medical benefits.
The actuarial valuations of the present value of the EREEMNFEEXRRENEEEET
defined benefit plan obligations were carried out as HNewport Group, Inc. (& E & IEEEM)
at the end of the reporting period by Newport Group, REREPFRBHEFEAEEREM
Inc., a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit BEETo
actuarial valuation method.
The principal assumptions used at the end of the RBERXREANETEBIREIIAT
reporting period are as follows:
2021 2020
% %
Discount rate rIRE
UAW Pension Plan UAWZR k35 5t 21 2.63 2.24
Life & Health Plan NS 2.34 1.88
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 37. TEEENFBEE E
(continued)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RBEERREHAERABRNTEE B
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown ERWRHRAT
below:
Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
EEEF EFEEF
tb& EFH BERY TR BELRmM
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 AR —F
+=B=+—H
Discount rate FrIRE 1 (6,958) 1 8,333
As at 31 December 2020 MRIEZTHE
+=ZA=+—H
Discount rate IR = 1 (7,638) (1) 9,447

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit plan obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit plan obligations as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses
in the Group’s profit or loss in respect of the plans are as
follows:

FHRBREDRDREBERREARE
ERRVFEZCEEGHHTEBH G
BEREZREFEIMEE -BRE
DM EREMBEMEBRTENE
NI —HERBRNAEMET
FREIMADAREERBAGHE
AR EBRROER
ErgEBRL-

MARERAEREmTRERRIT
HEEERNARZIT :

2021 2020

—=-—— —=-—=
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Current service cost BPEAAR 7% Al A 3,050 2,826
Net interest expense B FEE 319 375
Net benefit expenses (note 9) B S HEE (IEE9) 3,369 3,201
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AR e MR R MY EE

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 37. TEEMEABEE B
(continued)
The movements of the defined benefit plan obligations EEEMNFTEEERSTEEENRQF
and the fair value of plan assets are as follows: BEEEBWT !
Defined benefit Fair value of
plan obligations plan assets Total
EHEETHAFR HEBEENATE Eh
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEI-F CZEIEF CZEI-E "EZIEF IEZ-& THIEE
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January ®—B—H 59,114 52,456 (42,341) (36,700) 16,773 15,756
Pension cost charged to HARBHNBARERE
profit or loss
Current service cost BERF A A 3,050 2,826 - = 3,050 2,826
Net interest expense (income) FERZ (WA 28 1,287 1,427 (968) (1,052) 319 375
Sub-total included in profit or loss 3t A#B##9/N5t 4,337 4,253 (968) (1,052) 3,369 3,201
Remeasurement losses REM2EKENHEDH
(gains) recognised in other ENMHESE 7R
comprehensive income
Returns on plan assets (excluding ~ stEIEERIR (RBEA
amounts included in net R ERZFENEE)
interest expense) - - (3,674) (3,054) (3,674) (3,054)
Actuarial changes arising from AOBEEDELN
changes in demographic BEEH
assumptions 149 (416) - - 149 (416)
Actuarial changes arising from IBRREDELN
changes in financial assumptions 5 E&H) (3,032) 4,172 - - (3,032) 4172
Actuarial changes arising from CHRABYELINEREE
experience adjustments (457) - = - (457) -
Sub-total included in other STAHMZ ARG NG
comprehensive income (3,340) 3,756 (3,674) (3,054) (7,014) 702
Others Htr
Contribution by employer EEHEN - - (2,844) (2,886) (2,844) (2,886)
Benefits paid [=AREET (1,337) (1,351) 1,337 1,351 - -
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—H 58,774 59,114 (48,490) (42,341) 10,284 16,773
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of
the UAW Pension Plan are as follows:

EFEFFERE (&

UAWRAKZ BN BEEN A TE
ZEEZJ/BWMT -

2021 2020

—FZ—% —ECEF

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Equity instruments AT E 26,335 21,627
Debt instruments (=P =t 19,903 18,745
Others HAth 2,252 1,969
48,490 42,341

The Group expects to contribute HK$3,195,000 (2020:
HK$2,790,000 for the year ending 31 December 2021)
to pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2022.

Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan
assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The average duration of the UAW Pension Plan as at
31 December 2021 is 14 (2020: 14) years. The average
duration of the Life & Health Plan as at 31 December
2021 is 8 (2020: 8) years.

AEBBEHRBEE_S-__F+_8
—t+—HBLEFERAZERASEH
3,195,000 T (CE_ZBF (HE_
T —F+_RB=+—HIEFEEHR
2,790,00077T) °

HRASBESFIRRES  HE
E-E-_-ER-_E-TF+_A
St+—HLEFETEEBRASRES
SR EERE -

RZIEZ—F+ZA=+—H UAW
BARESHENTHBRA/4E (ZF
“EF4F) RIEZ—F+_A
E+—H ASREFENTEHHR
HE (CT_THF (1 85) o
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38. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

In the prior year, other financial liabilities represents the
fair value of the Group's interest rate swap contracts.
The Group had utilised interest rate swap contracts to
hedge its exposure to cash flow changes on its floating
rate bank borrowings. During the year, the Group's
bank borrowings have been fully repaid and all interest
rate swap contracts have been settled. Fair value gain
of HK$12,525,000 (2020: loss of HK$47,897,000) was

recognised and included in other gains and losses.

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2021.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide

incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of

the world.

38.

39.

Hitti & &

REF HEMBBEEARERRX
EHAANAFE AEBRCEH BT
ERBENEPEHIFNXBITEE
NRERELEFER TR AEEW
ROTEBECTHEE AN
BB B AT EWE12,525,000
BT (ZEZE 4 | E51847,897,0004#
70) ERERM R EMF B R AR o

HERGHESTEY
RIE—MERAZ+NEHRTZR
RBFAG L ARAIRMNT —1BE
s 8 (MZst 8L BENAHEAER
PEBEREBREFEHERZGER
ZHERBHBRER UERER
BESIEIBERFSE T TR HIEZHA
EEEFEEZ AL -BFRMZE
M- RZE2Z—F+"A=+—8"
BEIBRIEZEEEH TE KRR 5
HIEERITEZ BRI

ZEtE 2 T BIFREE
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group if such grant will result in the said
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

39. HEREsTEl (&)

3.

RITHEREZTERE A
R ERREAERTAR
BA B W E A H fh B B #E 51 &)
REZBEEREMAIEZT
ZARABRMD (TR 1) 88
BBBNZFEEMEBREE
TRMNHBREZ10% AT A FE
B R Ha210% EFR MEBRRE
A FERRELME-RITHE
BRIEZSFEFEHMERTEZ
FTEMKRITHERBERE ERITE
REAEEBTARELATNME
o] 5L fth B A R 51 B9 T e R
TEZMBHERTEBREM
AT RN EE > FEBIB
TEEEITRDEE Z230% ° i
BiEZAERAERBETMALE
NE B E A E A A R S B
HEREERSBE FiM30%
ZER BAFIZHBRE R
AR AR RIEZF B P 2%
T2 85188 %461,959,1008%
Rm HERAFEHRBBPSET
BRAD 4B E > £94.97 % ©
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39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

39.

REReEsTE (2

4.

REA+ZERBHBERTER
B E KRR ERAEME
RiEFBEMNK M ZEIR
TEECERSHERUZBKRE
(FmETrE - BEHIERIT
) MBT R TETZRNE
g AR EREERRLAPESR
TROBEZ1% -

BREDREZTE 2 FmMR
BEFENBEEENES (K
HEBERASERAHERE
RHBHME=@AF) E5t+5H
B BB R 1T o

RHEBRERKLAH%Z2S
BREREFAIHGERSH
FEREW WA A RORIE
1.008 7T
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

7.

The exercise price of an option shall be the

highest of:

(a)

(@)

the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing on 28 May

2014 and thereafter for as long as there are

outstanding options granted and accepted

pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the

said 10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of

approval of these consolidated financial statements,

there were no (2020: Nil) share options outstanding.

39. HEREsTEl (&)

7. BREZOTEBAS TIZR
SER

(@) MERERUBEHN(GES
EEH MXEARE
KRG ZIRIDIRTE ;

by REEBRERH (RE
¥ BRRTREEXH
REXFrEe B®RERMR
W Z R FIEHWHE ; &

(0 KRfPEE-

8. ZtBBH_—_FT-—MOFELA
“tNBESt+FEHBEMK
B> mit L+ & m Al
EREKRENZHRITEBR
R RI{TE

BREIERTHAAZAREIRN
RERG EREZHER -

RIBERARR A S B RRENNE
EHWE(CEEF . E) HKRTE
ZEERRHE o
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40.

41.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BEAKIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the KEBRREARBEUATE R KIE !
end of the reporting period:
2021 2020
g% —EE
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAEE RS
Plant and machinery % 5= B 14 23 54,347 55,443
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BXREREEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

FEEREAEENEEZER HER
FEBEERBERNES BHER
BENEARLE UXFHEREF
mREAERAEE

AEERBEEBRINESH REFE
ENRREB BEEHEAEBILF
LB DEFUARELRERE T&
B gRERARRKENRE O
RERBOEAKZETHR cEBF
ERENEMISEEMZERT R
BE_T_—F+-RB=t—HAKZ
BE_EF+_A=+—HLEFERN"
EAEEZBER BRURERFILEN
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. EWMTHE
42a. Financial instruments by category 42a. ERMTHSHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories NGRS/ zEmMIT A
of financial instruments as at the end of the REBEWT :
reporting period are as follows:
Financial
assets at Financial Financial
amortised assets at assets at
cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total
BATE
BEERF BATE tAHMZE
SIBRE  stABRZ 1§
HKEE MEEE MEEE EL
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
2021 ZEZ-F
Financial assets HEEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI ~ BAFEFAEMZE
Wz HBEE = = 389 389
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABRZ
WHEE = 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables W E 5 R 117,435 - - 117,435
Amounts due from fellow — FEURE R E A EIFIE
subsidiaries 25,823 = = 25,823
Loans to an associate ABENRRHENER 7,121 - - 7,121
Loans to a joint venture AGERERENER 7 - - 7
Deposits and other receivables ¥ % & E i FE T BR 30 9,037 - - 9,037
Cash and cash equivalents & RELEE 623,119 - - 623,119
782,542 1,938 389 784,869
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42a. Financial instruments by category

42.

EWMIAE

= A,
AREH

FH5 R R M

42a. &RITEY#E #@)

(continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
218 8 ok 2
FERZ
Mxaf
HKS'000
FHET
2021 &
Financial liabilities MiEaR
Trade payables FEfT B 2R 133,422
Other payables HMEMIRR 48,972
Lease liabilities HE&R 311,018
Amounts due to FES PREIER A BB
intermediate holding
companies 27,495

520,907
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, ERITH E
42a. Financial instruments by category 42a. ERMTHSHE &
(continued)
Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total
BATE
BB E BATE AHMZE
SRR TABRZ W&z
IEE HHEE HHEE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
2020 ZEITE
Financial assets HEEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI ~ BATEFAEMZE
WazHBEEE - - 389 389
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABRZ
WHEE - 1,938 - 1,938
Trade receivables W E RN 122,955 - - 122,955
Amounts due from fellow — EWE R BARFIE
subsidiaries 15,788 - - 15,788
Loans to an associate mBEATRMENER 11,135 = = 11,135
Loans to a joint venture AEERARRMENEN 1,046 = = 1,046
Deposits and other receivables 2% & E fth fE U8R Tx 34,012 = = 34,012
Cash and cash equivalents HEE&RELEE 914,072 = = 914,072
1,099,008 1,938 389 1,101,335
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, ERTIHE E
42a. Financial instruments by category 42a. TRTADE @)
(continued)
Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities
cost at FVTPL Total
e 56 Rl A NS |
I BR Y StABRZ
MHBEE MHBaE Ll
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FErT FAET
2020 ZEIEEF
Financial liabilities pBaGE
Trade payables B EZ IR 107,783 = 107,783
Other payables HEARR 28,999 - 28,999
Bank borrowings RITEE 252,902 = 252,902
Other financial liabilities HfthE1#&E = 47,897 47,897
Lease liabilities HEEE 314,897 - 314,897
Amounts due to FES P REIER A BB
intermediate
holding companies 26,456 - 26,456

731,037 47,897 778,934
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The Group’s financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTOCI, financial assets at
FVTPL, trade receivables, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, loans to an associate, loans
to a joint venture, deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables, bank borrowings, lease liabilities,
other financial liabilities and amounts due to
intermediate holding companies. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities,
such as trade receivables and trade payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has intra-group balance denominated
in foreign currency which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amount of the
intra-group asset is EUR19,125,000 (equivalent to
HK$168,300,000) as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
EUR19,500,000, equivalent to HK$180,863,000).
An increase or decrease of 5% in HK$ against
EUR, will increase or decrease in the Group’s loss
after tax of HK$7,027,000 (2020: HK$7,551,000).

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. &MTH #
42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. MERAMBEEEERBR
policies

FEENETHIEEERAT
Bt \HtMEEWRENMBE
E-BATESFABaMBSR
EBUWE 7R BRE M
BABMIE M ABIRERN
EM-mEEARRHINER
B Rk EMEWARTR  HE MR
TFE-BUEZRR HEME
THRFRITEE-HEER
HtM B aERENPHEER
ABRE-LEFERTANTE
RERRTEENEBRMHY
R REBTASENEMME
EERERE AR E Z RN
RENEZR®R HEEZEHEE
MmEXE -

AEEMNTHMIAEMELENE
2 ELBR 2 S B L B ~ A= R B
EERRE MR R KRR ER
- EFXGEBRZ UM EEELL
L RERAVECER B o

SHEmBE

AEBMNEBRNA D ELS R
Mot E SAEBEKZIH
EREP - N _E_—F+_8
=t—H EERNQEBEEE
RIBRE{E %19,125,0008 7T (18
=1168,300,0008 1) (Z=
— =4 119,500,000 7T 0 48
B 15180,863,000587T) B 7T
TEUTIBMN T R V5% > A
£ B BRI & 518 18 h0 2
7,027,000 (ZEZZF .
7,551,000 7T) ©
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

In addition, as most of the Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
operating units, the Group's other exposure to

foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate borrowings, loans
to an associate and lease liabilities. The Group’s
bank borrowings were fully settled during the

year.

Cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank balances and deposits is considered
insignificant as most of them are short-term in
nature. Accordingly, no interest rate sensitivity

analysis is presented.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its
equity investments which are classified at FVTPL

and FVTOCI (notes 20 and 21).

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to equity price risk is insignificant and accordingly

no sensitivity analysis is presented.

42.

RMTH &
42b. HAFEEGEEEEREE &

SHERE ()

E5h > B A B By R BB E 5
R BEREBRHTEUEE
BUZIWREERESE  FIt4 %
B P 7 2 BY ELfth S0 BE R B AT g o

FYEmEE

AEEEEREBENRMEE
BMEQARNRENERREES
BEAEMBQFEMNKRER & &
WIRTTEMERFERNTHE

m
o

bl

5

\

LY RIRTHETFRERERAN
RBERENRERKAR S M
ERERAREB O BEREE-
It > 36 B 2 5 R KRB D4 o

REmE

FrEEEEERARENRE
BRER ZFERERERAF
Bt ABm kB AFESAR
2w e (5E205%21) Di&-

EXR/TEREBHREER
R IE A K o (I 3 4 2 51 8%
BN 4 o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. ERMIH &

42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. MEEMBEEEEREEK (&
policies (continued)
Credit risk EERME
The Group trades only with recognised and AEBREFERKRTHIREER
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy HHE=ZFETRZ AEEN
that all customers who wish to trade on credit BMEEMEERENTEERS
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. NEFRHFEBEERIEN-
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on BE AEBFEERERTIE
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to 4G R > R IRAR B9 R f i &
bad debts is not significant. Ko
A summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk AEEEE RO kR B
and impairment assessment is as follows: BT -
External Internal 12m or
credit credit lifetime Gross
rating rating ECL carrying amounts
4hER wE 12(8R 2
ZE:4 SETE EHEERE AR
2021 2020
ZEZ-F CZIITE
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
i3 FET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost  REAHERAFIRNHHEE
Time deposits TEHEED 26 AA - AA+ N/A 12m ECL 193,750 317,750
TER 1288 8E8
EEER
Bank balances BHEG 2 AA - A+ NA  12mECL 429369 596,322
TEHE 12BB%EH
FEEE
Amounts due from related companies  FE U BE /A B 7B (note a) N/A (note a) 12m ECL 7,128 12,181
(Hizta) TER (Wsta) 12188 B
EEEE
Other receivables HitEW A 24 N/A (note b) (note b) 19,591 46,301
REA (i) (Ht3tb)
Trade receivables e & 58RI 23 N/A (note ¢) (note ¢ 123,190 131,392
RER (Htazc) (Hiazc)
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEWL[EZ [ B A B 2B 25 N/A (note d) (note d) 25,823 15,788
FEA (Hiatd) (Ht3td)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The gross amounts of amounts due from related
companies include loans to an associate of
HK$7,121,000 (2020: HK$11,135,000) and loans to
a joint venture of HK$7,000 (2020: HK$1,046,000),
details of which are set out in notes 18 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements. The
management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, the Group assessed the
ECL for these balances to insignificant and thus no
loss allowance is recognised.

The gross amount of other receivables under
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) is HK$10,554,000
(2020: HK$12,289,000) because the receivables
are in default or there is information indicating
that the debtors are in severe financial difficulty.
The remaining balances of HK$9,037,000 (2020:
HK$34,012,000) were assessed under 12-month
ECL. These relate to debtors for which there was
no history of default and the amounts have not
been past due. Details of the Group's ECL on
other receivables are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details of the
Group's ECL on trade receivables are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42 & BA #3 $R Rt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE - —F+_H=+—HIEE

RMTH &
42b. HMFEEMEEEEREE )

FEEE (8
mat -

(a) EUWREE AT RIBRES
EaMEADRENEMR
7,121,000 (ZE 2T F :
11,135,00087T) RE&EA
BRMHHNER7,0008 T (=
T T 1 1,046,000587T) 0
EX- AN R =
18:19-BEBERA > BYH
W% ZELBENEERR
WmAEAEIL N AEEZ12E
BEAEEHIEIRRAE &
ECE T —FRIEEFE
+ZB=+—HILEE x&E
EFEZEEBNEREE
BB A > RIL R R EIE%E
o

(b) 2HEHEEFEE (EER
B) BTITHEMEWREES
10,554,000 T (ZE T F !
12,289,000/ 7T) » EEZFE
WHBEEAXBEENBER
BB ABABREMEEIE &R
T #58%9,037,0008 T (T2
T 134,012,000 7T) RIE
12E R BHEEBIEETHT
o BLEEFBOETNE
BABHBSERAR &%
EHEMERKRINEREE
BEFBEHNGRaMEBERE
MisE24 0

(0) HREWESRA AEER
AEEBVBREERNEIRT
HEIEA L2 HERE
EEENGERE AEEAE
MERESRIANEREE
EEHEBHENRGEMBRE
MisE23 0
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42, ERI A #E)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and 42b. HBEREEBFEREEK @)
policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&)
Notes: (continued) Bt o (48)
(d) For amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, the (d) %ﬁﬁé%u&lﬁ%ﬁﬁ}%@ﬁ%’xﬁy
Group has applied the simplified approach under %&%@E%ﬁﬁé%ﬁj\ﬁ%&%
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime EE'J%9?ETFE9 Fﬁﬁftfi% TE
ECL. Details of the Group's ECL on amounts due EHRBEAEBRANB AR
from fellow subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to ﬁ"ZK%@%\‘WE%WEQE
the consolidated financial statements. MENBEREARRFRR
E’\ﬁ-*r B R MITH250
Liquidity risk TR R
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of AEBMNBREE RENRE T
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. BEEFESRRAR ZTAE
This tool considers the maturity of both its BEMTARVBEE WEK
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., B2RM NIBHEREEESE
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from HIEETIREME
operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance AEBNERDE2EBA AR
between continuity of funding and flexibility TERUKRKBFEZERAE
through the use of bank loans and loans from ZER URERENFEMN
intermediate holding companies. BEMN T
The maturity profile of the Group's financial R|EAR AEBEREETN
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, BRIFRGHR 2V EEEDH
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, BRWT
is as follows:
Less than 3 to less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
=F
REXE ORZEA OR1ZBR  -EEf  EEME &
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2021 - J3
Non-derivative financial instruments 3?1&2%@13
Amounts due to intermediate ERREERATR
holding companies 27,495 - - - - 27,495
Trade payables ERERED - 133,422 - - - 133,422
Other payables HHEAER - 48,972 - - - 48,972
Lease liabilities HEER - 5,555 16,164 78,934 425,546 526,199
27,495 187,949 16,164 78,934 425,546 736,088
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42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42b. Financial risk management objectives and

42c.

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

42, £EMIH &

42h.

MHHERABREEBRRER (&)

T mEE (8

Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 110 5 years Over 5 years Total
=
R ERE DR=@EA  OR+ZEA —ELf RENE &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2020 ZZIEE
Non-derivative financial instruments JEfi £ &R T &
Amounts due to intermediate ERREERATRE
holding companies 26,456 - - - - 26,456
Trade payables [IEVES - 107,783 - - - 107,783
Other payables HEEMRR - 28,999 - - = 28,999
Bank borrowings RIEE = 197,757 = 60,437 = 258,194
Lease liabilities HEER S 4,956 14,410 97,683 425,546 542,595
26,456 339,495 14,410 158,120 425,546 964,027
Derivative-net settlement fIETR-BHELE
Other financial liabilities BB Bas - 2,299 7,924 30,721 7,206 48,150
Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 42c. EMTRAZAFERRATFESE

financial instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values
of its financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximates to their fair values.

Certain of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values
of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as different
levels of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (level 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurements.

AR HIE

B E O b H LU 5H pl A 51
BMBEERBEZATE
BEHRTERE

AEEETHBEERNEA
BT 7 & 1 5 B R R A T A B
£ o T RIE A0 017 UL B B
BEERMSERATENER
(5 B2 P 432 FB 00 15 1 B 10 72
BARE)  URREATE
ENHARBNTRERER
ATEHBENHBABBHES
RESATENENE F—R
EETH) WRAATEZHED
Hhlo
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

financial instruments (continued)

FE+ZA=t—HLEE

42, ERI A #E)

42c. EEEI&Z"EFE&’/}EF{E%
REIE (&)

Fair value Key unobservable inputs
Financial instruments Fair values as at hierarchy Valuation techniques sensitivity analysis
EXFABRRBARRE
E RUTABZATE ATEER EERN HRER M
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
ZEZ-F b e 33
+ZR=+-A +ZR=+-H
Interest rate swaps Liabilities - Nil Liabilities - Level 2 Discounted cash flow. N/A
HK$47,897,000 Future cash flows are estimated
based on forward interest
rates (from observable
yield curves at the end of
the reporting period) and
contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of
various counterparties.
LilESEE aE-& a8E- 28 THRRERE B
47,897,000 7T RRFEERBRBEBRA = (&
BRBREHRZ TRR W&
BhAR) R TER K5 LR
REXZHFEERBINT
REETIR
Unlisted equity Assets - Assets - Level 3 Market approach using issued Recent transaction prices 1%
investment HK$389,000 HK$389,000 prices of transactions. (2020: 1%) increase/decrease
in issued prices of transactions
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
HK$4,000 (2020: HK$4,000).
FLEmRARSE BE- BE- £33 ERXAETENTS Lo BIHRR A B
389,000 7T 389,000 7% REWBITBEM H1%

(CBITE 1%) BERAT
{E1E0/F /04,0008 7T (ZRZ
T4 4,000877) ©
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EMTH @)
42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 42c. TMTRAZRAFERRXATFESE
financial instruments (continued) REE (&

Fair value Key unobservable inputs
Financial instruments Fair values as at hierarchy Valuation techniques sensitivity analysis
EXFARRHAYE
EMIR RUTABZATE ATEEER fEER BRLE 2
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
—BI-F ZEIEE
+ZA=t-8 +ZA=Z+-A
Unlisted debt investment Assets — Assets —  Level 3 Discounted cash flow method Yield rate at 7% (2020: 7%) 1%
HK$1,938,000 HK$1,938,000 was used to capture the (2020: 1%) increase/decrease
present value based on the in yield rate would result in
expected yield rate. decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$115,000/HK$123,000
(2020: HK$124,000/
HK$134,000)
FLHEBRE BE- BE- $3% FRATRRERSLERERBY WaXh7% (CEZZE17%)
1,938,000%7T 1,938,008 7T BEENRE. WEEEm/ A% (T

TE %) RERAFERD
/$870115,0003% 7z /123,000

BT (CEZEE 1 124,00087T
/134,000%7T) °

RmEFEER AV ESELE
AE—HMRFE_HR2EERIF
BEEBANBHE =R

During both year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42.

42c. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

financial instruments (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within

EWMIAE

EMITRZAFERAFES

REIE (&)

Py B MATEH B

Level 3 during the year are as follows: mr:
2021 2020
—E—fF TETEE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity investments designated BATESARMEE
at fair value through other Wiz RARIEE
comprehensive income —JFEm
— unlisted:
At 1 January w—A—H 389 389
Gains in other HthemmW a2 78
comprehensive income - 3,889
Disposal HE - (3,889)
At 31 December r+=ZBA=+—H 389 389
Financial assets at fair value BATESAEEZ
through profit or loss MBEE .
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HX
+ZA=+—H 1,938 1,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 E_E_—F+_A=+—HILFE

43.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. MEEBEEZEEZHIR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRANAEEMRETHEELEZEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash 5 OERASRIFRSEH MEE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BES 2 EBEAHERERERRKIR
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ESRERAEBEZFAREREXRD
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated BAMBIHCRERE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
2021 —EZ—F
Amounts
due to
intermediate Other
Bank Lease holding financial
borrowings liabilities ~ companies liabilities Total
FEfF
ERAT HAhBA %
BITEE HEaR HIE afs Eh
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FHET FAET
At 1 January 2021 A ZE—F— 252,902 314,897 26,456 47,897 642,152
Changes from financing cash flows nﬂéfﬁ% 22 éfl (195,502) (7,217) 1,039 (35,372) (237,052)
New leases wHE - 3,387 - - 3,387
Exchange realignment ERAE = (49) - - (49)
Interest expense FEXH 159 14,268 - - 14,427
Interest paid classified as NPARERSREN
operating cash flow BAFE - (14,268) - - (14,268)
Bank borrowings forgiven RITEEHRR (57,559) - - - (57,559)
Fair value adjustment NTERE = - - (12,525) (12,525)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—-F+-"HF=+—H = 311,018 27,495 = 338,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 43. MEFRBHELEZERZHR (&
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(continued)
2020 TTTEE
Amounts
due to
intermediate Other
Bank Lease holding financial
borrowings liabilities companies liabilities Total
FES R
ZRAT HAnBr %
RITEE HESE HIE & At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZEF5—F—H 225,161 320,610 27,846 - 573,617
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BMEBREHELE 23,490 (5,934) - = 17,556
New leases WHE - 202 - - 202
Exchange realignment ERARE - 19 (1,390) = (1,371)
Interest expense FEZH 4,251 14,500 - = 18,751
Interest paid classified as NBRARERSREN
operating cash flow BAFE - (14,500) - - (14,500)
Fair value adjustment ATERE - - - 47,897 47,897
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZH+ZA=+—H 252,902 314,897 26,456 47,897 642,152
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 4. FEFRERS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$3,387,000
(2020: HK$202,000) in respect of lease arrangements for
motor vehicles (2020: motor vehicles).

FR AEEBRAE (CTTIEF
A HETHzFAREERTEESR
BHIEIR £ INA3,387,000/8 T (=
T F4 202,000 7T) ©
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. RBAR S

BZERAVBREREMED
PRtz X Z 50 AEBRFEANE

(a) In addition to the transactions described

elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)

AR e MR R MY EE

ETUTRABARS !

2021 2020
—E-—fF “ETEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income on loans to an B EABRENERZ
associate* B WA 448 550
Interest income on loans to a BEEARRHENEMRZ
joint venture* 2 U A 285 =
Fellow subsidiaries: EENI=VN=IN
Sales & 230,114 165,965
Purchases REE 824 -
Short-term lease payment to an BB EER AT EH Y
intermediate holding company ZHATR BT 1,244 1,468
e Details of the loans to an associate and loans to a A EARIRENERMNE

joint venture are set out in note 18 and 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

(b)

GERARHNEMZHE
BN RS M B HREAWEE18M
190

FEBTEEERNE ZHRIN

the Group:

2021 2020
—EZ—F —E2TEF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Short-term employee benefits ZHAEEET 2,420 2,394
Post-employment benefits EABER 36 36

Total compensation paid to TNFEBEEMEZ
key management personnel w42 %E 2,456 2,430

Further details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EEMEE—DFEH

AR ERARMIEE100
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Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly

held by the Company at the end of the reporting period

are set out below.

Place of incorporation/

Issued ordinary/
registered share

wR e MR MR

FE+ZA=t—HLEE

FTAREEMB AR ZFE

FATRBEMRAERREBERFE
BHEADZ HERNL T

Percentage of equity attributable

Name registration and business capital to the Company 2021 and 2020  Principal activities
By BETLER/ HRFEMERET AL
Y FRRE R B A “E_-FR-BCEE TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# S
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T REER
BERUHE /B
Motto Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$68,200,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 68,200,000% 7T REER
EBEVHE/EH
Continental Motors British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 = 100 Investment holding
Deutschland Limited* Hong Kong 127 BREER
EBREYHE/ER
Continental Aerospace USA Uss4 - 100  Design, development and
Technologies, Inc. ez ET production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines
Rat BERLEBBMERRK
EEEBRREAURAEE
EHRREERRBRLS
CG Germany EUR25,000 - 100  Design, development and
(=1E] 25,0008 ¢ production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and
spare parts and provision
of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines
Rt BERLEBBMERRK
EEEBRREAURAEE
EYRRUEERRBRXS
Continental Motors (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 - Sale of aircraft engines and parts
Co., Ltd.* HE/ RERH 4,000,000% 7% HEMTEDRKRHBH
AEEHK OtR) BRETAT
Kingspot Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 187 REER
BERUHE /B
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ uss$2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong VES REER
EBEYHE/EH
i The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries were e FrELLEMRBABNEEMBRERT

not audited by Deloitte’s members firm.

TWEEEH B RTEZ -
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46.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

Principle activities

46.

Principle place of business

FAREEMBARTZHE (&

LRAMEERAH S EEN KT
EEETER BN AEREEFE
EABRHFAAMEAT - EED
B HBEMHEADNERIL 8
SNBBRAE

RWEFERN > BEEANE AR
TREEEERES-

RBRERR ARBDEAHAEEM
EUFERNEMMBAT - ZFW
BREREBOEEBEE - 2EME
ABNETBEBRABAT -

Number of subsidiaries

FEXRH FESEME MEBABE®E
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
—EB”_—% —ECEF
+ZA=+—H8 +ZA=+—H
Investment holding Hong Kong 3 6
KREER BE
Mainland China 1 1
R A 3
4 7

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Yipon
Investment Limited, Wahman Investment Limited and
CATIC General Aviation Holdings Limited, all were
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
deregistered.

RBEE_Z_—F+”-A=+—H
IEEFE > Yipon Investment Limited >
Wahman Investment LimitedszCATIC
General Aviation Holdings Limited¥J%
ARENE2ERNBAR RIEBEFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE - —F+"H=+—HILEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. ZABHEKRRAR
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position EAAB RN REMERNEHERIE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as HEREHINUWT :
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—f% —T-TE
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BREMZE 49 46
Investment property KEME 123,800 128,200
Investments in subsidiaries RRE AT ZEE 2,206,152 1,887,555
2,330,001 2,015,801
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENME-EE &
other receivables HEWERTR 1,260 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries LN ENGIE/ S ] 297,307 253,198
Cash and cash equivalents BEhkREEE 290,054 675,945
588,621 929,465
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals HEM R ESE B 3,149 2,973
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGRS E] 3,609 606,465
6,758 609,438
Net assets BERE 2,911,864 2,335,828
EQUITY g
Share capital fi& 930,337 930,337
Reserves* R 1,981,527 1,405,491

Total equity WS iEE 2,911,864 2,335,828
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. ZH=RTIMBIKRE &)
THE COMPANY (continued)

* A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: * NABMRBRIARMT -
Retained
Share Asset profits
premium revaluation Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
B 15 BE Bz
ER EhEE BARER (RTEER) A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2020 RIBZTEH
—H—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 325,454 2,319,041
Loss and total BEEEAFEE2A
comprehensive ¥ B4R
expense for the year - - - (913,550) (913,550)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZZHF
+=-A=4+— 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (588,096) 1,405,491

Profit and total mARAFEEE
comprehensive income Wz 48 28

for the year - - 576,036 576,036

At 31 December 2021 R_ZE_—F

+-BA=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (12,060) 1,981,527
The contributed surplus of the Company represents KANBIZBABBAERBDREER
the excess of the consolidated net asset value of a BEAZERATEERE—RBREBER
subsidiary at the date of its acquisition by the Company B ZNBARRKEERZERSG
in a previous year pursuant to a group reorganisation, EEFEBAFAKRBREMETZ
over the nominal amount of the Shares issued in KhEEzERE TEHNRRATSF
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated ERHEZ AR RBEHEE -REER
losses of the Company set off in the prior years. Under E—NAN—FR8FE XRBZHA
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed BHRTETERTAIHESIKFERE-

surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders
under certain circumstances.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F fF i1 5l &

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

FERBELEMBEENXBEREE &
BEMIFEREDMANT  HEEE ST E
REZVYBREZ LEFEEES ENS
Bt EMBAIFE BRI BIREAED

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_BA=+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —Z2-%TF —T-NEFE ZT-N\F Z—T—LF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FET FET
(Restated)
(E751)
RESULTS e
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREER
Revenue Wz 1,416,409 1,246,809 1,458,003 1,341,223 =
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRIRAIRSIE (24,790) (808,530 (83,833)  (159,025) (69,434)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (%) /R (31,182) 51,792 29,817 31,893 724
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REFELEERZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EEEHE (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) (127,132) (68,710)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from KEERIEEEERY
a discontinued operation KERHN/ (F8) - = = 507,569 (267,833)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR X (58 /55 (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) 380,437 (336,543)
Attributable to: THALRE:
Owners of the parent EYNSIIEE=S (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) 398,968 (288,481)
Non-controlling interests FERER = - S (18,531) (48,062)
(55,972)  (756,738) (54,016) 380,437 (336,543)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE BER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS PR
Total assets EEQLE 3,763,258 4,178,556 4,772,624 4,514,263 4,384,075
Total liabilities afREE (978,797)  (1,332,416)  (1,198,930)  (895,095)  (2,112,143)
Non-controlling interests RS = - - = (539,427)
2,784,461 2,846,140 3,573,694 3,619,168 1,732,505
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REMEFRE
31 DECEMBER 2021

—_E_—F+_"_R=+—H

Attributable

interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
TEH

25 R T HA P& 15 25
Unit B, 15/F, Office Vacant 100%
United Centre,
95 Queensway,
Hong Kong
EHE& WAE r=E
EIEEI5R
F—H0

1518BE
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